

Guide to Ella Fitzgerald Papers

NMAH.AC.0584 Reuben Jackson and Wendy Shay

2015



Archives Center, National Museum of American History P.O. Box 37012 Suite 1100, MRC 601 Washington, D.C. 20013-7012 Business Number: Phone: 202-633-3270 Fax Number: Fax: 202-786-2453 archivescenter@si.edu https://americanhistory.si.edu/archives

Table of Contents

Collection Overview	
Administrative Information	1
Biographical / Historical	2
Scope and Contents	2
Arrangement	2
Names and Subjects	
Container Listing	
Series 1: Music Manuscripts and Sheet Music, 1919 - 1973	5
Series 2: Photographs, 1939-1990	20
Series 3: Scripts, 1957-1981	56
Series 4: Correspondence, 1960-1996	58
Series 5: Business Records, 1954-1990	61
Series 6: Awards and Honorary Degrees, 1959-2002	64
Series 7: Concert Programs and Announcements, 1958-1989, undated	69
Series 8: Clippings, 1949-1997	75
Series 9: Ephemera, 1950 - 1996	78
Series 10: Audiovisual, 1939-1995	82

Collection Overview

Repository:	Archives Center, National Museum of American History
Title:	Ella Fitzgerald Papers
Date:	circa 1935-1996
Identifier:	NMAH.AC.0584
Creator:	Fitzgerald, Ella, 1917-1996
Extent:	50 Cubic feet (92 boxes)
Language:	Collection is primarily in English. Some materials are in French, Japanese, Russian and Portuguese.
Summary:	Ella Fitzgerald, often called the "First Lady of Song," was one of the 20th century's most important musical performers. The collection reflects her career and personal life through photographs, audio recordings, and manuscript materials.

Administrative Information

Acquisition Information

The collection was donated by the Fitzgerald 1989 Trust, Richard Rosman, trustee on April 14, 1997. The Ella Fitzgeral Charitable Foundation is the successor to the Fitzgerald 1989 Trust.

Separated Materials

"The National Museum of American History, Division of Culture and the Arts (now Division of Cultural and Community Life) holds Ella Fitzgerald artifacts including costumes and clothing.

"

Related Materials

Materials at the Archives Center

Benny Carter Collection, 1928-2000 (AC0757)

Charismic Productions Records of Dizzy Gillespie, 1940s-1993 (AC0979)

Smithsonian Jazz Oral History Program Collection, 1992-2012 (AC0808)

Milt Gabler Papers, 1927-2001 (AC0849)

Tad Hershorn Collection, 1956-1991 (AC0680)

Ernie Smith Jazz Film Collection, circa 1910- circa 1970 (AC0491)

Processing Information

The collection was processed by Reuben Jackson, archivist in 2001 and Wendy Shay, audiovisual archivist in 2001-2004, 2008, 2015.

Preferred Citation

Ella Fitzgerald Papers, Archives Center, National Museum of American History, Smithsonian Institution.

Restrictions

Collection is open for research. Only reference copies of audiovisual materials can be used.

Conditions Governing Use

The Archives Center can provide reproductions of some materials for research and educational use. Copyright and right to publicity restrictions apply and limit reproduction for other purposes. Archives Center cost-recovery and use fees may apply when requesting reproductions.

Biographical / Historical

Born in Newport News, Virginia on April 25th, 1918, Ella Fitzgerald was sent to an orphanage in Yonkers, New York at the age of six. In 1934, she was discovered as a singer in New York's famed Apollo Theater Amateur Contest. This led to a stint with drummer Chick Webb's Band, with whom she recorded her first big hit, "A -tisket A-tasket" in 1938.

After Webb died in 1939, Fitzgerald took over leadership of the band for three years, during which time they were featured on a live radio series. She then embarked upon a solo career, which included recording for Decca Records, and in 1946, she began a pivotal association with producer Norman Granz's Jazz at the Philharmonic series, which brought her a large international following.

In 1956, Fitzgerald left Decca Records to join Granz's newly formed Verve label. Among her notable Verve recordings were a series of "songbooks" featuring the work of major American composers such as Cole Porter, George Gershwin, and Harold Arlen as well as classic collaborations with Count Basie and Duke Ellington. Fitzgerald's toured and performed extensively and her immense popularity also led to appearances on television, in movies, and in commercials and magazine ads.

Despite increasing health problems, Fitzgerald continued to tour, perform and record into her seventies with musicians such as guitarist Joe Pass, arranger-producer Quincy Jones, and pianist Oscar Peterson. Throughout her life, Fitzgerald was active in charitable work with particular emphasis on the Juvenile Diabetes Foundation and the Ella Fitzgerald and Harriette E. Shields Child Care Centers.

Ella Fitzgerald was admired and honored world-wide. In addition to receiving more than a dozen Grammy awards, she was awarded numerous honorary degrees and many states and cities had commemorative Ella Fitzgerald days. Fitzgerald was a Kennedy Center honoree in 1979 and Harvard University's Hasty Pudding Club named her "Woman of the Year" in 1982.

The "First Lady of Song" died on June 17, 1996, of complications from diabetes.

Scope and Contents

The Ella Fitzgerald Papers document the performing and personal life of the "First Lady of Song." The collection contains music manuscripts, sheet music, photographs, scripts, correspondence, clippings, business records, sound recordings and video. The bulk of the materials reflect Fitzgerald's career as a singer and performer. The collection comprises materials found in Ella Fitzgerald's home at the time of her death.

Arrangement

The collection is organized into 10 series.

Series 1: Music Manuscripts and Sheet Music, 1919-1973 Suberies 1.1: Television Shows Series 2: Photographs, 1939-1990 Subseries 2.1: Ella Fitzgerald Performing Alone Subseries 2.2: Ella Fitzgerald Performing With Others Subseries 2.3: Publicity Subseries 2.4: Ella Fitzgerald With Family, Colleagues, and Friends Subseries 2.5: Ella Fitzgerald Candid Photographs Subseries 2.6: Performing Venues Subseries 2.7: Photographs From Friends and Fans Series 3: Scripts, 1957-1981 Series 4: Correspondence, circa 1960-1996 Series 5: Business Records, 1954-1990 Series 6: Honorary Degrees and Awards, 1960-1996 Series 7: Concert Programs and Announcements, 1957-1992, undated Series 8: Clippings, 1949-1997 Subseries 8.1: Magazine Articles, 1949-1997 Subseries 8.2: Newspapers, circa 19650-circa 1990 Series 9: Emphemera, 1950-1996 Subseries 9.1: Album Jackets Subseries 9.2: Miscellaneous Series 10: Audiovisual, 1939-1995 Subseries 10.1: Sound Discs: Test Pressings, Transcription Discs, and Performer Copies, 1939-1979 Subseries 10.2: Commercial Sound Recordings, 1956-1961 Subseries 10.3: Demonstration Sound Discs: Other Artists Subseries 10.4: Sound Tapes, 1938-1996 Subseries 10.5: Videotapes, 1967-1999

Subseries 10.6: Reference Tape Cassettes (for 1/4" open reel originals)

Names and Subject Terms

This collection is indexed in the online catalog of the Smithsonian Institution under the following terms:

Subjects:

Jazz

Types of Materials:

16mm motion picture film Audiotapes

Awards Clippings -- 20th century Contracts Greeting cards Manuscripts -- Music -- 20th century Phonograph records Photographs -- 20th century Posters -- 20th century Programs -- 1930-2000 Sound recordings Sound recordings -- 1930-1990 Videocassettes

Names:

Betts, Keter, 1928-Decca (recording company). Ellington, Duke, 1899-1974 Gillespie, Dizzy, 1917-1993 Goodman, Benny (Benjamin David), 1909-1986 Granz, Norman Jazz at the Philharmonic (Musical group) Pass, Joe, 1929-1994 Peterson, Oscar, 1925-Riddle, Nelson Verve Records (Firm)

Container Listing

Series 1: Music Manuscripts and Sheet Music, 1919 - 1973

Scope and Most of this series is arranged, by song title, in alphabetical order. This portion includes Fitzgerald's vocal lead sheets, printed music, sheet music, and songs sent to Fitzgerald for her consideration. The bulk of the material comprises piano/vocal scores of Duke Ellington and/or Duke Ellington and Billy Strayhorn compositions such as "Azure" and "Something to Live For." One flat box contains vocal lead sheets from Fitzgerald's guest appearances on television shows and specials. These are arranged alphabetically, by show title.

Box 1, Folder 1	Absinthe
Box 1, Folder 1	After All
Box 1, Folder 1	Alabamy Home
Box 1, Folder 1	All For You
Box 1, Folder 1	All That Jazz
Box 1, Folder 1	All The Time
Box 1, Folder 1	All Too Soon
Box 1, Folder 1	Allah Bye
Box 1, Folder 1	Another Time, Another Place
Box 1, Folder 1	Anything Goes
Box 1, Folder 1	Aquel Momento
Box 1, Folder 1	Are You Happy With Him?
Box 1, Folder 1	A-Tisket, A-Tasket
Box 1, Folder 1	Azure
Box 1, Folder 2	Baby Won't You Please Come Home
Box 1, Folder 2	Ballad For Very Tired and Very Sad Lotus Eaters
Box 1, Folder 2	Beautiful Friendship

Box 1, Folder 2	Best Is Yet To Come
Box 1, Folder 2	Best Is Yet To Come different version
Box 1, Folder 2	Bli-Blip
Box 1, Folder 2	Blood Count
Box 1, Folder 2	Blossom
Box 1, Folder 2	Blue And Sentimental
Box 1, Folder 2	Blue Goose
	Blues at Sundown
Box 1, Folder 2	Boo Dah
Box 1, Folder 2	Born To Be Blue
Box 1, Folder 2	Bossa-Nova
Box 1, Folder 2	Bottom Of The Blues
Box 1, Folder 2	Broadway Bossa Nova
Box 1, Folder 2	Boy Meets Horn
Box 1, Folder 2	Brown Skin Gal In The Calico Gown
Box 1, Folder 2	But Beautiful
Box 1, Folder 3	C'est Comme Ca
Box 1, Folder 3	Call Me Back
Box 1, Folder 3	Carabae Joe
Box 1, Folder 3	Caravan
Box 1, Folder 3	Cashmere Cutie
Box 1, Folder 3	Cassandra
Box 1, Folder 3	Cause I Love You
Box 1, Folder 3	Charpoy

Box 1, Folder 3	Chew, Chew, Chew Your Bubble Gum
Box 1, Folder 3	Children's Prayer For Peace
Box 1, Folder 3	Chile
Box 1, Folder 3	Chocolate Shake
Box 1, Folder 3	Come Out Of That Dream World
Box 1, Folder 3	Come Summer
Box 1, Folder 3	Come Sunday
Box 1, Folder 3	Conga Brava
Box 1, Folder 3	Cool Hand Luke
Box 1, Folder 3	Cotton Tail
Box 1, Folder 3	Counting My Tears
Box 1, Folder 3	Creole Love Call
Box 1, Folder 3	Dancing on the Ceiling
Box 1, Folder 4	David Danced
Box 1, Folder 4	Day Like This
Box 1, Folder 4	Divorce American Style
Box 1, Folder 4	Do Nothin' 'Till You Hear From Me
Box 1, Folder 4	Don't Get Around Much Anymore
Box 1, Folder 4	Don't You Know I Care
Box 1, Folder 4	Down Here On The Ground
Box 1, Folder 4	Down South Camp Meeting
Box 1, Folder 4	Drawing Room Blues
Box 1, Folder 4	Dream A Little Dream Of Me
Box 1, Folder 4	Dreams Are All I Have Of You

Box 1, Folder 4	Drop Me Off In Harlem
Box 1, Folder 4	Drum Is A Woman
Box 1, Folder 4	Duke's Place
Box 1, Folder 4	Dusk On The Desert
Box 1, Folder 5	Echoes of Harlem
Box 1, Folder 5	Everything But You
Box 1, Folder 6	Feathers
Box 1, Folder 6	Feeling of Jazz
Box 1, Folder 6	Fine and Mellow
Box 1, Folder 6	Flamingo
Box 1, Folder 6	Flower Is a Lovesome Thing
Box 1, Folder 6	Foggy Day
Box 1, Folder 6	Foi A Saudade
Box 1, Folder 6	Francesca
Box 1, Folder 6	Funny Girl (various songs)
Box 1, Folder 6	Cornet Man
Box 1, Folder 6	Don't Rain On My Parade
Box 1, Folder 6	The Music That Makes Me Dance
Box 1, Folder 6	You Are Woman, I Am Man
Box 1, Folder 7	Gal From Joe's
Box 1, Folder 7	Glad To Be Unhappy
Box 1, Folder 7	Good Morning Heartache
Box 1, Folder 7	Goodbye's a Long Long Time
Box 1, Folder 7	Gypsy Without a Song

Box 1, Folder 8	Half Moon
Box 1, Folder 8	Hand Me-Down Love
Box 1, Folder 8	Happy Birthday, Dear Jesus
Box 1, Folder 8	Happy-Go-Lucky Local
Box 1, Folder 8	Hard Hearted Hannah
Box 1, Folder 8	Harmony In Harlem
Box 1, Folder 8	Have Mercy
Box 1, Folder 8	He Needs Me
Box 1, Folder 8	Her Little Heart Went To Loveland
Box 1, Folder 8	Hit Me With a High Note and Watch Me Bounce
Box 1, Folder 8	A Hoppity Bop Birdie
Box 1, Folder 8	How Blue Can You Get Male Version
Box 1, Folder 8	How Can You Say We Are Through?
Box 1, Folder 8	How High The Moon
Box 1, Folder 8	How Little It Matters
Box 1, Folder 8	How Long How Long Blues
Box 2, Folder 1	I Didn't Know About You
Box 2, Folder 1	I Found Myself a Guy
Box 2, Folder 1	I Got a Guy
Box 2, Folder 1	I Got It Bad and That Ain't Good
Box 2, Folder 1	I Guess I'll Have to Change My Plan
Box 2, Folder 1	I Let a Song Go Out Of My Heart
Box 2, Folder 1	I Wanna Be In Love Again
Box 2, Folder 2	I'd Like to Keep Singing for You

Box 2, Folder 2	I'm Beginning To See The Light
Box 2, Folder 2	I'm Gonna Go Fishin'
Box 2, Folder 2	I'm Just a Lucky So-and-So
Box 2, Folder 2	I'm Satisfied
Box 2, Folder 2	I've Been Kissed Before
Box 2, Folder 2	If Dreams Come True
Box 2, Folder 2	If I'm Lucky
Box 2, Folder 2	In a Mellow Tone
Box 2, Folder 2	In a Sentimental Mood
Box 2, Folder 2	In Love For the Very First Time
Box 2, Folder 2	In the Garden
Box 2, Folder 2	In the Evening When the Sun Goes Down with Ella Fitzgerald's notations
Box 2, Folder 2	In Time
Box 2, Folder 2	Into Each Life Some Rain Must Fall
Box 2, Folder 2	Is You Is, Or Is You Ain't My Baby
Box 2, Folder 2	It Amazes Me
Box 2, Folder 2	It Don't Mean A Thing
Box 2, Folder 2	It Looks Like Love
Box 2, Folder 2	It Must Have Been Two Other People
Box 2, Folder 2	It Shouldn't Happen to a Dream
Box 2, Folder 2	It's Down Hill All The Way To My House
Box 2, Folder 2	It's Gettin' To Be Evenin'
Box 2, Folder 2	It's Only a Man
Box 2, Folder 2	It's Rumor

Box 2, Folder 3	Jazzman
Box 2, Folder 3	Jersey Bounce
Box 2, Folder 3	Johnny Come Lately
Box 2, Folder 3	Judy
Box 2, Folder 3	Jump For Joy
Box 2, Folder 3	Juniflip
Box 2, Folder 3	Just A-Sittin' And A-Rockin'
Box 2, Folder 3	Just Squeeze Me
Box 2, Folder 4	Kiss From You
Box 2, Folder 4	Knock On Wood
Box 2, Folder 5	Let's
Box 2, Folder 5	Let's Do It
Box 2, Folder 5	Let's Dream
Box 2, Folder 5	Let's Have an Old-Fashioned Christmas
Box 2, Folder 5	Life Does a Man a Favor
Box 2, Folder 5	Like Young
Box 2, Folder 5	Live and Love Again
Box 2, Folder 5	Love Is Not For Fools Like Me
Box 2, Folder 5	Lonely Woman
Box 2, Folder 5	Lost In Meditation
Box 2, Folder 5	Lotus Blossom
Box 2, Folder 5	Love Call
Box 2, Folder 5	Love Came
Box 2, Folder 5	Love Is Like a Newborn Child

Box 2, Folder 5	Love Is a Word for the Blues
Box 2, Folder 5	Love Scene
Box 2, Folder 5	Love You Madly
Box 2, Folder 5	Lullaby of Birdland
Box 2, Folder 5	Luna De Cuba
Box 2, Folder 5	Lush Life
Box 2, Folder 6	Make the Best Of Your Life
Box 2, Folder 6	Mama's Got the Blues
Box 2, Folder 6	Mas Qua Nada
Box 2, Folder 6	Maybe God Is Black
Box 2, Folder 6	Meat and Potatoes
Box 2, Folder 6	Meet Me Halfway
Box 2, Folder 6	Melancholy Me
Box 2, Folder 6	Memoirs of a Lady
Box 2, Folder 6	Midnight In Paris
Box 2, Folder 6	Mighty Like the Blues
Box 2, Folder 6	Misty
Box 2, Folder 6	Moment Of Truth
Box 2, Folder 6	Mood Indigo
Box 2, Folder 6	Multicolored Blues
Box 2, Folder 6	My Bells
Box 2, Folder 6	My Kind Of Guy
Box 2, Folder 6	My Mother, My Father and Love
Box 2, Folder 6	My Old Flame

Box 2, Folder 7	Natural Affection
Box 2, Folder 7	Natural Child
Box 2, Folder 7	Nearness Of You
Box 2, Folder 7	No Need To Worry
Box 2, Folder 7	Noir Bleu
Box 2, Folder 7	Now
Box 2, Folder 8	Oh, But I Do
Box 2, Folder 8	Oh, Captain! (various songs)
Box 2, Folder 8	All the Time
Box 2, Folder 8	Life Does a Man a Favor
Box 2, Folder 8	Surprise
Box 2, Folder 8	You Don't Know Him
Box 2, Folder 8	You're So Right for Me
Box 2, Folder 8	Old Enough To Know
Box 2, Folder 8	On Green Dolphin Street
Box 2, Folder 8	Once In Awhile
Box 2, Folder 8	One I Love Belongs To Somebody Else
Box 2, Folder 8	Orson
Box 2, Folder 8	Out Of This World
Box 2, Folder 8	Over the Rainbow
Box 2, Folder 8	Overture to a Jam Session
Box 3, Folder 1	Paradise
Box 3, Folder 1	Passing Through
Box 3, Folder 1	Pawnbroker, The

Box 3, Folder 1	Pense A Moi
Box 3, Folder 1	Pete Kelly's Blues
Box 3, Folder 1	Playboy
Box 3, Folder 1	Please Forgive Me
Box 3, Folder 1	Pomegranate
Box 3, Folder 1	Pow, Pow, Pow
Box 3, Folder 1	Prelude to a Kiss
Box 3, Folder 1	Progressive Gavotte
Box 3, Folder 1	Purple People
Box 3, Folder 2	Raincheck
Box 3, Folder 2	Reach Out
Box 3, Folder 2	Rockin' In Rhythm
Box 3, Folder 2	Rocks In My Bed
Box 3, Folder 2	Rough Ridin'
Box 3, Folder 3	Saint Louis Blues
Box 3, Folder 3	Satin Doll
Box 3, Folder 3	Scattin' At The Kit Kat
Box 3, Folder 3	September Rain
Box 3, Folder 3	She's Too Hip To Be Happy
Box 3, Folder 3	Signing Off
Box 3, Folder 3	Signing On
Box 3, Folder 3	Sitting Alone and Counting My Tears
Box 3, Folder 3	Slow And Easy
Box 3, Folder 3	Snibor

Box 3, Folder 3	So What Now?
Box 3, Folder 3	Softly The Silence
Box 3, Folder 3	Solitude
Box 3, Folder 3	Somebody Cares
Box 3, Folder 3	Someone To Care For
Box 3, Folder 3	Something Happens
Box 3, Folder 3	Something Special
Box 3, Folder 3	Something To Live For
Box 3, Folder 4	Sophisticated Lady
Box 3, Folder 4	Sounds of the Night
Box 3, Folder 4	Sounds of Spring
Box 3, Folder 4	Stealin' Apples
Box 3, Folder 4	Steppin' Into Swing Society
Box 3, Folder 4	Stevedore's Serenade
Box 3, Folder 4	Stompy Jones
Box 3, Folder 4	Stone Cold Dead in the Market
Box 3, Folder 4	Sugar Blues
Box 3, Folder 4	Sugar, Don't You Know
Box 3, Folder 4	Sunny
Box 3, Folder 4	Surprise
Box 3, Folder 4	Swamp Drum
Box 3, Folder 4	Sweet and Pungent
Box 3, Folder 4	Sweet Pussycat
Box 3, Folder 5	Take Love Easy

Box 3, Folder 5	Tango Easy
Box 3, Folder 5	Thank The Lord For This Thanksgiving Day
Box 3, Folder 5	Thank You For Everything
Box 3, Folder 5	Thank You Ma'am
Box 3, Folder 5	That Could Be Love
Box 3, Folder 5	Then Was Then And Now Is Now
Box 3, Folder 5	They Can't Take That Away From Me
Box 3, Folder 5	Things Ain't What They Used To Be
Box 3, Folder 5	Think Of Me
Box 3, Folder 5	This Could Be the Start of Something Big
Box 3, Folder 5	3:10 Blues
Box 3, Folder 5	Throw It Out Your Mind
Box 3, Folder 5	Tigress
Box 3, Folder 5	Time After Time with Ella Fitzgerald's notations
Box 3, Folder 5	Tonight I Shall Sleep With A Smile On My Face
Box 3, Folder 5	Triste
Box 3, Folder 5	Truth
Box 3, Folder 5	Tulip Or Turnip
Box 3, Folder 5	Twelfth Of Never
Box 3, Folder 6	Unwanted Blues
Box 3, Folder 6	Up
Box 3, Folder 6	Upper Manhattan Medical Group
Box 3, Folder 6	Useless Landscape
Box 3, Folder 7	Very Early

Box 3, Folder 8	Wailing Waltz
Box 3, Folder 8	Walk Softly
Box 3, Folder 8	Walkin' By The River
Box 3, Folder 8	Walking With The Moon
Box 3, Folder 8	Watermelon Man
Box 3, Folder 8	Wave
Box 3, Folder 8	We Be Doin It
Box 3, Folder 8	We'll Be Together Again
Box 3, Folder 8	We're Rocking In Rhythm
Box 3, Folder 8	What A Way To Go
Box 3, Folder 8	What Am I Here For?
Box 3, Folder 8	What'll I Do?
Box 3, Folder 8	What's Wrong With Me
Box 3, Folder 8	When You're Not Here
Box 3, Folder 8	Whisper Not
Box 3, Folder 8	Who Knows What Love Is
Box 3, Folder 8	Why Are You Afraid
Box 3, Folder 8	Willow Weep For Me
Box 3, Folder 8	Winds of Winter
Box 3, Folder 8	Winter Of My Discontent
Box 3, Folder 8	Witchcraft
Box 3, Folder 8	Woman Talk
Box 3, Folder 9	You Can't Go Home Again
Box 3, Folder 9	You Could Have Had Me, Baby

Box 3, Folder 9	You Don't Know Him
Box 3, Folder 9	You Showed Me The Way
Box 3, Folder 9	Your Feets Too Big
Box 3, Folder 9	You're An Angel
Box 3, Folder 9	You're A Long Time Dead
Box 3, Folder 9	You're So Right For Me
Box 3, Folder 9	You've Got A Date With the Blues

Subseries 1.1: Music From Television Show Appearances

Box 3, Folder 9

Box 4, Folder 1	Andy Williams Show
Box 4, Folder 1	Let's All Sing Like the Birdies
Box 4, Folder 1	Without a Song
	Ella's Song
Box 4, Folder 5	Perry Como Show
Box 4, Folder 5	Avalon
Box 4, Folder 6	MiscellaneousTelevision Shows
Box 4, Folder 6	Swing Into Spring – Closing
Box 4, Folder 6	S'Wonderful
Box 4, Folder 6	Three Little Maids
Subseries 2: Song Boo Box 5	oks
Box 5	Hoagy Carmichael's Music Shop
Box 5	Sing and Play with Hoagy Carmichael
Box 5	Duke Ellington Piano Method for Blues

Series 1: Music Manuscripts and Sheet Music

Box 5	Duke Ellington's Song Folio
Box 5	The Great Music of Duke Ellington
Box 5	Ella Fitzgerald: The First Lady of Song
Box 5	Essential Ella
Box 5	Ella Sings Ellington
Box 5	Billie Holiday – Anthology
Box 5	The Bossa Nova Music of Marcos Valle

Return to Table of Contents

Series 2: Photographs, 1939-1990

Scope and Contents: Series 2, Photographs, 1939-1990 Photographs include standard black-and-white publicity shots of Fitzgerald, photographs of Fitzgerald with celebrities such as Carol Channing and politicians like Robert Kennedy and Hubert Humphrey, photographs of Fitzgerald in performance, alone and with others, photographs from friends, family, and colleagues as well as autographed photographs sent to Fitzgerald by a wide range of celebrities including members of the San Francisco Giants baseball team, and the cast of the soap opera "All My Children," among others.

Subseries 2.1: Ella Fitzgerald Performing Alone

Box 6	Performing, circa 1930 - 1940
Box 6	Performing, circa 1950 - 1960
Box 6	In Recording studio
Box 6	Gary Moore Show, 1959 October 9
Box 6	Playboy Jazz Festival
Box 6	Performing, circa 1960 - 1970
Box 6	Pasadena Civic Auditorium, 1960 April 9
Box 6	Proof Sheets: Life , 1963 January 21
Box 6	Television performances, circa 1960 - 1970
Box 6	Lloyd Center, Portland Oregon, circa 1960 - 1970
Box 6	Festival Hall, 1962 February 17
Box 6	In front of microphone, circa 1960 - 1970
Box 6	Performing, circa 1967
Box 6	Bal Pare - Bambi, 1967 Notes: Photo series presented to Fitzgerald "with the compliments of Gaby Richer."
Box 7	Las Vegas, circa 1968 -1969
Box 7	Performing, circa 1963 - 1973
Box 7	Performing, circa late 1960s/ early 1970s

Box 7	Performing, circa 1970
Box 7	Performing, 1974
Box 7	In performance; photographic proofs, 1978 November
Box 7	Performing, circa 1978
Box 7	Northsea Jazz Festival, circa 1978 or 1979
Box 7	Performing, circa 1975 - 1980
Box 7	Performing, circa 1970 - 1980
Box 7	Performing, circa 1975-1980
Box 7	Performing, circa 1970
Box 8	At White House, circa 1980
Box 8	Performing, circa 1980
Box 8	Performing, circa 1980 Notes: Photographs by Tad Hershorn
Box 8	Symphony Hall, Boston Massachusetts, 1980
Box 8	All-Star Swing Festival, 1980 February 18
	Performing, circa 1981
Box 8	Memorex Commercial, 1981
Box 8	San Francisco, 1983 Notes: Photograph by James Blackman
Box 8	In studio, 1985
Box 8	Performing, 1986 July
Box 8	Performing, 1987 June
Box 8	Performing, 1988 November
Box 8	New York City Music Hall, 1989 February
Box 8	Sugar Ray's Teen Pagent

Box 8	Performing, circa 1985-1990
Box 25	Fitzgerald at the University of Southern California
Box 8	Inscribed to Dean Roberts
Box 8	Photo by Tad Hershorn
Box 8	Photo by Joe La Russo
Box 8	Performing, circa 1966
Box 25	Photo by Bjarne Luthcke
Box 8	Photo by Giuseppe G. Pino
	Photo by Phil Stern, circa 1950s
	Unidentified, circa 1950
	At Downbeat Club, New York, 1949 Notes: Photograph by Herman Leonard
Box 25	Triptych in white lace dress
Box 25	[Triple-image (triple-exposure) picture of Ella Fitzgerald in concert, undated.][Black-and-white photoprint.]1 Item (unmounted; Silver gelatin on paper; 9-1/2" x 11-3/4")Collector:Fitzgerald, Ella, 1917-1996Language:English.Notes:AC0584-0000063.tif (AC Scan No.)Unrestricted research access on site by appointment. Gloves required with unprotected photographs.Included in Archives Center Jazz Appreciation Month display, April 1-May 31, 2010, "Jazz at the Philharmonic-Bringing Jazz to the World," curated by Wendy Shay.Damaged substantially; cracks in emulsion.Topic:Concerts
	Jazz musicians African American singers 1950-1960 African American musicians Genre/Form: Multiple exposure
	Photographs Black-and-white photoprints Silver gelatin 1960-1970
	Culture: African Americans

'Taken by Norman" in pencil, circa 1960

	In red dress, circa1970
	In white ruffled shirt
	Photo by Mari Abercrombie, 1977
Box 8	S.E.Kaps, undated
Box 8	Fitzgerald in Boston
Box 8	Performing, circa 1950-1960 Notes: Photographs by Jay Thompson

Subseries 2.2: Ella Fitzgerald Performing With Others

Bardu Ali
Louis Armstrong and Duke Ellington
Louis Armstrong and Norman Granz
Pearl Bailey
Count Basie
Count Basie, Benny Goodman, Doc Severinson, Joe Williams, Duke Ellington
Count Basie
Count Basie Orchestra, 1977 January
Count Basie Orchestra
Louis Bellson
Tony Bennet
Keter Betts
Keter Betts, Tommy Flanagan, Bobby Durham
Keter Betts and Buddy Greco
Keter Betts, the Carpenters, John Denver, Paul Smith

Box 9	Ray Brown and Dizzy Gillespie
Box 9	Carol Burnett
Box 9	Nell Carter, Michael Jackson, Debbie Allen, Eddie Murphy
Box 9	Nat "King" Cole
Box 9	Bing Crosby
Box 9	Bill Dana
Box 9	Billy Daniels and Art Baker, Gus Johnson drums
Box 9	Jack Donahue, director, Frank Sinatra Show, 1958 February 27
Box 9	Roy Eldridge, Paul Smith, and others
Box 9	Arthur Fiedler
Box 9	Tommy Flanagan
Box 9	Tommy Flanagan, Roy Eldridge, Gus Johnson and George Duvivier, Antibes
Box 9	Tommy Flanagan
Box 9	Dizzy Gillespie, Milt Jackson, N.H.O.Pedersen, Sonny Stitt, Al Grey, Roy Eldridge, Cannonball Adderly
Box 9	Paul Gonsalves
Box 9	Benny Goodman
Box 9	Benny Goodman, Lionel Hampton, Peggy Lee - Swing Into Spring
Box 9	Norman Granz
Box 9	Norman Granz, circa 1980
Box 9	Gregg, Keter Betts, and Paul Smith, 1985 March 31
Box 9	Dottie Hansen
Box 9	Al Hirt and others
Box 9	Possibly Gus Johnson, Bill Yancey, Roy Eldridge

Box 9	Jimmy Jones and unidentified male
Box 9	Lou Levy and other musicians
Box 9	Lou Levy, Herb Ellis, and others
Box 9	Gary Moore, Carol Burnett, Alan Funt, Mel Torme, and unidentified others
Box 9	Sy Oliver ?
Box 9	Joe Pass
Box 9	Joe Pass Notes: Photographs by James Blackman
Box 9	Joe Pass
Box 9	Joe Pass, Keter Betts, Michel Legrand ?, unidentified others
Box 10	Oscar Peterson and Joe Pass, 1979 March 31 Notes: Photograph by Tad Hershorn
Box 10	Oscar Peterson, Joe Williams, James Moody, and others
Box 10	Cole Porter, Eubie Blake, Johnny Mercer, and others
Box 10	Frank Sinatra
Box 10	Jo Stafford, Benny Goodman Orchestra
Box 10	Mel Torme
Box 10	Sarah Vaughan
Box 10	Sarah Vaughan and Pearl Bailey
Box 10	Robert Wagner and Conrad Bain
Box 10	Chick Webb Orchestra
Box 10	Andy Williams
Box 10	Joe Williams
Box 10	Joe Williams and unidentified others
Box 10	Unidentified males, circa 1930 - 1950

Box 10	Unidentified people, circa 1950
Box 10	Unidentified bassist and guitarist, circa 1950
Box 10	Nelson Riddle at the Hollywood Bowl, circa 1950 - 1960
Box 10	Unidentified male, circa 1960
Box 10	Unidentified males, circa 1970s
Box 10	Unidentified male, circa 1980
Box 25	In Studio with Louis Armstrong, circa 1950
Box 10	Benny Carter
Box 10	Nat "King" Cole
Box 10	Tommy Flanagan
Box 10	Tommy Flanagan and others, New Orleans Jazz Festival, 1977 April
Box 10	Dizzy Gillespie, 1981 February
Box 10	Danny Kaye and Al Hirt, circa 1960
Box 10	Joe Pass, 1983 Notes: Photograph by Tad Hershorn
Box 10	In Recording Studio, 1950
Box 25	Bill Doggett ? and others in recording studio, circa 1962
Box 10	Unidentified musicians, circa 1960

Subseries 2.7: Photographs from Friends and Fans

Box 22	Manual Alabart Ambassador and Mrs. Alabart
Box 22	Barney ?
Box 22	Anderson, Lonnie
Box 22	Rear Admiral Armstrong and the Royal Hussars
Box 22	Armstrong, Louis

Box 22	Bain, Barbara
Box 22	Barnard, Dr. Christian
Box 22	Ernie Barefield
Box 22	Count Basie
Box 22	Bates, Peg-Leg, 1939 April
Box 22	Louis Bellson and unidentified Males
Box 22	Bennett, Tony
Box 22	Benton, Senator William and Marietta Tree
Box 22	Berra, Yogi and Beverly Sills
Box 22	Betts, Keter
Box 22	Betts, Keeter with Tommy Flanagan and Ed Thigpen
Box 22	Bishop, Joey
Box 22	Blake, Amanda Miss Kitty
Box 22	Blake, Eubie with the Reagans
Box 22	Breck, Peter
Box 22	Brown, Ray with others
Box 22	Brown, Ray Jr
Box 22	Buttons, Red
Box 22	Carne, Judy
Box 22	Charles, Ray
Box 22	Clarke, Dick
Box 22	Clarke, Kenny
Box 22	Clooney, Rosemary with large group including Tony Bennett, Bob Hope, Barry Manilow, Suzanne Somers, Dionne Warwick 1986

Box 22	Cole, Nat "King"
Box 22	Connelly, Chris
Box 22	Connect, Dean
Box 22	Connors, Mike
Box 22	Cronkite, Walter with Kurt Vonnegut
Box 22	Curtis, Ken
Box 22	Damone, Vic and Diahann Carroll
Box 22	Darrin, Diana
Box 22	Dial, Harold
Box 22	Eastwood, Clint
Box 22	Eden, Jerome
Box 22	Eldridge, Roy
Box 22	Ellis, Herb
Box 22	Evans, Robert
Box 22	Fairbanks, Douglas
Box 22	Ford, Jerry with Queen Elizabeth II and Prince Philip?
Box 22	Francis, Connie
Box 22	Francine ?, 1968
Box 22	Franciosa, Tony
Box 22	Gatlin Brothers
Box 22	Gaynor, Mitzi
Box 22	Gillespie, Dizzy
Box 22	Goulet, Robert
Box 22	Grant, Dorothy

Box 22	Greco, Buddy
Box 22	Green, Freddie
Box 22	Hamilton, Elaine
Box 22	Hampton, James
Box 22	Holliman, Earl
Box 22	Holm, Celeste and Tom Posten
Box 22	Humes, Helen
Box 22	Ink Spots
Box 23	Jackson, Glenda
Box 23	Jackson, Maynard Mayor
Box 23	Jackson, Michael
Box 23	Jones, Tom
Box 23	Jordan, Frankie ?
Box 23	Landau, Martin
Box 23	Leon, Norma
Box 23	Levenson, Sam
Box 23	Lewis, Emanuel
Box 23	Lipton, Peggy, Michael Cole, Clarence Williams III Mod Squad
Box 23	Loren, Sophia
Box 23	Lucci, Susan
Box 23	Manaois, Jose "Mexican Troubadors"
Box 23	The Marvelettes
Box 23	Mathis, Johnny
Box 23	Melendez, Juan ?, 1971

Box 23	Michelle, Louise and Duke Ellington
Box 23	Minnelli, Liza
Box 23	Morgan, Debbi
Box 23	Neal, Patricia with Lillian Hellman and actress ?
Box 23	Nelson, Jimmy and Danny O'Day
Box 23	Newman, Paul
Box 23	Paray, Christiane
Box 23	Pass, Joe
Box 23	Pass, Joe with Keter Betts and others
Box 23	Perlman, Itzhak
Box 23	Peterson, Oscar
Box 23	Ponce, Poncie
Box 23	Price, Leontyne
Box 23	Rangel, Manolo
Box 23	Redford, Robert
Box 23	Reynolds, Burt
Box 23	Riddle, Nelson and family
Box 23	Righteous Brothers
Box 23	Robbins, Gale
Box 23	Rogers, Roy and Dale Evans
Box 23	Rolle, Esther
Box 23	Shane, Frank
Box 23	Sinatra, Frank and Harry Belafonte, Gene Kelly, Peter Lawford Kennedy Inauguration Gala, 1961

Frank Sinatra [photograph,], January, 1961 1 Item (3-1/2" x 3-1/2".) Photographer?: Fitzgerald, Ella, 1917-1996 Language: English. Notes: AC0584.0000003.tif (AC Scan, Front) Silver gelatin on paper. Photograph of Sinatra rehearsing for Kennedy Inaugural Gala, January 1961. Ella Fitzgerald, possible photographer. Shown in exhibition "Jazz Photographs: Composed and Improvised," Archives Center display cases, National Museum of American History, March 28-May 10, 2005. Names: Sinatra, Frank, 1915-1998 Jazz Photographs: Composed and Improvised (Archives Center display cases, National Museum of American History, March 28-May 10, 2005). Topic: Jazz musicians Genre/Form: Photographs -- 1950-2000 -- Black-and-white photoprints --Silver gelatin

Frank Sinatra [photograph,], January, 1961

(3-1/2".)
: Fitzgerald, Ella, 1917-1996
English.
AC0584.0000004.tif (AC Scan, Front)
Silver gelatin on paper.
Photograph of Sinatra reheasing for Kennedy Inaugural Gala, January 1961. Ella Fitzgerald possible photographer.
Shown in exhibition "Jazz Photographs: Composed and Improvised," Archives Center display cases, National Museum of American History, March 28-May 10, 2005.
Sinatra, Frank, 1915-1998 Jazz Photographs: Composed and Improvised (Archives Center display cases, National Museum of American History,
March 28-May 10, 2005). Jazz musicians
Photographs 1950-2000 Black-and-white photoprints Silver gelatin

Frank Sinatra: [photograph,], January, 1961
1 Item (3-1/2" x	3-1/2".)
Photographer?:	Fitzgerald, Ella, 1917-1996
Language:	English.
Notes:	AC0584.0000005.tif (AC Scan, Front)
	Silver gelatin on paper.
	Photograph of Frank Sinatra rehearsing for Kennedy Inaugural Gala, January 1961. Ella Fitzgerald, possible photographer.

Names: Topic: Genre/Form:	Shown in exhibition "Jazz Photographs: Composed and Improvised," Archives Center display cases, National Museum of American History, March 28-May 10, 2005. Jazz Photographs: Composed and Improvised (Archives Center display cases, National Museum of American History, March 28-May 10, 2005). Presidents Inauguration Washington (D.C.) Singers Jazz musicians Photographs 1950-2000 Black-and-white photoprints Silver gelatin
1 Item (3-1/2" >	 [photograph,], January, 1961 3-1/2".) Fitzgerald, Ella, 1917-1996 English. AC0584.0000006.tif (AC Scan, Front) Silver gelatin on paper. Photograph of Frank Sinatra rehearsing for Kennedy Inaugural Gala, January 1961. Ella Fitzgerald, possible photographer. Shown in exhibition "Jazz Photographs: Composed and Improvised," Archives Center display cases, National Museum of American History, March 28-May 10, 2005. Jazz Photographs: Composed and Improvised (Archives Center display cases, National Museum of American History, March 28-May 10, 2005). Jazz musicians Photographs 1950-2000 Black-and-white photoprints Silver gelatin
1 Item (3-1/2" >	otoprint,], January, 1961 (3-1/2".) : Fitzgerald, Ella, 1917-1996 English. AC0584.0000007.tif (AC Scan, Front) Silver gelatin on paper. Photograph of Gene Kelly rehearsing for Kennedy Inaugural Gala, January 1961. Ella Fitzgerald, possible photographer. Shown in exhibition "Jazz Photographs: Composed and Improvised," Archives Center display cases, National Museum of American History, March 28-May 10, 2005. Kelly, Gene, 1912-1996 Jazz Photographs: Composed and Improvised (Archives Center display cases, National Museum of American History, March 28-May 10, 2005). Jazz musicians Photographs 1950-2000 Black-and-white photoprints Silver gelatin

Peter Lawford [photoprint,], January, 1961 1 Item (3-1/2" x 3-1/2".)	
•	: Fitzgerald, Ella, 1917-1996
Language:	
Notes:	AC0584.0000008.tif (AC Scan, Front)
	Silver gelatin on paper.
	Photograph of Peter Lawford rehearsing for Kennedy Inaugural Gala, January 1961. Ella Fitzgerald, possible photographer.
	Shown in exhibition "Jazz Photographs: Composed and Improvised," Archives Center display cases, National Museum of American History, March 28-May 10, 2005.
Names:	Lawford, Peter, 1923- Jazz Photographs: Composed and Improvised (Archives Center display cases, National Museum of American History, March 28-May 10, 2005).
Occupation: Genre/Form:	Actors Photographs 1950-2000 Black-and-white photoprints Silver gelatin

Box 23	Sinatra, Frank and Barbara Sinatra
Box 23	Sinatra, Nancy
Box 23	Sloane, Milburn
Box 23	Snow, Vivien
Box 23	Taylor, Rip
Box 23	Thigpen, Ed
Box 23	Thompson, Sir Charles
Box 23	Unitas, Johnny
Box 23	Warwick, Ruth
Box 23	Wayne, John
Box 23	Webb, Chick and other musicians
Box 23	Whitaker, Johnny
Box 23	Willliams, Christopher
Box 23	Williams, Joe

Box 23	Wills, Maury
Box 23	Wilson, Flip
Box 23	John Zacherley The Cool Ghoul
Box 24	unidentified Musical Groups
Box 24	unidentified Child undated
Box 24	unidentified Group of Males, circa 1970s
Box 24	unidentified Males
Box 24	unidentified Snapshots
Box 24	Children at the Ella Fitzgerald Child Care Center, 1979
Box 24	Chick Webb Memorial Recreation Center, Baltimore
Box 24	Photos of paintings of Ella
Box 24	Ella Exhibit, 1978
Box 24	unidentified Photos of Collection of Ella Ephemera
Box 24	Photo of Martin Luther King, Jr. Bust
Box 27	Louis Armstrong, Art Blakey, Ray Charles, John Coltrane, Duke Ellington, Lionel Hampton, Charles Mingus, Kid Ory, 1966 Notes: Photos by Leduc and Leloir.
Box 24	Arthur Fiedler
Box 24	Danny La Rue British Drag Performer, undated
Box 24	Marilyn Monroe
Box 24	Oscar Peterson, undated
Box 24	Frank Sinatra
Box 24	Robert Wagner
Box 24	Andy Williams
Box 24	unidentified Drummer Bobby Durham?, undated

Box 24	unidentified Males
Box 24	unidentified group of musicians, undated
Box 24	Photo from unidentified stage production, undated

Subseries 2.3: Publicity, circa 1930-1940

Box 11	Signed "Sincerely, Ella Fitzgerald"
Box 11	Ella Fitzgerald and Her Famous Orchestra, Gale Agency
Box 11	Carl Van Vechten postcard
Box 11	Ella Fitzgerald: Exclusive Recording Artist, Verve Records
Box 11	Ella Fitzgerald
Box 11	"Like Someone In Love":Ella Fitzgerald - Frank DeVol and His Orchestra, Verve Records
Box 11	Ella Fitzgerald: Exclusive Recording Artist, Verve Records
Box 11	St.Louis Blues, 1958
Box 11	Pete Kelley's Blues
Box 11	"TH 2-4"
Box 11	Unidentified publicity photo
Box 11	Ella Fitzgerald: Photos by John Engstead
Box 11	Studio Publicity Still
Box 11	Ella Fitzgerald: Exclusive Recording Artist, Verve Records
Box 11	Ella Fitzgerald
Box 11	Ella Fitzgerald
Box 11	Ella Fitzgerald Internationally popular jazz vocalist
Box 11	Ella Fitzgerald
Box 11	Four Week Engagement at the Royal Box circa1966

Box 11	Let No Man Write My Epitaph, 1960
Box 11	Photo by Beryl Bryden, London
Box 11	Ella Fitzgerald
Box 11	Ella Fitzgerald - photo by Posie, circa 1960 Notes: Photograph by Posie
Box 12	Ella Fitzgerald
Box 12	Ella Fitzgerald, 1967
Box 12	Publicity photo: NBC TV Advertising Department
Box 12	Ella Fitzgerald, circa 1970
Box 12	Ella Fitzgerald, circa 1971
Box 12	Ella Fitzgerald, circa 1974
Box 12	Ella Fitzgerald, circa 1977
Box 12	Ella Fitzgerald, circa 1980
Box 12	Ella Fitzgerald
Box 12	Ella Fitzgerald - Memorex circa1981, circa 1981
Box 12	Ella Fitzgerald, circa 1980-1990
Box 12	Ella Fotzgerald: Imperial Room 1/1983, 1983 January 17-29
Box 12	Ella Fitzgerald, circa 1980-1985
Box 12	Ella Fitzgerald, circa 1986 July
Box 12	Ella Fitzgerald, circa 1986
Box 12	Ella Fitzgerald, 1988 Notes: Photograph by Annie Liebowitz.
Box 12	Ella Fitzgerald, circa 1989
Box 12	Pablo Record Company, undated
Box 12	Ella Fitzgerald

Box 12	Various postcards
Box 26	Queen on the Scene at the Apollo Theater, circa 1950
Box 12	Memorex negative, circa 1981
Box 12	Verve Record Company, circa 1950 - 1960
Box 12	Ella Fitzgerald, 1988Notes:Photograph by Annie Leibowitz.
Box 12	Cover Photo: Ella Sings the Irving Berlin Songbook

Subseries 2.4: Ella Fitzgerald with Family, Colleagues, and Friends

Box 12	
Box 13	Art Agnos, Mayor of San Francisco
Box 13	Louis Armstrong and unidentified others
Box 13	Count Basie
Box 13	Count Basie and unidentified male
Box 13	Count Basie and unidentified male and female
Box 13	Count Basie and unidentified Others
Box 13	Count Basie in large group that includes members of Basie Orchestra, Tommy Flanagan, Pete Cavello
Box 13	Tony Bennett
Box 13	Tony Bennett, Steve Lawrence, Edie Gorme
Box 13	Tony Bennett and the Dave Clark Five
Box 13	Keter Betts, Roy Eldridge, and Bobby Durham
Box 13	Tony Bennett, Eubie Blake, Lena Horne, and others at Night for Light event
Box 13	Tony Bennett, Eubie Blake, Lena Horne
Box 13	James Blackman
Box 3, Folder 1	Pyramid

Box 13	Tom Bradley, Mayor, and unidentified Female
Box 13	Tom Bradley, Mayor, and unidentified male, circa 1963 June 15
Box 13	Tom Bradley, Mayor, and unidentified others
Box 13	Ralph Bunch and unidentified Male
Box 13	Cardell DeMil ? and Bobo Brozel? autographed
Box 13	Tee Carson, circa1988
Box 13	Tee and Janet Carson
Box 13	Tee Carson
Box 13	Benny Carter
Box 13	Carter White House - Rosalyn Carter, Henry Fonda, Martha Graham, Aaron Copeland, Tennessee Williams
Box 13	Pete Cavello and unidentified Male
Box 13	Otis Chandler and others including Billie Jean Moffitt King, Dinah Shore, Gail Patrick, Dr. Marian Gallaher 1965
Box 13	Rosemary Clooney
Box 13	Bing Crosby, Carol Burnett
Box 13	Norm Crosby
Box 13	Wim De Boois and unidentified others
Box 13	Kirk Douglas
Box 13	Mike Douglas
Box 14	Gerald Ford, Queen Elizabeth II, and others
Box 14	Billy Eckstein, Mrs. Billy Eckstein, Jack Carter, Harry James, Morris James
Box 14	Roy Eldridge, Norman Granz, and others, circa 1964 January 23
Box 14	Duke Ellington various shots, various dates
Box 14, Folder 10	[Duke Ellington portrait : photoprint], [1923.]

	rint; Silver gelatin on paper, unmounted; 10 x 8".) Butler, Opisc (photographer) English. 03041502.tif (AC Scan No.) Another copy of this print, trimmed flush and in worse condition,
	is in the folder. The young Ellington, wearing a hat, suit and tie. Inscribed in ink: "To my darling Mother- / in-Law who always / says, 'Ellington's / right' / Your Son / Duke". "Opisc [?] -Butler / New York" in negative, at lower right Date in pencil on verso, as well as "Washington [illegible letter] James."
	Scan file sold to Historical Society of Washington, D.C. (Laura Schiavo, contact), warm-toned print for exhibition use, 2003/03/13.
	Unrestricted research use on site by appointment. Photographs must be handled with cotton gloves unless protected by sleeves.
	Fragile: broken lower left corner; long vertical crease with separated emulsion, upper right; vertical scratch across subject's face and hat.
	Ruth Ellington Collection Photographs (Series 9).
Names: Topic: Genre/Form:	Ellington, Duke, 1899-1974 African American composers Portraits African American men
	Photographs 1920-1930 Black-and-white photoprints Silver gelatin
Herb Ellis, Lou Lev	y, and others
Albert Finney	
Gerald Ford, Roy Rogers, and Dale Evans	

- Box 14 Ford White House
- Box 14 Tommy Flanagan, Keeter Betts, and others, 1977
- Box 14 Audrey Franklin, Ella Fitzgerald Child Care Center
- Box 14 **Dizzy Gillespie**

Box 14

Box 14

Box 14

Box 14

[Ella Fitzgerald and Dizzy Gillespie at "The Penguin Club," Oslo, Norway, February 17, 1956.] [Black-and-white photoprint.] 1 Item (unmounted; Silver gelatin on paper.; 7" x 5") Language: English.

Notes: AC0584-0000064.tif (AC Scan No.)

> Unrestricted research access on site by appointment. Gloves required with unprotected photographs.

Photo taken February 17, 1956, photographer unidentified.

	Names: Topic: Place: Genre/Form: Culture:	Included in Archives Center Jazz Appreciation Month display, April 1-May 31, 1910, "Jazz at the Philharmonic - Bringing Jazz to the World," curated by Wendy Shay. Fitzgerald, Ella, 1917-1996 Gillespie, Dizzy, 1917-1993 Jazz musicians African American singers 1950-1960 African American musicians Norway Oslo (Norway) Photographs 1950-1960 Black-and-white photoprints Silver gelatin African Americans
Box 14 D	izzy Gillespie, Lo	u Levy, Paul Smith, Roy Eldridge
Box 14	Eldridge, Ella white photopri 1 Item (unmou Image(s): [Mu Stewardess, F Smith, ca. 195 Collector: Language: Notes:	d others exiting Sabena airplane. Left to right: Stewardess, Roy Fitzgerald, Dizzy Gillespie, Lou Levy, and Paul Smith, [Black-and- int.], [ca. 1956.] unted; Silver gelatin on paper.; 7" x 9-1/2") sicians and others exiting Sabena airplane. Left to right: Roy Eldridge, Ella Fitzgerald, Dizzy Gillespie, Lou Levy, and Paul 56.] [Black-and-white photoprint.]. Fitzgerald, Ella, 1917-1996 English. AC0584-0000062.tif (AC Scan No.) Unrestricted research access on site by appointment. Gloves required with unprotected photographs. Photo taken circa 1956. Included in Archives Center Jazz Appreciation Month display, April 1-May 31, 2010, "Jazz at the Philharmonic-Bringing Jazz to the World," curated by Wendy Shay. Creases, upper right.
	Names:	Fitzgerald, Ella, 1917-1996 Gillespie, Dizzy, 1917-1993 Levy, Lou Smith, Paul Eldridge, Roy Sabena Airlines
	Topic: Genre/Form: Culture:	Airplanes Landing Jazz musicians African American singers 1950-1960 African American musicians Photographs 1950-1960 Black-and-white photoprints Silver gelatin African Americans
Box 14 B	enny Goodman	

Page 40 of 137

Box 14	Benny Goodman, Hugh Downs, Mortimer Adler, and unidentified others
Box 14	Norman Granz
Box 14	Norman Granz and Count Basie
Box 14	Norman Granz and unidentified male and boy
Box 14	Lorne Greene
Box 14	Gregory Hines
Box 14	Earl Hines, Count Basie, and others
Box 14	Al Hirt and unidentified male and female
Box 14	Dustin Hoffman
Box 14	Hubert Humphry
Box 14	Glenda Jackson
Box 14	JATP Personnel includes Lou Levy, Roy Eldridge, Buddy Rich, John Lewis
Box 14	Oscar Jimenez and unidentified others
Box 14	"Jitterbug" Judy
Box 14	Jimmy Jones
Box 14	Elton John autographed
Box 14	Lyndon Johnson
Box 14	Marva Josie, Earl Hines, Count Basie, Tommy Flanagan, and others
Box 14	Danny Kaye, Al Hirt, and unidentified female
Box 14	Robert Kennedy
Box 14	Dorothy Kilgallen
Box 14	Dorothy Kilgallen
Box 14	Alan King and unidentified others
Box 14	Alan King and unidentified others

Box 14	Cleo Laine and John Dankworth
Box 14	Sophia Loren
Box 15	Chuck Magione and others, Memorex shoot
Box 15	Johnny Mathis, Woody Herman, Dave Brubeck, and others
Box 15	Arnold Maxim and Grammy Award, 1963
Box 15	Michael Maxwell, Pete Cavello
Box 15	Willie Mays, circa 1960
Box 15	Carrol O'Conner
Box 15	Joe Pass
Box 15	Oscar Peterson and others
Box 15	Oscar Peterson and unidentified others
Box 15	Oscar Peterson and Joe Pass
Box 15	Oscar Peterson, Herb Ellis at Panama Canal
	 [Ella Fitzgerald in Panama : photoprint], [ca. 1955.] 1 Item (3-9/16" x 3-1/2".) Language: English. Notes: AC0584.000009.tif (AC Scan, Front) Silver gelatin on paper. Subject standing with four other persons. Shown in exhibition "Jazz Photographs: Composed and Improvised," Archives Center display cases, National Museum of American History, March 28-May 10, 2005. Names: Jazz Photographs: Composed and Improvised (Archives Center display cases, National Museum of American History, March 28-May 10, 2005). Topic: Jazz musicians African American singers 1950-1960 Place: Panama Genre/Form: Photographs 1950-2000 Black-and-white photoprints Silver gelatin Culture: African Americans 1950-1960
	[Ella Fitzgerald in Panama: photograph], [ca. 1955.]

1 Item (3-9/16" x 3-1/2".) Language: English.

Notes:	AC0584.0000010.tif (AC Scan, Front)
	Silver gelatin on paper.
	Subject is shown operating a drinking fountain, with a life preserver hung on a pole.
	Shown in exhibition "Jazz Photographs: Composed and Improvised," Archives Center display cases, National Museum of American History, March 28-May 10, 2005.
Names:	Jazz Photographs: Composed and Improvised (Archives Center display cases, National Museum of American History, March 28-May 10, 2005).
Topic:	Jazz musicians
	African American singers 1950-1960
Place:	Panama
Genre/Form:	Photographs 1950-2000 Black-and-white photoprints Silver gelatin
Culture:	African Americans 1950-1960

[Ella Fitzgerald in Panama: photoprint], [ca. 1955.]

1 Item (3-9/16"	' x 3-1/2".)
Language:	English.
Notes:	AC0584.0000011.tif (AC Scan, Front)
	Silver gelatin on paper.
	Subjects stands on railroad car, talking to two men.
	Shown in exhibition "Jazz Photographs: Composed and Improvised," Archives Center display cases, National Museum of American History, March 28-May 10, 2005.
Names:	Jazz Photographs: Composed and Improvised (Archives Center display cases, National Museum of American History, March 28-May 10, 2005).
Topic:	Jazz musicians
	African American singers 1950-1960
Place:	Panama
Genre/Form:	Photographs 1950-2000 Black-and-white photoprints Silver gelatin
Culture:	African Americans 1950-1960

[Ella Fitzgerald in Panama photograph], [ca. 1955.]

1 Item (3-9/16"	x 3-1/2".)
Language:	English.
Notes:	AC0584.0000012.tif (AC Scan, Front)
	Silver gelatin on paper.
	Subject is shown walking up steps, with a canal boat behind her.
	Shown in exhibition "Jazz Photographs: Composed and Improvised," Archives Center display cases, National Museum of American History, March 28-May 10, 2005.
Names:	Jazz Photographs: Composed and Improvised (Archives Center display cases, National Museum of American History, March 28-May 10, 2005).
Topic:	Jazz musicians

Place: Genre/Form: Culture:	African American singers 1950-1960 Panama Photographs 1950-2000 Black-and-white photoprints Silver gelatin African Americans 1950-1960
[Ella Fitzgerald 1 Item (3-9/16' Language: Notes:	in Panama: photograph], [ca. 1955.] ' x 3-1/2".) English. AC0584.0000013.tif (AC Scan, Front) Silver gelatin on paper. Subject is leaning out a boat window.
	Shown in exhibition "Jazz Photographs: Composed and Improvised," Archives Center display cases, National Museum of American History, March 28-May 10, 2005.
Names:	Jazz Photographs: Composed and Improvised (Archives Center display cases, National Museum of American History, March 28-May 10, 2005).
Topic:	Jazz musicians African American singers 1950-1960
Place:	Panama
Genre/Form:	Photographs 1950-2000 Black-and-white photoprints Silver gelatin
Culture:	African Americans 1950-1960

[Ella Fitzgerald in Panama: photograph], [ca. 1955.]

1 Item (3-9/16" x 3-1/2".)		
Language:	English.	
Notes:	AC0584.0000014.tif (AC Scan, Front)	
	Silver gelatin on paper.	
	Subject is shown talking to a man in uniform.	
	Shown in exhibition "Jazz Photographs: Composed and Improvised," Archives Center display cases, National Museum of American History, March 28-May 10, 2005.	
Names:	Jazz Photographs: Composed and Improvised (Archives Center display cases, National Museum of American History, March 28-May 10, 2005).	
Topic:	Jazz musicians	
	African American singers 1950-1960	
Place:	Panama	
Genre/Form:	Photographs 1950-2000 Black-and-white photoprints Silver gelatin	
Culture:	African Americans 1950-1960	

[Ella Fitzgerald in Panama: photograph], [ca. 1955.]1 Item (3-9/16" x 3-1/2".)Language:English.Notes:AC0584.0000015.tif (AC Scan, Front)Silver gelatin on paper.

	Subject is shown standing beside railroad track, talking to men on boat.
	Shown in exhibition "Jazz Photographs: Composed and Improvised," Archives Center display cases, National Museum of American History, March 28-May 10, 2005.
Names:	Jazz Photographs: Composed and Improvised (Archives Center display cases, National Museum of American History, March 28-May 10, 2005).
Topic:	Jazz musicians
	African American singers 1950-1960
Place:	Panama
Genre/Form:	Photographs 1950-2000 Black-and-white photoprints Silver gelatin
Culture:	African Americans 1950-1960

[Ella Fitzgerald in Panama: photograph], [ca. 1955.]

1 Item (3-9/16" x 3-1/2".)		
English.		
AC0584.0000016.tif (AC Scan, Front)		
Silver gelatin on paper.		
Subject is shown standing near railroad track, talking to men on boat.		
Shown in exhibition "Jazz Photographs: Composed and Improvised," Archives Center display cases, National Museum of American History, March 28-May 10, 2005.		
Jazz Photographs: Composed and Improvised (Archives Center display cases, National Museum of American History, March 28-May 10, 2005).		
Jazz musicians		
African American singers 1950-1960		
Panama		
Photographs 1950-2000 Black-and-white photoprints Silver gelatin		
African Americans 1950-1960		

[Ella Fitzgerald in Panama: photoprint], [ca. 1955.]

' x 3-1/2".)
English.
AC0584.0000017.tif (AC Scan, Front)
Silver gelatin on paper.
Subject is shown standing on a railroad car.
Shown in exhibition "Jazz Photographs: Composed and Improvised," Archives Center display cases, National Museum of American History, March 28-May 10, 2005.
Jazz Photographs: Composed and Improvised (Archives Center display cases, National Museum of American History, March 28-May 10, 2005).
Jazz musicians African American singers 1950-1960

	Place: Genre/Form: Culture:	Panama Photographs 1950-2000 Black-and-white photoprints Silver gelatin African Americans 1950-1960
	[Ella Fitzgerald 1 Item (3-9/16" Language: Notes: Names:	 d in Panama: photoprint], [ca. 1955.] ' x 3-1/2".) English. AC0584.0000018.tif (AC Scan, Front) Silver gelatin on paper. Subject is shown leaning out of a boat window. Shown in exhibition "Jazz Photographs: Composed and Improvised," Archives Center display cases, National Museum of American History, March 28-May 10, 2005. Jazz Photographs: Composed and Improvised (Archives Center display cases, National Museum of American History, National Museum of American History,
	Topic: Place: Genre/Form: Culture:	March 28-May 10, 2005). Jazz musicians African American singers 1950-1960 Panama Photographs 1950-2000 Black-and-white photoprints Silver gelatin African Americans 1950-1960
Box 15	Johnny Ray	
Box 15	Reagan White Hou	se
Box 15	Ronald Reagan aut	tographed
Box 15	Buddy Rich and un	identified others
Box 15	Nelson Riddle	
Box 15	Chuck Robb, Lynda	a Bird Johnson Robb, Gregory Peck, unidentifiedothers
Box 15	Mrs. Jackie Robins	on (Rachel Robinson)
Box 15	Richard Rogers, Eu	ubie Blake, Nobel Sissel, Johnny Mercer, and others
Box 15	Count Romanoff	
Box 15	Rowen and Martin	
Box 15	Frank Sinatra, Red	Buttons, and unidentifiedmale
Box 15	Frank Sinatra and o	others

Box 15	Frank Shane
Box 15	Ed Sullivan, Keter Betts, and others
Box 15	Clark Terry and Norman Granz
Box 15	Sarah Vaughan
	 [Ella Fitzgerald with Sarah Vaughan : photoprint], [ca. 1950.] 1 Item (10" x 8".) Language: English. Notes: AC0584.0000002.tif (AC Scan, Front) Silver gelatin on paper. Subjects are shown with drinks in hand, standing in front of a bar, probably at a reception. Shown in exhibition "Jazz Photographs: Composed and Improvised," Archives Center display cases, National Museum of American History, March 28-May 10, 2005. Names: Vaughan, Sarah, 1924-1990 Jazz Photographs: Composed and Improvised (Archives Center display cases, National Museum of American History, March 28-May 10, 2005). Topic: Jazz musicians African American singers 1950-1960 Genre/Form: Photographs 1950-2000 Black-and-white photoprints Silver gelatin Culture: African Americans 1950-1960
Box 15	Joe Williams, Herb Jeffries, Benny Carter
Box 15	Joe Williams and Jillian Williams
Box 15	Gerard Wilson, Tom Bradley, Benny Carter, Harry "Sweets" Edison
Box 15	Teddy Wilson and unidentified others
Box 15	Maury Wills
Box 15	Stevie Wonder, Lou Rawls, Cab Calloway and Ella
	[Ella Fitzgerald, Cab Calloway, Stevie Wonder, and Lou Rawls black-and-white photoprint.]1 ItemLanguage:English.Notes:AC 02058401.tif (AC Scan No.)Silver gelatin on paper.Unrestricted research access on site by appointment. Gloves required with unprotected photographs.

	Photographer unidentified.Names:Fitzgerald, Ella, 1917-1996 Calloway, Cab, 1907-1994 Wonder, Stevie Rawls, LouTopic:African American musicians Genre/Form:Genre/Form:Photographs Black-and-white photoprints Silver gelatin 1960-1970Culture:African Americans
Box 15	Natalie Wood
Box 15	Whitney Young
Box 16	unidentified males, 1930s/1940s
Box 16	unidentified males, 1950s/1960s
Box 16	unidentified males, 1950s/1960s
Box 16	unidentified males, 1970s
Box 16	unidentified males, 1980s
Box 16	unidentified females, 1950s/1960s
Box 16	unidentified females, 1970s
Box 16	unidentified children, from 1950s
Box 16	unidentified children
Box 16	unidentified groups, 1950s/1960s
Box 16	unidentified groups, 1970s
Box 17	unidentified family, 1950s
Box 17	unidentified persons circa1959 includes one photo of Oscar Peterson
Box 17	unidentified Boy Scouts
Box 17	Soldier in Berlin, mid 1950s
Box 17	Ella at studios and radio stations with unidentified males
Box 17	Ella accepting awards from unidentified

Box 17	Ella with various unidentified people various possible dates
Box 18	unidentified males at Fairmont Hotel, 1956, 1961, 1962
Box 18	unidentified male at The Grove, Los Angeles
Box 18	unidentified males at Basin Street East, undated
Box 18	unidentified people at Birdland, undated
Box 18	unidentified female at Coconut Grove
Box 18	unidentified people at Café Society, undated
Box 18	unidentified people at Peacock Lane, undated
Box 18	unidentified people at Sardis, undated
Box 18	unidentified males at Latin Casino, undated
Box 18	Ella with various unidentified people at various dates
Box 26	With Count Basie and Frank Sinatra
Box 18	With Benny Carter
Box 26	With Norman Granz in recording studio, circa 1950s
	[Ella Fitzgerald and Norman Granz at microphone : color photoprint.]1 Item (unmounted; 10-7/8 x 13-3/4")Collector:Fitzgerald, Ella, 1917-1996Language:English.Notes:AC0584-0000052.tif (AC Scan No.)Silver gelatin on paper.Unrestricted research access on site by appointment. Gloves required with unprotected photographs.The "ghost" or double image probably occurred because this photograph was taken through a glass window in the recording

African American singers -- 1950-1960

to the World," curated by Wendy Shay. Diagonal crease in center of print.

studio. Photographer unidentified. No marks on verso of print. Included in Archives Center Jazz Appreciation Month display, April 1-May 31, 2010, "Jazz at the Philharmonic--Bringing Jazz

Granz, Norman

Microphones Recording studios

Names: Topic:

	African American musicians Genre/Form: Photographs Black-and-white photoprints Silver gelatin 1960-1970 Culture: African Americans
Box 18	With Norman Granz, circa 1970s
Box 18	With Norman Granz and two young girls in studio, circa 1950s
Box 18	With Burt Reynolds, Lonnie Anderson, and Mel Torme
Box 18	With Joe Williams and unidentified others at home, circa 1950s/1960s
Box 18	With unidentified female, undated
Box 18	With unidentified female, undated
Box 18	With unidentified female, circa 1960s
Box 18	With group of women, souvenir photo, Flamingo Hotel, circa 1960s
Box 18	With fans, undated
Box 18	With unidentified group
Box 18	unidentified special event, group photo includes Bille Jean Moffitt, 1965
Box 18	unidentified group, 1984
Box 18	With Brazilian singer Eliana Pittman and others, undated

. . .

Subseries 2.5: Ella Fitzgerald - Candid Photographs

Box 19	snapshots - various dates
Box 19	snapshots, 1945 and 1950s
Box 19	Press Association Limited, London
Box 19	Photo by H.B Pflaum-Gebhart
Box 19	Souvenir photo – Fabulous Flamingo
Box 19	Various photos, circa 1950s
Box 19	Ella Fitzgerald in front of her house, circa 1950

Box 19	Souvenir photos, dressing room, Basin Street East
Box 19	Pasadena Civic Center, 1960
Box 19	Snapshots, 1962
Box 19	Souvenir photo, Fairmont Hotel
Box 19	Various photos, circa 1960s
Box 19	Photo by Beryl Bryden, London, circa 1960s
Box 19	Souvenir photo, Flamingo Hotel, circa 1960s
Box 19	Souvenir photo, Americana Hotel, circa 1960
Box 19	Photo by James Gilbert, circa 1960s
Box 19	Souvenir photo, Basin Street East, circa 1960s
Box 19	Photos, circa1970s
Box 19	Grammy Award, 1976?
Box 19	At Heathrow Airport, London
Box 19	V.I.P. Photo, undated
Box 19	Photo by Dudley L. Stouch, undated
Box 19	Various photos, undated
Box 20	On Airplane, circa 1980
Box 20	Snapshot, circa1985
Box 20	Capital City Jazz Festival
Box 20	Photo by Michael Wilderman, undated
Box 20	Snapshots, undated
Box 20	Photo by John Davison, undated
Box 20	Various photos, undated
Box 20	At University of Maryland, Eastern Shore, -1974

Box 20	At Dartmouth
Box 20	At Boston University
Box 20	At Howard University
Box 20	At University of Maryland, Eastern Shore
Box 20	At Johns Hopkins, 1983
Box 20	At Yale University
Box 20	At Washington University
Box 20	At UCLA, 1987
Box 20	At Harvard, 1990
Box 27	Photo by Ray Fisher, 1958
Box 20	Photo by Henry J. Kahanek, undated
Box 20	At the Flamingo Hotel, photo by Ed Thrasher, 1971
Box 20	Ella Fitzgerald in front of the Ella Fitzgerald Child Care Center
Box 20	Unidentified photos, circa 1950 -1960
Box 20	Unidentified photo, undated

Subseries 2.6: Performing Venues

Box 21	Argentina
Box 21	Aztec Bowl, San Diego State University
Box 21	Basin Street East
Box 21	Greek Theater, Los Angeles CA
Box 21	International Plaza, Vancouver, BC
Box 21	Latin Casino
Box 21	Lloyd Center, Portland OR

Box 21	Mt. Hood Festival of Jazz
Box 21	Music Center Pavilion Dorothy Chandler, Los Angeles CA
Box 21	Pasadena Civic Auditorium
Box 21	Sea World

Subseries 2.8: Photographs Negatives, Transparencies, and Slides

Box 28	Copy negatives of photos in collection
Box 28	Ella – assorted slides and transparencies
Box 28	Ella and Basie, 1963 July
Box 28	Candid slides and negatives, 1964 April, undated
Box 28	Ella Performing Alone
Box 28	Ella and Oscar Peterson
Box 28	Ella's House
Box 28	Dizzy Gillespie – negatives and transparencies

Series 2.9: Oversize

Box 29	Ella Fitzgerald Performing, Seattle, 1976
Box 29	Ella Fitzgerald Performing, 1983 July 14
Box 29	With Ed Thigpen and other musicians
Box 29	Jacket Shot: Ella Fitzgerald's Christmas
Box 29	Portrait photo of Ella Fitzgerald, circa 1956
Box 29	With unknown woman
Box 29	With Oscar Peterson
Box 29	With Joe Williams, Benny Carter, and others
Box 29	With crew from "Let No Man Write My Epitaph"
Box 29	Sammy Davis 60th Anniversary
Box 29	1983 July 14
Box 29	Nat "King" Cole
Box 29	Duke Ellington
Box 29	Dinah Shore
Box 29	Frank Sinatra
Box 30	Photo Albums
Box 31	Photo Albums
	Crew of the Space Shuttle "Columbia"

[Duke Ellington conducting : black-and-white photoprint], [circa 1940-1950?]1 Item (photoprint; 7 x 5 in (18.10 x 12.6 cm.))Photographer:Bernateau ((Paris, France))Language:English.Notes:AC0415-0000004.tif (AC Scan)Silver gelatin on paper, unmounted.In Box 15, unfoldered.

	Unrestricted research use on site by appointment. Photographs must be handled with cotton gloves unless protected by sleeves.
	Photographed from a low angle, Duke's mouth is wide open and his conducting hand is blurred, against a black background. Glossy print, borderless. Rubber stamp imprint on verso: "(c) by Studio Bernateau / Orange - Tel. 34.04.46 / S.P.A.D.E.M. Paris."
	Ruth Ellington Collection Photographs (Series 9).
	Reproduced in Merry Foresta, ed., At First Sight: Photography and the Smithsonian. Washington, D.C.: Smithsonian Books, 2003, p. 259; and reproduced on Smithsonian Photographic Initiative web site.
Names: Culture: Topic:	Ellington, Duke, 1899-1974 African Americans African American musicians Conducting Conductors 20th century
Genre/Form:	Musicians 20th century Photographs 1940-1950 Black-and-white photoprints Silver gelatin

Series 3: Scripts, 1957-1981

Scope and Series 3, Scripts, 195-1980 Scripts from Fitzgerald's appearances on variety shows such as "The Contents: Hollywood Palace," "The Ed Sullivan Show," as well as TV specials hosted by Frank Sinatra and the vocal group The Carpenters. Some scripts have hand-written notation. This series is organized chronologically according to the date of the shows.

Box 32, Folder 1	Nat "King" Cole Show, 1957 November 19
Box 32, Folder 2	Dinah Shore Chevy Show, 1958 October 12
Box 32, Folder 3	Gary Moore Show, 1959 January 13
Box 32, Folder 4	Dinah Shore Chevy Show, 1959 March 8
Box 32, Folder 5	Eddie Fisher Show, 1959 March 17
Box 33, Folder 1	Texaco "Swing Into Spring", 1959 April 10
Box 33, Folder 2	Gary Moore Show, 1959 May 26
Box 33, Folder 3	Gary Moore Show, 1959 May 26
Box 33, Folder 4	Let No Man Write My Epitaph, 1959 October 9
Box 33, Folder 5	Let No Man Write My Epitaph - EF marked script, 1959 October 9
Box 33, Folder 6	Gary Moore Show, 1959 October 13
Box 33, Folder 7	Pat Boone Chevy Showroom, 1959 October 29
Box 34, Folder 1	Dinah Shore Chevy Show, 1960 January 10
Box 34, Folder 2	Gary Moore Show, 1960 March 29
Box 34, Folder 3	Person to Person, 1960 April 20
Box 34, Folder 4	John F. Kennedy Inauguration Gala, 1961 January 20
Box 34, Folder 5	Andy Williams Show, 1965 November 15
Box 34, Folder 6	Andy Williams Show, 1965 November 15
Box 34, Folder 7	Perry Como - Kraft Music Hall, 1966 April 25
Box 35, Folder 1	Andy Williams Show, 1967 January 1

Box 35, Folder 2	Hollywood Palace, 1967 February 11
Box 35, Folder 3	Frank Sinatra: A Man and His Music, 1967 November 13
Box 35, Folder 4	Frank Sinatra: A Man and His Music, 19967 November 13
Box 35	Carol Burnett Show, 1967 December 6
Box 35, Folder 5	Jonathan Winters Show, 1968 October 16
Box 35, Folder 6	Carol Burnett Show, 1968 November 18
Box 35, Folder 7	Carol Burnett Show, 1969 November 11
Box 36, Folder 1	Glen Campbell Goodtime Hour, 1970 January 3
Box 36, Folder 2	Andy Williams Show, 1970 October 17
Box 36, Folder 3	Flip Show, 1970 November 26
Box 36, Folder 4	Pearl Baily Show, 1971 April 27
Box 37, Folder 1	Pearl Baily Show, 1971 April 27
Box 37, Folder 2	Timex All-Star Swing Festival, 1972 October 23
Box 37, Folder 3	6th Annual Dinner-Congressional Black Caucus, 1976 September 9
Box 37, Folder 4	Captain and Tenille Songbook- Tape Schedule, 1979 February 14
Box 37, Folder 5	Richard and Karen Carpenter Present "Music, Music, Music", 1980 April 26
Box 37, Folder 6	The White Shadow, 1981 January 26
Box 38, Folder 1	Jo Stafford Show, 1961 July 7
Box 38, Folder 2	Pearl Baily TV Special, undated
Box OS	Heart of New York Gala

Series 4: Correspondence, 1960-1996

Scope and Contents:		Correspondence Business and personal letters written to Fitzgerald, many from musical and other celebrities, fan mail and cards, and cards signed by Ms. Fitzgerald, but never
Box 39, Fol	der 1	Cards and Fan Mail, 1956
Box 39, Fol	der 2	Cards and Fan Mail, 1958
Box 39, Fol	der 3	Cards and Fan Mail, 1959
Box 39, Fol	der 4	Cards and Fan Mail, 1960
Box 39, Fol	der 5	Cards and Fan Mail, 1961
Box 39, Fol	der 6	Cards and Fan Mail, 1963
Box 39, Fol	der 7	Cards and Fan Mail, 1964
Box 39, Fol	der 8	Cards and Fan Mail, 1968
Box 39, Fol	der 9	Cards and Fan Mail, 1973
Box 39, Fol	der 10	Cards and Fan Mail, 1974
Box 39, Fol	der 11	Cards and Fan Mail, 1975
Box 39, Fol	der 12	Cards and Fan Mail, 1977
Box 39, Fol	der 13	Cards and Fan Mail, 1978
Box 39, Fol	der 14	Cards and Fan Mail, 1980
Box 39, Fol	der 15	Cards and Fan Mail, 1981
Box 39, Fol	der 16	Cards and Fan Mail, 1984
Box 39, Fol	der 17	Cards and Fan Mail, 1985
Box 39, Fol	der 18	Cards and Fan Mail, 1985
Box 39, Fol	der 19	Cards and Fan Mail, 1986
Box 39, Fol	der 20	Cards and Fan Mail, 1987
Box 39, Fol	der 21	Cards and Fan Mail, 1988

Box 39, Folder 22	Cards and Fan Mail, 1988
Box 39, Folder 23	Cards and Fan Mail, 1989
Box 40, Folder 1	Cards and Fan Mail, 1990
Box 40, Folder 2	Cards and Fan Mail, 1991
Box 40, Folder 3	Cards and Fan Mail, 1991 December
Box 40, Folder 4	Cards and Fan Mail, 1992
Box 40, Folder 5	Cards and Fan Mail, 1993
Box 40, Folder 6	Cards and Fan Mail, 1994
Box 40, Folder 7	Cards and Fan Mail, 1995
Box 40, Folder 8	Cards and Fan Mail, 1995
Box 40, Folder 9	Get Well Cards
Box 40, Folder 10	Cards and Fan Mail, 1996
Box 41, Folder 1	Christmas Cards from Friends - signed
Box 41, Folder 2	Christmas Cards from Friends
Box 41, Folder 3	Birthday Cards from Friends - signed
Box 41, Folder 4	Get Well Cards from Friends
Box 41, Folder 5	Cards and Fan Mail, undated
Box 41, Folder 6	Cards and Fan Mail, undated
Box 41, Folder 7	Cards and Fan Mail, undated
Box 42, Folder 1	From Friends and Colleagues: A-M
Box 42, Folder 2	From Friends and Colleagues: N-Z
Box 42, Folder 4	Thank You Letters to Fitzgerald
Box 42, Folder 5	Letters regarding songs sent to Fitzgerald for consideration
Box 42, Folder 6	From Jimmy McHugh

Box 42, Folder 7	From Notable Music Co.
Box 42, Folder 8	From the Richmond Organization
Box 42, Folder 9	Invitations from Friends and Colleagues
Box 42, Folder 10	Black Family Reunion
Box 42, Folder 11	International Jazz Hall of Fame
Box 42, Folder 12	Knute Rockne Foundation
Box 42, Folder 13	Ella Fitzgerald and Harriette E. Shields Child Care Centers
Box 42, Folder 14	White House Christmas Cards
Box 42, Folder 15	White House Invitations
Box 42, Folder 16	White House Correspondence, Reagan – Clinton
Box 42, Folder 17	[Western Union telegram to Ella Fitzgerald, 1957, complimenting her on program. Telegram.], 1957 Notes: Ellington, Duke, 1899-1974, Author "I had the best seat goodluck [sic] love you madly" AC0584-0000092.tif (AC Scan) Topic: African American singers 1950-1960 Telegrams
Box 43, Folder 1	Letters from Fitzgerald
Box 43, Folder 2	Thank you Notes from Fitzgerald Notes: The notes were signed and addressed, but never sent.
Box 43, Folder 3	Christmas cards from Fitzgerald
Box 43, Folder 4	Signed cards from Fitzgerald
Box 43, Folder 5	Personal stationary: blank
Box OS	Cards and Fan Mail

Series 5: Business Records, 1954-1990

Scope and Series 5, Business Records Contracts covering Fitzgerald performances from 1952 until 1969. They Contents: are predominately domestic performances, and are arranged by date. There are also song lists for performances, itineraries, foreign work permits, and publicity materials. Many of the song lists are in Fitzgerald's hand and are written on envelopes, hotel stationary, and grocery lists. There are also Fitzgerald's handwritten pages of lyrics to oft-performed, well-known songs.

raries

Box 44 Contracts

Box 44	Correspondence re	egarding hotel and travel arrangements
Box 44	Hotel and Travel R	eceipts
Box 44		ket coupon for Ella Fitzgerald], [issued January 14, 1959.] Inted; 3-1/2" x 12-1/2") Fitzgerald, Ella, 1917-1996 Capital Airlines, Inc. (issuer) English. AC0584-0000053.tif (AC Scan No.) Unrestricted research access on site by appointment. Gloves required with unprotected photographs. Issued by Capital Airlines, Inc. Ticket is blue. Acompanied by a card or tag in green ink.

ciuded in Archives Center Ja Appreciation Month display, April 1-May 31, 2010, "Jazz at the Philharmonic--Bringing Jazz to the World," curated by Wendy Shay. Transportation

Iopic:	Iransportation	
	Jazz musicians	
	African American singers 1950-1960	
	African American musicians	
Genre/Form:	Passenger ticket coupon	
	Tickets	
Culture:	African Americans	

Box 44

Northeast Airlines [ticket jacket], [undated.]

T ---- : ---

Collector:	Fitzgerald, Ella, 1917-1996
Creator:	Northeast Airlines
Language:	English.
Notes:	AC0584-0000054.tif (AC Scan No.)
	Unrestricted research access on site by appointment. Gloves required with unprotected photographs.
	Red, white, and blue, with green ink.

	Topic: Genre/Form: Culture:	Included in Archives Center Jazz Appreciation Month display, April 1-May 31, 2010, "Jazz at the PhilharmonicBringing Jazz to the World," curated by Wendy Shay. Jazz musicians African American singers 1950-1960 African American musicians Airline ticket jacket Tickets African Americans
Box 44	International Work	Permits
Box 44	Financial Records	and Information
Box 44	Typed on crea	d's royalty statement, October 1, 1956-December 31, 1956. m-colored paper.] unted; Ink on paper.; 8-1/2" x 11-1/4") Norman Granz' Jazz at the Philharmonic, Inc. English. AC0584-0000059.tif (AC Scan No.) October 1, 1956 - December 31, 1056. Included in Archives Center Jazz Appreciation Month display, April 1-May 31, 1910, "Jazz at the Philharmonic - Bringing Jazz to the World," curated by Wendy Shay. Jazz musicians African American singers 1950-1960 African American musicians Financial statements Statements African Americans
Box 44		erican Guild of Variety Artists, ASCAP, American Federation of dio Artists, Screen Actors Guild
Box 44	Song Title Lists for	Performances
Box 44	Lyrics to Songs Pe Notes: Ha	erformed andwritten by Fitzgerald.
Box 44	General Business	Correspondence
Box 44	Miscellaneous Not	es
Box 44	Publicity	
Box 44	Promotional	
Box 44	Business Cards	

Box 44	Print Ads Featuring Fitzgerald
Box 44	Autographs
Box OS	Promotional, Song Titles Lists Ella's handwriting
Box 60	Film Theater Lobby Cards, American Express print ad

Series 6: Awards and Honorary Degrees, 1959-2002

- Scope and Series 6, Honorary Degrees and Awards, 1960-1996 Honorary degrees and awards presented to Ella Fitzgerald by various universities including Howard University, the University of Southern California, UCLA, and Boston University, among others. The awards are from jazz and music organizations as well as charitable groups whose work Ms. Fitzgerald supported. The series is organized chronologically.
- Box 45 Washington DC Boys Club, 1959 June 24
- Box 45 Jet Jazz Poll Award, 1960
- Box 45 Jazz Journal Poll, 1960
- Box 45 California Council for Retarded Children, 1965 January 29
- Box 45 Times Woman of the Year, 1966
- Box 45 Ella's Night, 1968 December 1
- Box 45 Deutsche Phono-Akademie, 1975 May 15
- Box 45 City University Los Angeles, 1975 June
- Box 45 Dartmouth College, 1976 July
- Box 45 A Tribute to the First Lady of Song, 1976 October 17
- Box 45 Women at Work Bicentennial Queen, 1976
- Box 45 City of Lansing, 1978 April 15
- Box 45 Ella Fitzgerald Day, Galveston, Texas, 1978 November 16
- Box 45 Boston University, 1978 May
- Box 45 Kennedy Center Honors, 1979
- Box 45 Hampton Institute, 1979 June 30
- Box 45 University of Maryland, Eastern Shore, 1974, 1980 May
- Box 45 Encyclopedia Britannica Achievement in Life Award, 1980 October 2
- Box 45 Talladega College, 1980 October
- Box 46 Howard University, 1980 September

Box 46	Kennedy Center Honors, 1981
Box 46	Harvard University, Hasty Pudding Club, 1982 February
Box 46	Ella Fitzgerald Day, Pittsburgh, Pennsylvania, 1982 June 13
Box 46	Peabody Medal, 1983
Box 46	American Black Achievement Award, 1983 January 16
Box 46	Jazz Forum of Atlanta, 1984 June 22
Box 46	Governor's Arts Award, 1985
Box 46	Upper Dublin, Pennsylvania Parent Teacher Council, 1986 April 26
Box 46	Yale University, 1986 May
Box 46	Jackie Robinson Award, 1987 April 16
Box 46	University of California, Los Angeles, 1987 June
Box 46	Washington University, St.Louis, Missouri, 1987 May
Box 46	University of California, Los Angeles, 1987 June 14
Box 46	Franklin and Marshall, 1987 November 30
Box 46	University of
Box 46	Ella's Birthday Celebration, 2002 May 28
Box 47	Childhelp USA, 1989
Box 47	Princeton University, 1990 June
Box 47	Essence Awards, 1990
Box 47	Harvard University, 1990 June
Box 47	George Washington University, 1991 February
Box 47	Ella! A Celebration Honoring Ella Fitzgerald, University of Southern California, 1992 May
Box 47	University of Southern California, 1994 May 6

Box 47	Museum Junior High School, 1993 June
Box 47	A Salute to Ella Fitzgerald, 1994 February 25
Box 47	International Women in Jazz, 1996 March 31
Box 47	National Academy of Recording Arts and Sciences Grammys
Box 47	Ella Fitzgerald Music Appreciation Society, 1988-1993
Box 48	Song Hits Magazine, 1954 May 25
Box 47	Metronome, 1954
Box 47	Playboy Jazz Poll, 1957
Box 47	Association of the United States Army, San Francisco Chapter, Scroll of Appreciation, 1960 November 11
Box 47	ASCAP, 1965 May
Box 47	Variety Clubs International, 1970 February 14
Box 47	Recognition: Commonwealth of Virginia, 1978
Box 47	Honorary Citizen of Maryland, 1978 March 30
Box 47	Kennedy Center Honors, 1978
Box 48	Resolution of Commendation, Richland County, South Carolina, 1981 October 7
Box 48	Honorary Citizen of Little Rock, Arkansas, 1982 November 20
Box 48	Sinatra Music Society, 1983
Box 48	Toronto, 1985 May 17
Box 48	Commendation, San Francisco, California, 1987 July 6
Box 48	University of California, Los Angeles, 1987 June 14
Box 48	National Medal of Arts, 1987 June 18
Box 48	Shalimar Club Incorporated, 1988 June
Box 48	Yonkers, New York, 1993 April 25

Box 48	County of Los Angeles, 1994 June 26
Box 48	City of Beverly Hills, 1993 April 10
Box 48	Resolution, City Council of the City of Chicago, Illinois, 1996 July 10
Box 48	Certificate, Association for Retarded Citizens, undated
Box 49	Harvard University – Honorary Degree
Box 49	NARAS Hall of Fame, 1986
Box 49	NAACP Equal Justice and the Arts Award, 1981 December 7
Box 49	Los Angeles Cultural Commission, 1987 July 15
Box 49	Ella Fitzgerald Society of Singers Day – Los Angeles, 1989 April 28
Box 49	University of Maryland – Honorary Degree, 1980 May 18
Box 49	Howard University – Honorary Degree
Box 49	Dartmouth University – Honorary Degree
Box 49	Ella Fitzgerald Day, Los Angeles, California, 1976 April 11
Box 49	Order of the Palmetto – South Carolina, 1980 October 23
Box 49	Commonwealth of Virginia
Box 49	Newport News, Virginia, 1979 June 30
Box 49	Kentucky Colonel, Commonwealth of Kentucky, 1983 September 20
Box 49	City of Los Angeles, 1992 April 27
Box 49	State of Minnesota, 1990 June 16
Box 49	State of Michigan, 1979 March 1
Box 49	Resolution, California Legislature, 1976 October 13
Box 49	Proclamation, City of Yonkers, 1993 June 10
Box 49	State of Indiana, Sagamore of the Wabash, 1979 October 14
Box 49	Resolution, California Legislature, 1983 April 5

Box 49	Resolution, California Senate, 1983 April 7
Box 49	Proclamation, Office of the Mayor, Washington, District of Columbia, 1989 October 19
Box 49	County of Los Angeles, 1989 May 28
Box 47	National Academy of Recording Arts and Sciences Nomination Certificate, 1990
Box 49	City of Winnipeg, 1978 June 12
Box 50, Folder 1	Awards and Honors to Others
Box 50, Folder 2	Basie: A Tribute to the Count, 1977

Series 7: Concert Programs and Announcements, 1958-1989, undated

Scope and Series 7, Concert Programs and Announcements, approximately 1950-1992 Includes dated and undated programs from Ella Fitzgerald's solo performances as well as programs and announcements for Jazz at the Philharmonic performances and Ella's performances with Oscar Peterson and other well-known musicians. These are organized chronologically.

Box 51, Folder 1	Celebration of Israel's 10th Anniversary, 1958 May 31
Box 51	Ella Fitzgerald at Carter Barron, 1959 June
Box 51	Jazz at the Philharmonic, 1962 February-March
Box 51, Folder 2	Ella in Japan - Movie, TV, and ShowTime Guide, 1964 March 1
Box 51, Folder 3	A Swinging Evening to Re-Elect Governor Brown, 1966 September 7
Box 51, Folder 4	An Evening With Ella Fitzgerald, 1968 April 26
Box 51, Folder 5	New Orleans -Where to Go Guide, 1969 October 4
Box 51, Folder 6	Los Angeles - Where to Go Guide, 1970 November 7
Box 51, Folder 7	Los Angeles - Where to Go Guide, 1970 December 12
Box 51, Folder 8	Budapest, 1971 April 22
Box 51, Folder 9	Ella and Tommy Flanagan in Italy, 1971 May
Box 51	Fabulous Las Vegas Magazine, 1971 November 27
Box 51, Folder 10	New Orleans - Where to Go Guide, 1972 January 1
Box 51, Folder 11	International Jazz Festival - Nice, 1972 July
Box 51, Folder 12	The Ella Fitzgerald Show - Miami, 1973 May 21
Box 51, Folder 13	Boston Pops, 1973 May 23
Box 51, Folder 14	Buffalo Philharmonic, 1974 December 6
Box 51, Folder 15	Montreaux, 1975 July 20
Box 51	The Concert: Ella Fitzgerald, Count Basie, and Frank SInatra, 1975 September 10
Box 51	Ticket: Ella Fitzgerald, Count Basie and Frank Sinatra, 1975 September 24

Box 51, Folder 16	Van Wezel Performing Arts Hall, Florida, 1975 - 1976
Box 51, Folder 17	International Series, 1975 November 26
Box 51, Folder 18	White House, 1976 July 20
Box 51, Folder 19	Ella Fitzgerald Center for the Performing Arts, University of Maryland, 1976 October 31
Box 51, Folder 20	Pablo Records Presents, 1974
Box 51, Folder 21	Memphis Symphony, 1977 February 24
Box 51, Folder 22	Tulsa Performing Arts Center Gala Opening, 1977 March 19
Box 51	15 Festival Salon de Provence, 1978 July 21
Box 51, Folder 23	North Sea Jazz Festival, 1978 July
Box 51, Folder 24	Temple University Music Festival, 1978 August 23
Box 51, Folder 25	Starlight Festival, Honolulu, 1978 September 12
Box 51, Folder 26	Eric Kunzel and the San Francisco Symphony Orchestra, 1978 November 27
Box 51, Folder 27	Northsea Jazz Festival, 1979 July
Box 51, Folder 28	University of Akron, 1979 September 22
Box 52, Folder 1	New Brunswick, New Jersey, 1980
Box 52, Folder 2	University of Maryland, 1980 May 17
Box 52, Folder 3	Eye Research Institute, 1980 May 24
Box 52, Folder 4	With Oscar Peterson at Grosvenor House, 1980 July 21-26
Box 52, Folder 5	United Negro College Fund, 1980 October 31
Box 52, Folder 6	Ella and Oscar, 1980 July, 1981 April
Box 52, Folder 7	Pioneers of Black Historical Achievement, 1981 September 18
Box 52, Folder 8	Newlin Hall Subscription Series, Kentucky, 1981 October 2
Box 52, Folder 9	Lyon, 1981

Box 52, Folder 10	Ella and Oscar, 1982 March 13	
Box 52, Folder 11	San Francisco, California, 1982 May 16-24	
Box 52, Folder 12	Ravinia Festival, 1982 June 30	
Box 52	With the Paul Smith Trio, Indiana University Auditorium, 1982 October 30	
Box 52, Folder 13	Kool Jazz Festival, Kennedy Center, 1983 June 4	
Box 52, Folder 14	Opera di Genova, 1983 July 24	
Box 52	Ambassador Auditorium, 1984 September	
Box 52, Folder 15	Tulsa Performing Arts Center, 1984 December 15	
Box 52, Folder 16	Faulkner Hospital, 1985 April 12	
Box 52, Folder 17	Royal Philharmonic with Andre Previn, 1985 June 28	
Box 52, Folder 18	Wolf Trap, 1985 July	
Box 52, Folder 19	San Francisco Symphony, 1985 July 24	
Box 52, Folder 20	Montreal International Jazz Festival, 1987 July 4	
Box 52, Folder 21	Hollywood Bowl, 1988 July 20	
Box 52, Folder 22	Toronto Symphony, 1988 November 18	
Box 52, Folder 23	Mt. Hood Jazz Festival, 1988 August 7	
Box 53	Fourth Annual GEMS Gala, 1989 April 9	
Box 53	UCLA Spring Sing, 1989 April 29	
Box 53	Jazz at the Bowl, 1989 July 12	
Box 53	Moulin Rouge, 1989 October 6	
Box 53	Capital City Jazz Festival, 1989 October 19	
Box 53	Ruth Eckerd Hall, 1989 October 28	
Box 53	Hearts for Ella, 1990 February 12	
Box 53	Ella in London with Count Basie, 1990 March	

Box 53	Radio City Music Hall, 1990 April 26
Box 53	Ravinia Festival, 1991 June 14
Box 53	Los Angeles Philharmonic, 1991 August 7
Box 53	Roy Thompson/Massey Hall, 1991 September 13
Box 53	Jazz at the Bowl, 1992 July 5
Box 53	Circle Star Center, 1992
Box 53	Royal Philharmonic, 1992 September 18
Box 53	American Cancer Society
Box 53	Medical College of Wisconsin
Box 53	Ella and the San Francisco Symphony
Box 53	Cincinnati Symphony
Box 53	Resorts Superstar Theater
Box 53	Robinson Center Music Hall
Box 53	Mr. Kelly's
Box 53	Glouster Hall
Box 53	Lyon
Box 53	Miscellaneous
Box 54, Folder 1	Examiner Carrier's Christmas Program, 1957
Box 54, Folder 2	32nd Academy Awards Program, 1960
Box 54, Folder 3	Ella and Oscar, 1963
Box 54, Folder 5	Juan les Pins, 1975 April 19
Box 54, Folder 6	Dallas, 1982 March
Box 54, Folder 7	Napa Valley Symphony League, 1989 July 22
Box 54, Folder 8	Ella and the Symphony, New Orleans

Box 54, Folder 9	Ella Fitzgerald: Continental Airlines		
Box 54, Folder 10	Ella, Nat "King"Cole, and Nelson Riddle, undated		
Box 54, Folder 11	Jazz at the Philharmonic, undated		
Box 54	 [Program for Norman Granz's Jazz at the Philharmonic], [1949.] 1 Item (Ink on paper.; 10-3/4" x 17".) Collector: Fitzgerald, Ella, 1917-1996 Language: English. Notes: AC0584-0000055.tif (AC Scan No.) Unrestricted research access on site by appointment. Gloves required with unprotected photographs. Program notes are surrounded by a montage of performance photographs. Included in Archives Center Jazz Appreciation Month display, April 1-May 31, 2010, "Jazz at the PhilharmonicBringing Jazz to the World," curated by Wendy Shay. 		
	Topic:Jazz musicians African American musiciansGenre/Form:Photographs 1940-1950 Reproductions Concert programsCulture:African Americans		
Box 54	Norman Granz' /Jazz at the / Philharmonic / 16th National Tour [program], 19551 Item (unmounted; 12" x 9")Collector:Fitzgerald, Ella, 1917-1996Producer:Granz, NormanLanguage:English.Notes:AC0584-0000056.tif (AC Scan No.: cover)Cover printed in blue, white, and black.Included in Archives Center Jazz Appreciation Month display, April 1-May 31, 2010, "Jazz at the Philharmonic-Bringing Jazz to the World," curated by Wendy Shay.Topic:Jazz musicians African American singers 1950-1960 African American musicians		
	Genre/Form: Programs Concerts		
Box 54, Folder 12	Pablo Jazz Festival, undated		
Box 54, Folder 13	The Duke Ellington Concert		
Box 54, Folder 14	Ella in Concert, undated		
Box 54, Folder 15	Australia, undated		
Box 54, Folder 16	Programs: Other Performers		

Ella Fitzgerald Papers NMAH.AC.0584

Box 60

Miscellaneous Concert Announcements

Return to Table of Contents

Series 8: Clippings, 1949-1997

Scope and Series 8, Clippings Newspaper and magazine reviews, articles, and performance information, organized chronologically.

Subseries 8.1: Magazine Articles, 1949-1997

Box 55	Black Stars, 1972 January		
Box 55	Cabaret: The Adult Entertainment Magazine, 1957 February Notes: Warning: The article appears in a magazine that may offend some researchers.		
Box 55	Down Beat, 1956 November 28, 1965 November 18, 1979 December, 1996 September		
Box 55	Down Beat. November 28, 1956. [Magazine.]1 Item (unmounted; Ink on paper.; 11" x 8-1/2")Language:English.Notes:AC0584-0000061.tif (AC Scan No.: cover)Black-and-white portrait of Ella Fitzgerald on yellow field.Included in Archives Center Jazz Appreciation Month display, April 1-May 31, 2010, "Jazz at the Philharmonic-Bringing Jazz to the World," curated by Wendy Shay.Names:Fitzgerald, Ella, 1917-1996Topic:Music Periodicals Jazz Jazz musiciansAfrican American singers 1950-1960 African American musiciansGenre/Form:Photographs 1950-1960 Reproductions Periodicals 1940-1970Culture:African Americans		
Box 55	Down Home, Summer 1980		
Box 55	The Enlightener, 1985 May		
Box 55	Esquire, 1985 November		
Box 55	Fabulous Las Vegas Magazine, 1960 April 2		
Box 55	Golden West Magazine, 1967 October - November		
Box 55	Hollywood Reporter, 1990 April 30, 1991 August 9		
Box 55	Jazz Forum, 1992 June		

Box 55	Jazz Magazine, 1957 June	
Box 55	Jazz Magazine, No. 28, June 1957 [magazine] 1 Item (Ink on paper.; 10-3/4" x 8-1/2".) Language: In French. Notes: AC0584-0000060.tif (AC Scan No.: cover.) Portrait of Ella Fitzgerald on cover. Article on p. 20. Included in Archives Center Jazz Appreciation Month display, April 1-May 31, 1910, "Jazz at the Philharmonic - Bringing Jazz to the World," curated by Wendy Shay. Topic: Jazz Jazz musicians African American singers 1950-1960 African American musicians Genre/Form: Periodicals 1940-1970 Photographs 1950-1960 Reproductions Culture: African Americans	
Box 55	Jazz News, 1957 February 14	
Box 55	Jazz Times, 1991 September	
Box 55	Jazziz, 1996 November	
Box 55	Jet, 1988 August 15, 1988 September 5, 1961 January 26	
Box 55	Recordland, 1954 September	
Box 55	Right On!, 1975 April	
Box 55	Soul and Jazz Record, 1976	
Box 55	S.O.S. Newsletter, Fall 1992	
Box 55	What's On In London, 1981 April	
Box 55	Working Woman, 1987 October	
Box 55	Miscellaneous articles	
Box 56	Billboard, 1967 April 18, 1988 September 3, 1988 September 17	
Box 56	Life Magazine, 1997 January, 1990 December	
Box 56	Observer Magazine, 1990 February 25	
Box 56	Our World Magazine, 1949 December	

Box 56	Pulse!, 1990 February		
Box 2 OS	Miscellaneous Articles		
Subseries 8.2: Newsp	papers, circa 1950-circa 1990		
Box 57, Folder 1	1950s		
Box 57, Folder 2	1960s		
Box 57, Folder 3	1970s I		
Box 57, Folder 4	1970s II		
Box 57, Folder 5	1980s I		
Box 57, Folder 6	1980s II		
Box 58, Folder 1	1980s III		
Box 58, Folder 2	1990s		
Box 58, Folder 3	undated		
Box 58, Folder 4	Japanese		
Box 59	Scrapbooks		

Return to Table of Contents

Series 9: Ephemera, 1950 - 1996

Scope and Series 9, Ephemera The remainder of the Fitzgerald materials includes items as diverse as store credit cards, posters, artwork, books, and other types of ephemera. All of the books have been inscribed to Ella.

Subseries 9.1: Album Jackets without LPs

Box 63	Ella and Louis 2 Items	
Box 63	Ella and Oscar, 1976	
Box 63	Ella at Juan-les-Pins	
Box 63	Ella In Hollywood	
Box 63	Ella Swings Brightly With Nelson	
Box 63	Ella Fitzgerald, 1974	
Box 63	Ella Fitzgerald Sings the Cole Porter Songbook 2 Items Notes: One album jacket is from the 1976 re-release.	
Box 63	The Duke Ellington Songbook: Ella Fitzgerald 1 Item Notes: Album jacket from the 1980 re-release	
Box 63	Ella Sings Gershwin	
Box 63	Ella Fitzgerald Sings the Irving Berlin Songbook Vol.1	
Box 63	Ella Fitzgerald Sings the Irving Berlin Songbook	
Box 63	Ella Fitzgerald Sings the George and Ira Gershwin Songbook Vol.1	
Box 64	Ella Fitzgerald Sings the Rodgers and Hart Songbook	
Box 64	Ella Fitzgerald Sings the Rodgers and Hart Songbook - Volume 1 Notes: Album cover is from the Canadian issue of the recording.	
Box 64	The Best of Ella Fitzgerald	
Box 65	The Best of Ella Fitzgerald	
Box 64	The Best of Ella Fitzgerald - Vol.II	

Box 64	Fine and Mellow: Ella Fitzgerald Jams
Box 64	The First Lady of Song: Ella Fitzgerald
Box 64	Here Come the Girls!
Box 64	Let No Man Write My Epitaph
Box 64	Like Someone in Love
Box 64	Texaco's Swing Into Spring, 1958, 1958
Box 64	Texaco's Swing Into Spring, 1959, 1959
Box 64	Things Ain't What They Used to Be and You Better Believe It:Ella Fitzgerald, 1971
Box 64	The World of Ella Fitzgerald, 1962

Subseries 9.2: Miscellaneous

Box 61	I.D.s, Passports	
	[Ella Fitzgeral 1 Item (6-1/8" Creator: Language: Notes:	d's passport, with black-and-white photoprint], 1959 × 3-7/8".) United States of America, Department of State (sponsr) English. AC0584-0000001.tif (AC Scan) Silver gelatin on paper. In Series 9, Box 61, Folder 1. Unrestricted research use on site by appointment. Photographs must be handled with cotton gloves unless protected by sleeves. Issued March 27, 1959. Contains bearer's address: 718 Mo. Sierra Dr., Beverly Hills, Calif. Also contains description of bearer. Passport documents singer's travels. Stamps/Visas include: Argentina, Australia, Brazil, Britain, Bulgaria, France, Germany, Israel, Italy, Netherlands, Switzerland, Yugoslavia. Anonymous passport photograph.
		Shown in exhibition "Jazz Photographs: Composed and Improvised," Archives Center display cases, National Museum of American History, March 28-May 10, 2005.
	Names:	Fitzgerald, Ella, 1917-1996 Jazz Photographs: Composed and Improvised (Archives Center display cases, National Museum of American History, March 28-May 10, 2005).
	Topic:	Singers African American singers Jazz musicians

	Genre/Form: Culture:	Photographs 1950-1960 Black-and-white photoprints Silver gelatin Passports African Americans
Box 61	1961.]	d's American Express Company credit card], [expired October unted; 2" x 3-1/2") Fitzgerald, Ella, 1917-1996 English. AC0584-0000057.tif (AC Scan No.) Unrestricted research access on site by appointment. Gloves required with unprotected photographs. Blue, purple, and white card. Included in Archives Center Jazz Appreciation Month display, April 1-May 31, 2010, "Jazz at the Philharmonic-Bringing Jazz to the World," curated by Wendy Shay. American Express (New York) card issuer Jazz musicians African American singers 1950-1960 African American musicians Credit cards
	Culture:	African Americans
Box 61	[Ella Fitzgerald 1 Item (6" x 7- Collector: Language: Notes: Topic: Genre/Form: Culture:	
Box 61	Credit Cards	
Box 61	Address Books	
Box 61	Medical	
Box 60;	Advertisements	

Box 66			
	Calendars with images of Ella		
	Black Visions '88 Exhibit		
	Commemorative Materials Created After Fitzgerald's death		
Box 60	Calendars, Artwork		
Map-folder 1	Assorted posters, including concert announcements, Ella in Flight for Continental Airlines 1983 by LeRoy Nieman, Norman Granz Presents Ella in Budapest 1971, and original Pablo poster. 3 Oversize folders		

Return to Table of Contents

Series 10: Audiovisual, 1939-1995

Scope and Series 10, Audiovisual Primarily audio disc and audiotape recordings. Most of the recordings are 33 1/3 rpm discs, and cover the years 1939 to 1987. They include test pressings and reference recordings of Fitzgerald classics like the "Cole Porter Songbook" and "Ella in Berlin", airchecks of performances from venues like the Savoy Ballroom, commercially issued copies of Fitzgerald recordings, and non-Fitzgerald related discs. There are also original audiotape recordings of live performances and interviews.

The moving image portion of this series includes film and videotape. These are primarily copies of Fitzgerald's appearances on various television shows.

Restrictions: Collection is open for research.**Only reference copies of audiovisual materials can be used.** Reference cassettes exist for the following audio discs: AC0584-OD0001 - AC0584-OD0088.

Subseries 10.1: Sound Discs: Test Pressings, Transcription Discs, and Performer Copies, 1939-1979

Many of the audio discs are scratched. As a result of the damage the sound quality is poor with hiss, static, and skips.

Restrictions: Collection is open for research. Only reference copies of audiovisual materials can be used.

Reference cassettes exist for the following audio discs: AC0584-OD0001 - AC0584-OD0088.

Box 1 (reference cassettes); Box 65, Item AC0584- OD0001, OD0002, OD0003		now , 1949 November 9 (lacquer) (Reference recordings) Description: Broadcast of musical selections Corporate Creator: CBS Performers: Bing Crosby, Ella Fitzgerald, Mills Brothers Song Titles: "My Happiness" "Dreamer's Holiday" "Sunday" "Lazy River" "Paper Doll" " Way Back Home"
Box 1 (reference cassettes); Box 65, Item AC0584- OD0004, 0005	• •	now , 1950 May 3 (lacquer) (Reference recording) Performers: Bing Crosby, Ella Fitzgerald, Al Jolson Song Titles: "I Hadn't Anyone But You" "Stay With the Happy People" "Give My Regards To Broadway" "Rosie" "Avalon" "Lullaby of Broadway"
Box 1 (reference cassettes); Box 65, Item AC0584- OD0006	Bing Crosby Show, 1950 November 292 Sound discs (Instantaneous reference recordings)Notes:Description: Live broadcast of musical selections only.Corporate Creator: CBSPerformers: Bing Crosby, Firehouse Five, Ella FitzgeraldSong Titles: "Marshmallow World" "Silver Bells" "Five Foot Two, Eyes of Blue" "Memphis Blues"	

Box 1 (reference cassettes); Box 65, Item AC0584- OD0008	Bing Crosby Show, 1951 November 28 1 Sound disc (Instantaneous reference recording.) Notes: Performers: Bing Crosby, Louis Armstrong, Ella Fitzgerald Song Titles: "Jamboree Jones" "I Get Ideas"
Box 1 (reference cassettes); Box 65, Item AC0584-0009	Ella Fitzgerald at the Savoy Ballroom, 1940 January 222 Sound discs (Transcription disc of live performance.)Notes:Description: Live radio broadcast from the Savoy Ballroom.Corporate Creator: NBCPerformers: Ella Fitzgerald and her OrchestraSong Titles: "Traffic Jam" "A Lover Is Blue" (unissued) "Dodging the Dean" "T'Aint What You Do (It's the Way That Cha Do It)" "Confessing I Love You" "Blue Lou" "What's the Matter With Me" (unissued) "I Want the Waiter (with the Water" "Swing Out"
Box 1 (reference cassettes); Box 65, Item AC0584- OD10	Ella Fitzgerald at the Savoy Ballroom, 1940 January 25 1 Sound disc (Transcription disc) Notes: Performers: Ella Fitzgerald and her Orchestra Song Titles: "Limehouse Blues" "This Changing World" (unissued) "Oh Johnny, Oh Johnny, Oh!"(?) "Diga, Diga, Do" "Thank Your Stars" (?) (unissued) "Take It From the Top" "Vagabond Dreams" ""Breakin' Down" (?) Reference audio cassette available.
Box 1 (reference cassettes); Box 65, Item AC0584- OD0011	Ella Fitzgerald at the Roseland Ballroom, 1940 February 261 Sound disc (Transcription disc)Notes:Description: Live radio broadcast from the Savoy Ballroom.Corporate Creator: NBCPerformers: Ella Fitzgerald and her OrchestraSong Titles: "Traffic Jam" "A Lover Is Blue" (unissued) "Dodging the Dean" "T'Aint What You Do (It's the Way That Cha Do It)" "Confessing I Love You" "What's the Matter With Me" (unissued) "I Want the Waiter (with the Water" "Swing Out"
Box 1 (reference cassettes); Box 65, Item AC0584- OD0012	Ella Fitzgerald at the Roseland Ballroom, 1940 March 4 1 Sound disc (Transcription disc) Notes: Performers: Ella Fitzgerald and her Orchestra Song Titles: "Limehouse Blues" "This Changing World" (unissued) "Oh Johnny, Oh Johnny, Oh!"(?) "Diga, Diga, Do" "Thank Your Stars" (?) (unissued) "Take It From the Top" "Vagabond Dreams" ""Breakin' Down" (?)
Box 65, Item AC0584- OD0013; Box 1 (reference cassettes)	Swing Into Spring, 1958 April 9 1 Sound discs (vinyl) (Sponsor reference recording) Notes: Description: Musical numbers from a live television broadcast given to performers.

	Corporate Creator: Texaco Star Theater, NBC Performers: Benny Goodman, Ella Fitzgerald, Harry James, McGuire Sisters, Jo Stafford, Ray Eberle. Host: Dave Garroway Song Titles: "Ridin' High" Instrumentals (titles unidentified) : Benny Goodman, Harry James "Blue Champagne" : Ray Eberle "Let's Get Away From It All" : Jo Stafford Instrumental (unidentified): Benny Goodman, Harry James Medley with entire cast: "I've Got A Right To Sing The Blues" "How Come You Do Me Like You Do?" "Hard -Hearted Hannah" "I Got It Bad and That Ain't Good" "St. Louis Blues" "Spring Rhapsody" : Benny Goodman and the Orchestra "Blue Skies" : McGuire Sisters" "This or That"(?)
Box 1 (reference cassettes); Box 65, Item AC0584- OD0014	 Swing Into Spring, 1959 April 10 1 Sound discs (vinyl) (Sponsor reference recording) Notes: Description: Musical numbers from a live television broadcast given to performers. Corporate Creator: Texaco Star Theater, CBS Performers: Benny Goodman, Ella Fitzgerald, Lionel Hampton, Peggy Lee, Shelly Manne, Andre Previn, The Hi-Los, among others. Song Titles: "S'Wonderful" "Faces of Spring" "Ah, Men, Ah, Women" (?) "Sweet Georgia Brown" "Wild About Harry" "Sweet Lorraine" "The Gentleman Is a Dope" "When A Women Loves A Man"
Box 1 (reference cassettes); Box 65, Item AC0584- OD0015 - AC0584- OD0021	 Songs for Sale, 1952 January 5 7 Sound discs (Transcrption discs of live broadcast; 78rpm) Notes: Description: Entire broadcast of the radio and television game show. Includes commercials for Greyhound, Reingold Beer, Raleigh cigarettes, and SEE IT NOW. Corporate Creator: CBS Performers: Steve Allen (host); Morey Amsterdam, Barry Gray, Joe Martin (judges); Bob Carroll and Ella Fitzgerald (guest singing stars) Song titles: "The Train with the Jivin' Whistle" "Snowflakes" "Today, Tomorrow, and Always" "Show Me the Way to Get Out of this World" "Who Cares?" "That's How A Dream Begins" "Staten Island Ferry Boat Blues"
Box 1 (reference cassettes); Box 65, Item AC0584- OD0022	Ella Fitzgerald and Nat "King" Cole - W.C. Handy Dinner, 1958 1 Sound disc (Instantaneous recording) Notes: Description: Personal audio disc created by Ella Fitzgerald and Nat "King" Cole for W.C.Handy Performers: Ella Fitzgerald, Nat "King"Cole Song Titles: "Happy Birthday to You" "St .Louis Blues"
Box 1 (reference cassettes);	Schlitz Celebrity Series: Ella Fitzgerald (Commercials), 1959 October 28 1 Sound disc (33.3 rpm) Notes: Description: Radio commercial

Box 65, Item AC0584- OD0023		Producer: J. Walter Thompson Performer: Ella Fitzgerald Content: Schlitz Beer jingle - 2 versions
Box 1 (reference cassettes); Box 65, Item AC0584- OD0024		Duet, 1963 January 23 Instantaneous reference recording) Description: Rehearsal disc created for Ella Fitzgerald prior to an appearance on the Dinah Shore Show. Producer: NBC Content: Two men sing as Ella and Dinah, demonstrating the song parts and melody lines they would each take during the program. Song Titles "Sentimental Journey"
Box 1 (reference cassettes); Box 65, Item AC0584- OD0025	Chick Webb ar 1 Sound discs Notes:	nd His Orchestra, 1939 February (lacquer) Description: Live radio broadcast from the Coconut Grove of Hotel Park Central, New York City. Corporate Creator: NBC Performers: Chick Webb and His Orchestra, Ella Fitzgerald Song Titles: "Chick Webb Theme" "Blue Room" "Deep in a Dream" "One O'clock Jump" "That Was My Heart"
Box 1 (reference cassettes); Box 65, Item AC0584- OD0025	Let's Dance Ar 1 Sound discs Notes:	nerica-Louis Armstrong, 1948 September (lacquer) Description: Radio broadcast from the Click Restaurant in Philadelphia. Corporate Creator: CBS Performers: Louis Armstrong, Earl "Fatha" Hines, Thelma Middleton, Jack Teagarden, Fred Robbins (host) Song Titles: " Do You Know What It Means to Miss New Orleans" "St. Louis Blues"
Box 1 (reference cassettes); Box 65, Item AC0584- OD0026	Jazz at the Phi 9 1 Sound discs Notes:	 Iharmonic Shrine Jazz Concert- Ella Fitzgerald Portion, 1957 October (lacquer) Description: Live concert recording which was commercially issued by Verve (without encore, which was issued on another recording). Performers: Ella Fitzgerald, Oscar Peterson Song Titles: "Its All Right With Me" " Don'cha Go 'Way Mad" "Bewitched" "These Foolish Things" "Ill Wind" "Goody Goody" "Moonlight in Vermont" "Stompin' at the Savoy" "Lady Be Good" - encore

Box 1 (reference cassettes); Box 65, Item AC0584- OD0027		s Commission for Equal Opportunity Employment, circa 1964 (vinyl) (Sponsor disc) Description: Public service announcements in support of the President's Commission for Equal Opportunity Employment Announcers: Ella Fitzgerald, Nancy Wilson, Lou Rawls, H.B. Barnham.
Box 1 (reference cassettes); Box 65, Item AC0584- OD0028		 I Campaign, 1961 December (vinyl) (Sponsor disc) Description: Ella's performance on behalf of the 1961 Christmas Seal campaign. Performers: Ella Fitzgerald, Mel Brand (announcer) Songs: "Accentuate the Positive" (Mister In-Between) "East of the Sun" "Over the Rainbow" "Its Only A Paper Moon" Andy Williams Show (for Christmas Seals) Performers: Andy Williams, Mel Brand (announcer) Content: Public service announcements and songs. "I Wish You Love" "April in Paris" "Rendezvous in Old Montmartre?" "Au Revoir Paris"
Box 1 (reference cassettes); Box 65, Item AC0584- OD0029, AC0584- OD0030	Gary Moore Sł 1 Sound discs Notes:	now (lacquer) (Sponsor disc) Description: Recording of Ella's appearance of the <i>Gary Moore Show</i> . Performers: Ella Fitzgerald, Mel Torme, Gary Moore (host) Content: Ella and Mel duet medley
Box 1 (reference cassettes); Box 66, Item AC0584- OD0031		I], 1959 March 1 (lacquer) (Test pressing) Description: Verve test pressing Performers: Ella Fitzgerald, Nelson Riddle Orchestra Song titles" "I Can't Be Bothered Now" "Of Thee I Sing" "I Was Doing All Right" "Funny Face" "Fascinating Rhythm
Box 1 (reference cassettes); Box 66, Item AC0584- OD0032		i], 1959 July 16 (lacquer) (Test pressing) Song titles: "Shall We Dance" "That Certain Feeling" "What Love Has Done to Me" "Boy Wanted" "The Half of It Dearie Blues"
Box 2 (reference cassettes); Box 66, Item AC0584- OD0034		 I/Frank DeVol], circa 1957 (lacquer) (Master pressing, scratched.) Performers: Ella Fitzgerald, Frank DeVol (conductor) Song titles: "These Foolish Things" "Comes Love" "III Wind" "St. Louis Blues" ** "Baby, Don't You Go Away Mad" "Angel Eyes" "Tenderly" * "Moonlight in Vermont" * "Stairway to the Stars" * "How Long Has

	This Been Going On?" " A Tisket, A Tasket" ** "You Turned the Tables on Me" ** "Gypsy In My Soul" ** "Goody - Goody" ** * Tracks appear on HELLO, LOVE ** Track may appear on GET HAPPY!
Box 2 (reference cassettes); Box 66, Item AC0584- OD0035	[Ella Fitzgerald and Frank DeVol], circa 1958 1 Sound discs (lacquer) (Reference recording) Notes: Performers: Ella Fitzgerald, Frank DeVol (Conductor) Song titles: "Sweet and Lovely" "Let's Fall in Love" "Makin' Whoopee" "I Remember You" " Can't We Be Friends" "Lullaby of Broadway" "East of the Sun" "Out of this World"
Box 2 (reference cassettes); Box 66, Item AC0584- OD0036	[Elle Fitzgerald with Frank DeVol], circa 19581 Sound discs (lacquer) (Reference recording)Notes:Performers: Ella Fitzgerald, Frank DeVol OrchestraSong Titles:"East of the Sun" "Lullaby of Broadway" "Let's Fall In Love" " I Remember You" "Sweet and Lovely" "Can't We Be Friends?" "Out of This World" "Makin' Whoopee"* Probably recorded November 24, 1958 (see Schaap) and released as ELLA SINGS SWEET SONGS FOR SWINGERS
Box 2 (reference cassettes); Box 66, Item AC584- OD0037	[Ella Fitzgerald and Frank DeVol], circa 1959 1 Sound discs (lacquer) (Reference recording) Notes: Performers: Ella Fitzgerald, Frank DeVol Orchestra Song Titles: "That Old Feeling" "My Old Flame" "Moonlight Becomes You" "Gone With the Wind" "Moonlight Serenade" * Probably recorded July 15, 1959 (see Schapp) [Released 1969 as ELLA]
Box 2 (reference cassettes); Box 66, Item AC0584- OD0038	[Ella Fitzgerald-Frank DeVol], circa 1958 1 Sound discs (lacquer) (Reference recording) Notes: Performers: Ella Fitzgerald, Frank DeVol Orchestra Song Titles: "You Make Me Feel So Young" "Sweet and Lovely" "Let's Fall In Love" "Makin' Whoopee" - skips and repeats "That Old Feeling" "I Remember You" "Moonlight Becomes You"
Box 2 (reference cassettes); Box 66, Item AC0584- OD0039	[Ella & DeVol], circa 1959 1 Sound discs (lacquer) (Transcription disc) Notes: Performers: Ella Fitzgerald, Herb Ellis, , Frank DeVol Orchestra Song Titles: "Pennies From Heaven" "It's a Good Day" "Detour Ahead"
Box 2 (reference cassettes); Box 66, Item AC0584- OD0040	[Ella Fitzgerald] 1 Sound discs (lacquer) (Reference recording) Notes: Song Titles: "One For My Baby" "Rock It For Me" "It Was Written In the Stars" "Heart and Soul" "Over the Rainbow" "This Time the Dream's on Me" "My Shining Hour" "Ill Wind"

	Probably Harold Arlen Songbook, Part 1
Box 2 (reference cassettes); Box 66, Item AC0584- OD0041	[Ella Fitzgerald] 1 Sound discs (lacquer) (Reference recording) Notes: Song Titles: "Stormy Weather" "Blues In the Night" "I've Got a Right To Sing the Blues" "That Old Black Magic" Probably Harold Arlen Songbook, Part 2
Box 2 (reference cassettes); Box 66, Item AC0584- OD0042	 [Ella Fitzgerald & Billy May] 1 Sound discs (lacquer) (Reference recording) Notes: Song Titles: "When the Sun Comes Out" "As Long As I Live" "Accentuate the Positive" "Sing My Heart" "Hurrah for Love" "Get Happy" "I've Got the World On a String" "It's Only a Paper Moon" "Let's Take a Walk Around the Block" "The Man That Got Away" Probably Harold Arlen sides 1 and 2
Box 2 (reference cassettes); Box 66, Item AC0584- OD0043	[Ella Fitzgerald & Billy May] 1 Sound discs (lacquer) (Reference recordng) Notes: Soung Title: "This Time the Dream's on Me" "I've Got the World on a String" Probably Harold Arlen Sougbook
Box 2 (reference cassettes); Box 66, Item AC0584- OD0044	 [Ella Fitzgerald], 1961 January 16 1 Sound discs (lacquer) (Reference recording) Notes: Performers: Ella Fitzgerald, Billy May Orchestra Song Titles: "The Devil and the Deep Blue Sea" "Let's Fall Love" "Happiness Is Just a Thing Called Joe" "Out of This World" "Come Rain or Come Shine"
Box 2 (reference cassettes); Box 66, Item AC0584- OD45	Ella Swings Lightly with Riddle 1 Sound discs (lacquer) (Reference recording) Notes: Song Titles: "Sweet and Slow" "Georgia On My Mind" "I Can't Get Started" "Street of Dreams" "Imagination" "The Very Thought of You" "It's a Blue World" "Darn That Dream" "He's Funny That Way" "I Wished On the Moon" "A Pity To Say Goodnight" "My One and Only Love" "Body and Soul"
Box 2 (reference cassettes); Box 66, Item AC0584- OD0046	[Ella Fitzgerald - Out Selections], 1961 December 28 1 Sound discs (lacquer) (Reference recording) Notes: Performers: Ella Fitzgerald, Nelson Riddle and His Orchestra Song titles: "Darn That Dream" "Georgia on My Mind" " I Can't Get Started" " It's a Pity to Say Goodnight" "Call Me Darling" – LP version "Call Me Darling" – Single Version "All of Me"

Box 3 (reference cassettes); Box 66, Item AC0584- OD0047	[Ella Fitzgerald], 1961 December 281 Sound discs (lacquer) (Reference recording)Notes:Performers: Ella Fitzgerald, Nelson Riddle and His OrchestraSongs: Side 1 "When Your Lover Has Gone" "Don't Be That Way" "Love Me or Leave Me" "I Hear Music" "What Am I Here For?" "I'm Gonna Go Fishin'"Side 2 "I Won't Dance" "Pick Yourself Up" "Alone Together" "I Only Have Eyes For You" "Mean to Me" "The Gentleman is a Dope" Probably released in 1962 as Ella Swings Brightly with Nelson
Box 3 (reference cassettes); Box 66, Item AC0584- OD0048	[Ella at the Crescendo], 1961 May 1 Sound discs (lacquer) (Reference recording) Notes: Performers: Ella Fitzgerald Song titles: Side 1 "Blue Moon"* "On a Slow Boat to China"** "This Could Be the Start of Something Big"* "Baby, Won't You Please Come Home"* "Caravan"** "Joe Williams' Blues"** Side 2 "You'll Have to Swing It (Mr. Paganini)"* "Give Me the Simple Life"** "I've Got the World on a String"* "You're Driving Me Crazy"* "Just in Time"* "St. Louis Blues"** *Tracks probably appear on <i>Ella In Hollywood</i> ** Tracks may not be issued commercially
Box 3 (reference cassettes); Box 66, Item AC0584- OD0049	[Ella at the Crescendo], 1961 May 1 Sound discs (lacquer) (Reference recording) Notes: Performers: Ella Fitzgerald Song Titles: "Give Me the Simple Life"** "A Tisket, A Tasket"** "Caravan"** "Joe Williams' Blues"** "Baby, Won't You Please Come Home"* *Tracks probably appear on <i>Ella in Hollywood</i> ** Tracks may not be issued commercially
Box 3 (reference cassettes); Box 66, Item AC0584- OD0050	[Ella Fitzgerald], 1961 May 1 Sound discs (lacquer) (Reference recording) Notes: Performers: Ella Fitzgerald Song Titles: "Stompin' at the Savoy" "S'Wonderful"** "Satin Doll"* "S'Wonderful"** "Air Mail Special"* *Tracks may appear on ELLA IN HOLLYWOOD ** Tracks may be commercially unissued
Box 3 (reference cassettes); Box 66, Item AC0584- OD0051	[Ella Fitzgerald-A Set] 1 Sound discs (lacquer) (Reference recording) Notes: Performers: Ella Fitzgerald Song Titles: Side 1 "Give Me the Simple Life"** "I've Got the World on a String" "You're Driving Me Crazy" "Just In Time" "It Might as Well Be Spring" "Take the 'A' Train" Side 2 "Stairway to the Stars" "You'll Have to Swing It (Mr. Paganini)" "Satin Doll" "Blue Moon" "On a Slow Boat to China"** "Baby, Won't You Please Come Home" "Air Mail Special"

		*Most tracks probably released in 1961 on ELLA IN HOLLYWOOD **Tracks do not appear on ELLA IN HOLLYWOOD and may be commercially unissued
Box 3 (reference cassettes); Box 66, Item AC0584- OD0052	[Ella Fitzgerald 1 Sound discs Notes:	I] (lacquer) (Reference recording) Performers: Ella Fitzgerald Song Titles: Side 1 I Could Have Danced All Night Whatever Lola Wants Guys and Dolls Hernando's Hideaway Steam Heat *All tracks probably recorded 10/1 & 10/2 1962 and released in 1962 on ELLA SINGS BROADWAY
Box 3 (reference cassettes); Box 67, Item AC0584- OD0053		on "Kern Song Book"] (lacquer) (Reference recording) Performers: Ella Fitzgerald, Nelson Riddle Orchestra Song Titles: Side 1 I'll Be Hard to Handle I'll Be Hard to Handle I'll Be Hard to Handle *Track probably recorded 1/5/1963 (See Schaap) & released in 1963 on THE JEROME KERN SONGBOOK
Box 3 (reference cassettes); Box 67, Item AC0584- OD0054	[Ella Fitzgerald 1 Sound discs Notes:	 [] (lacquer) (Reference recording) Performers: Ella Fitzgerald** Song Titles: Side 1 They Can't Take That Away From Me Slap That Bass I've Got a Crush on You Looking For a Boy Of Thee I Sing (Baby) Side 2 My One and Only Lorelei But Not For Me Bidin' My Time I've Got Beginners Luck *All tracks probably released in 1959 on multiple albums of THE GEORGE AND IRA GERSHWIN **Nelson Riddle Orchestra also probably performed (See Schaap) SONG BOOK
Box 3 (reference cassettes); Box 67, Item AC0584- OD0055	[Ella Fitzgerald 1 Sound discs Notes:	 [] (lacquer) (Reference recording) Performers: Ella Fitzgerald** Song Titles: Side 1 Our Love is Here to Stay Let's Call the Whole Thing Off Funny Face I was Doing All Right You've Got What Gets Me Side 2 Lady Be Good He Loves and She Loves Let's Kiss and Make Up Someone to Watch Over Me Clap Your Hands *All tracks probably released in 1959 on multiple albums of THE GEORGE AND IRA GERSHWIN SONG BOOK **Nelson Riddle Orchestra also probably performed (See Schaap)
Box 3 (reference cassettes);	[Ella Fitzgerald 1 Sound discs Notes:	l] (lacquer) (Reference recording) Performers: Ella Fitzgerald**

Box 67, Item AC0584- OD0056	Song Titles: Side 1 Soon Nice Work If You Can Get It A Foggy Day I Got Rhythm Embraceable You Side 2 How Long Has This Been Going On? Fascinating Rhythm The Man I Love They All Laughed Love Walked In *All tracks probably released in 1959 on multiple albums of THE GEORGE AND IRA GERSHWIN SONG BOOK **Nelson Riddle Orchestra also probably performed (See Schaap)
Box 3 (reference cassettes); Box 67, Item AC0584- OD0057	 d], circa 1961 December 27 (lacquer) (Reference recording) Performers: Ella Fitzgerald** Song Titles: Side 1 I Won't Dance Don't Be That Way I'm Gonna Go Fishin' *All tracks were probably recorded on 12/27/1961 (See Schaap) and released in 1962 on ELLA SWINGS BRIGHTLY WITH NELSON **Nelson Riddle Orchestra also probably performed (See Schaap)
Box 3 (reference cassettes); Box 67, Item AC0584- OD0058	 d -master # 26587 - 592] (lacquer) (Reference recording) Performers: Ella Fitzgerald** Song Titles: Side 1 My Melancholy Baby Angel Eyes Black Coffee I Hadn't Anyone Till You I Cried For You Misty *Probably recorded on 4/14/1960 (See Schapp) and released in 1960 on THE INTIMATE ELLA. Tracks may also appear on ELLA SINGS SONGS FROM "LET NO MAN WRITE MY EPITAPH" (1960). **Pianist Paul Smith was also probably a performer (See Schaap)
Box 3 (reference cassettes); Box 67, Item AC0584- OD0059	Ruff.Ref], 1962 February 14 (lacquer) (Reference recording) Performers: Ella Fitzgerald, Bill Doggett Song Titles: Side 1 If I Could Be With You (One Hour Tonight) After You've Gone Runnin' Wild Taking a Chance on Love *Tracks were probably recorded 1/30, 1/31 1962 and released in 1962 on RHYTHM IS MY BUSINESS. Disc note: This is unedited, incomplete material for editorial purposes only.
Box 3 (reference cassettes); Box 67, Item AC0584- OD0060	 Ruff.Ref], 1962 February 14 (lacquer) (Reference recording) Performers: Ella Fitzgerald, Bill Doggett Song Titles: Side 1 Show Me the Way to Get Out of This World Laughing on the Outside Broadway Taking a Chance on Love After You've Gone Side 2 I Can't Face the Music No Moon at All Hallelujah, I Love Him So Rough Ridin' You Can Depend on Me

	*Tracks were probably recorded 1/30, 1/31 1962 and released in 1962 on RHYTHM IS MY BUSINESS. On label: Webster Hall. Disc note: This is incomplete, unedited material for editorial purposes only.
Box 3 (reference cassettes); Box 67, Item AC0584- OD0061	[Ella Fitzgerald and Bill Doggett - 62 VG 130/131], circa 1962 1 Sound discs (lacquer) (Reference recording) Notes: Performers: Ella Fitzgerald, Bill Doggett Song Titles: Side 1 Hallelujah, I Love Him So Rough Ridin' Taking a Chance on Love I Can't Face the Music Show Me the Way to Get Out of This World After You've Gone Side 2 Broadway No Moon at All You Can Depend on Me If I Could Be With You I'm Laughing on the Outside Runnin' Wild *Tracks were probably recorded 1/30, 1/31 1962 and released in 1962 on RHYTHM IS MY BUSINESS.
Box 4 (reference cassettes); Box 67, Item AC0584- OD0062	[Ella Fitzgerald]1 Sound discs (lacquer) (Reference recording)Notes:Performers: Ella FitzgeraldSong Titles: Side 1 (I Was) Born to Be Blue 'Round Midnight My Reverie Cry Me a River Clap Hands, Here Comes Charlie A Night in Tunisia The Music Goes 'Round and Around Side 2 Stella By Starlight This Year's Kisses Spring Can Really Hang You Up the Most Jersey Bounce You're My Thrill Good Morning Heartache*All tracks probably recorded 6/22 - 6/24, 1961 and released in 1961 on CLAP HANDS, HERE COMES CHARLIE!
Box 4 (reference cassettes); Box 67, Item AC0584- OD0063	 [Ella Fitzgerald-Side 3] 1 Sound discs (lacquer) (Reference recording) Notes: Performers: Ella Fitzgerald* Song Titles: Side 3 Call Me Darling (LP version)** Call Me Darling (Single version)*** Love Me or Leave Me**** All of Me***** * Nelson Riddle Orchestra probably performed also (See Schaap) ** Track probably recorded on 11/15/1961 and released on 1993 reissue of ELLA SWINGS GENTLY WITH NELSON *** Track probably recorded on 11/15/1961 and released as a single in 1962 and on 1993 reissue of ELLA SWINGS BRIGHTLY WITH NELSON **** Track probably recorded on 11/15/1961 and released in 1962 on ELLA SWINGS BRIGHTLY WITH NELSON **** Track probably recorded on 11/15/1961 and released in 1962 on ELLA SWINGS BRIGHTLY WITH NELSON ***** Track probably recorded on 11/15/1961 and released in 1962 on ELLA SWINGS BRIGHTLY WITH NELSON ***** Track probably recorded on 11/15/1961 and released in 1962 on ELLA SWINGS BRIGHTLY WITH NELSON ***** Track probably recorded on 11/15/1961 and released in 1962 on ELLA SWINGS BRIGHTLY WITH NELSON ***** Track probably recorded on 11/15/1961 and released in 1962 on ELLA SWINGS BRIGHTLY WITH NELSON ***** Track probably recorded on 11/15/1961 and released in 1962 on ELLA SWINGS BRIGHTLY WITH NELSON ***** Track probably recorded on 11/15/1961 and released in 1962 on ELLA SWINGS BRIGHTLY WITH NELSON ***** Track probably recorded on 11/15/1961 and released on UNITED NATIONS UNIQUE RECORD TO AID THE WORLD'S REFUGEES and reissued in 1993 on ELLA SWINGS GENTLY WITH NELSON
Box 4 (reference cassettes); Box 67, Item AC0584- OD0064	[Ella in Hollywood - A Version] 1 Sound discs (lacquer) (Reference recording) Notes: Song Titles: "The Simple Life" "I've Got the World On a String" "Driving Me Crazy" "Just In Time" "Might As Well Be Spring" "Take the A Train" "Stairway to the Stars" "Mr. Paganini" "Satin Doll" "Blue Moon" "On

	a Slow Boat To China" "Baby, Won't You Please Come H Mail Special	lome" "Air
Box 4 (reference cassettes); Box 67, Item AC0584- OD0065	[Ella in Hollywood - B Version] 1 Sound discs (lacquer) (Refrence recording) Notes: Song Titles: "'S'Wonderful" "World On a String" "Driving "Just In Time" "It Might As Well Spring" "Take the A Paganini" "On a Slow Boat To China" "Satin Doll" "Blue M Could Be the Start of Something Big" "Baby, Won't You Ple Home"	Train" "Mr. oon" "This
Box 4 (reference cassettes); Box 67, Item AC0584- OD0066	[JATP/MGV -4002-S4] 1 Sound discs (lacquer) (Reference recording) Notes: Performers: Ella Fitzgerald, Jazz at the Philharmonic Song Titles: "Give It Back to the Indians" "Ten Cents "Wishing Well?" NO "I Didn't Know What Time It Was?" " I've Got Belongs To You" "Two Lovers of Friends" "We'll H Room ? - "Funny Valentine" "Bewitched" "Mountain Greene We're Dancing?" "Isn't It Romantic?" "Here in my Arms?, Never There?" "Blue Moon" "My Heart Stood Still" "I've Got May be from 1956 with Buddy Bregman	Everything ave a Blue ery" "When You Were
Box 4 (reference cassettes); Box 67, Item AC0584- OD0067	 [Ella - 61 VG 138], 1961 October 6 1 Sound discs (lacquer) (Test pressing) Notes: Song Titles: "A Night In Tunisia" "You're My Thrill" "My Reve By Starlight" "Round Midnight" "That Jersey Bounce" "Si "Cry Me a River" "This Year's Kisses" "Good Morning Hea Was) Born To Be Blue" "Clap Hands! Here Comes Charlie Can Really Hang You Up the Most" "Music Goes 'Round ar Clap Hands! Hear Comes Charlie! 	igning Off" artache" "(I e!" "Spring
Box 4 (reference cassettes); Box 67, Item AC0584- OD0068	[Oscar P. & Ella at Gstaad], circa 1961 1 Sound discs (lacquer) (Reference recording) Notes: Performer: Oscar Peterson Song Titles: "Satin Doll" "The Man I Love" "It Ain't Neces" "Chicago" Unidentified – Oscar Peterson "Too Close fo "Slow Boat To China" "Get Out Of Town" "Drivin' Me Craz To Cheek" "How Long Has This Been Going On?" Recording of a live performance	r Comfort"
Box 4 (reference cassettes); Box 67, Item AC0584- OD0069	[Oscar P. & Ella at Gstaad], circa 1961 1 Sound discs (lacquer) (Reference recording) Notes: Song Titles: Unidentified – Oscar Peterson "Too Close Fo "Slow Boat To China" "Why Was I Born?" "People Will Say" Crazy" "Cheek To Cheek" "Simple Life" "Caravan" "Round "A-Tisket, a-tasket" "Mr. Paganini" "Mack the Knife" "Jo Blues" aka "Roll 'Em Pete" Recording of live performance	"Drivin' Me 1 Midnight"

Box 4 (reference cassettes); Box 67, Item AC0584- OD0070	 [Ella Fitzgerald with Frank DeVol -MGV 4014] 1 Sound discs (lacquer) (Reference recording) Notes: Song Titles: "You Go To My Head" "I've Grown Accustomed To His Face" "Willow Weep For Me" "Spring Will Be a Little Late This Year" "I'm Through With Love" "I'll Never Be the Same" "Stairway To the Stars" "Tenderly" "Moonlight In Vermont" "You Turn the Tables On Me" "So Rare" "Lost In a Fog" "Everything Happens To Me" Mostly the same songs as Hello Love , different order
Box 4 (reference cassettes); Box 67, Item AC0584- OD0071	 [Ella Fitzgerald - Frank DeVol/ Manhattan Center, Ref. Record #1], circa 1964 1 Sound discs (lacquer) (Reference recording) Notes: Song Titles: "There, I Said It Again" "How High the Moon" "The Blues" (I'm Stuck With the Blues) "Pete Kelly's Blues" "Memories of You"
Box 4 (reference cassettes); Box 67, Item AC0584- OD0072	 [Ella Fitzgerald - Frank DeVol/ Manhattan Center, Ref. Record #2], circa 1964 1 Sound discs (lacquer) (Reference recording) Notes: Song Titles: "Lullaby of the Leaves" "I'll See You In My Dreams" "My Man" "The Thrill Is Gone"
Box 4 (reference cassettes); Box 68, Item AC0584- OD0073	 [Ella Fitzgerald - Frank DeVol/ Manhattan Center, Ref. Record #3], circa 1964 1 Sound discs (lacquer) (Reference recording) Notes: Song Titles: "There Are Such Things" - 2 takes "Miss Otis Regrets" "Volare"
Box 4 (reference cassettes); Box 68, Item AC0584- OD0074	On The Sunny Side of the Street: Ella and Basie 1 Sound discs (lacquer) (Reference recording) Notes: Song Titles: "Shiny Stockings" "I'm Beginning To See the Light" "'Deed I Do" "My Last Affair" "Ain't Misbehavin"" "On the Sunny Side of the Street" "Satin Doll" "Into Each Life Some Rain Must Fall" "Honeysuckle Rose" "Them There Eyes" "Dream a Little Dream of Me" " Tea for Two" Different order from commercial issue
Box 5 (reference cassettes); Box 68, Item AC0584- OD0075	On The Sunny Side of the Street: Ella and Basie (Side 2) 1 Sound discs (lacquer) (Reference recording) Notes: Performers: Ella Fitzgerald, Count Basie (piano) Song Titles: "Shiny Stockings" "I'm Beginning to See the Light" "Deed I Do" "My Last Affair" "Ain't Misbehavin" "On the Sunny Side of the Street"
Box 5 (reference cassettes); Box 68, Item AC0584- OD0076	[Test Pressing - Verve VG-4067], 1965 July 29 1 Sound discs (vinyl) (Test pressing) Notes: Performers: Ella Fitzgerald, Nelson Riddle and His Orchestra Song Titles: "Somethings Gotta Give" Travelin' Light" "Midnight Sun" "Dream" "I Remember You" "When a Woman Loves a Man" Ella Fitzgerald Sings the Johnny Mercer Song Book

Box 5 (reference cassettes); Box 68, Item AC0584- OD0077	 [Ella Fitzgerald "Signing Off"] 1 Sound discs (lacquer) (Reference recording) Notes: Performer: Ella Fitzgerald. Song Titles: "Signing Off." On label: Both tracks identical .
Box 5 (reference cassettes); Box 68, Item AC0584- OD0078	[Ella Fitzgerald and Louis Armstrong: Who Walks In When I Walk Out?], 1951 November 1 Sound discs (lacquer) Notes: Performers: Ella Fitzgerald, Louis Armstrong, and Dave Barbour and his Orchestra "Song Titles: "Who Walks In When I Walk Out" "Would You Like Me To Take a Walk?
Box 5 (reference cassettes); Box 68, Item AC0584- OD0079	[Ella Fitzgerald] 1 Sound discs (lacquer) (78 rpm) Notes: Sing Titles: "Softly Baby" "Sposin"" "People Will Say We're In Love"
Box 5 (reference cassettes); Box 68, Item AC0584- OD0080	[MGV-4002-2/ Sides 1&3], circa 1956 1 Sound discs (lacquer) (Unidentified pre-production disc) Notes: Song titles* "Have You Met Miss Jones" "You Took Advantage of Me" "A Ship Without a Sail" "To Keep My Love Alive" "Dancing on the Ceiling" "The Lady Is a Tramp" "With a Song in My Heart" "Manhattan" "Give It Back to the Indians" "Ten Cents a Dance" "There's a Small Hotel" "I Didn't Know What Time It Was" "Everything I've Got" "I Could Write a Book" "The Blue Room" "Funny Valentine" * Rogers and Hart Songbook
Box 5 (reference cassettes); Box 68, Item AC0584- OD0081	[MGV-4002-2/ Sides 2&4], circa 19561 Sound discs (lacquer) (Unidentified pre-production disc)Notes:Song Titles: "Johnny One Note" "I Wish I Were In Love Again" "Spring Is Here" "It Never Entered My Mind" "This Can't Be Love" "Thou Swell" "My Romance" "Where or When" "Little Girl Blue" "Bewitched, Bothered, and Bewildered" "Mountain Greenery" "Wait Till You See Her" "Lover" "Isn't It Romantic?" "Here In My Arms" "Blue Moon" "My Heart Stood Still" "Lover" Rogers and Hart Song Book
Box 5 (reference cassettes); Box 68, Item AC0584- OD0082	 [Ella Fitzgerald/22617-22622], circa 1959 1 Sound discs (lacquer) (Unidentified pre-production disc) Notes: "Soon" Snippet of conversation, Ella - I'm Sorry "I Got Rhythm" Conversation (Next take?) "Our Love Is Here To Stay" Statement: take 9 "They Can't Take That Away From Me" Statement: take 2 "How Long Has This Been Going On?" Statement: "A Foggy Day," take 2 "A Foggy Day" Gershwin Songbook

Box 5 (reference cassettes); Box 68, Item AC0584- OD0083	-	s-Remake], circa 1959 (lacquer) (Unidentified pre-production disc) Statement: Take 7 "Shall We Dance" Statement: Take 3 then the count 1,2 "That Certain Feeling" Statement: what love has done to me take 7 "What Love Has Done To Me" Statement: boy wanted take 7 "Boy Wanted" Statement: half of it dearie take 3, Ella – this is it - I hope "The Half of It, Dearie Blues" Statement: take 16 "Lorelei" Statement: take 6 "'S Wonderful" Statement: take 3 "Who Cares" Statement: Treat me rough take 8 "Treat Me Rough" Statement: take 3, count 1,2,3 "Strike Up the Band" Statement: sam and delila take 12 "Sam and Delilah" Statement: by strauss take 3 "By Strauss"
Box 5 (reference cassettes); Box 68, Item AC0584- OD0084		um: Ella Fitzgerald and Nelson Riddle], circa 1959 (lacquer) (Unidentified pre-production disc) Song Titles: Statement: take 5 "Soon" Statement; take 8, Ella –I'm sorry "I've Got Rhythm" Statement: take 3, inaudible "Our Love Is Here To Stay" Statement: take 9 "They Can't That Away From Me" Statement: take 2 "How Long Has This Going On?" Statement: "A Foggy Day," take 3 "A Foggy Day" Statement: (inaudible) take 5 "The Man I Love" Statement: here we go 2264 take 2, (inaudible) "I'm Biding My Time" Statement: Alright here we go, He Loves She Loves, take 6 "He Loves and She Loves" Statement: Alright now, take 5 "I've Got Beginner's Luck"
Box 5 (reference cassettes); Box 68, Item AC0584- OD0085	-	um: 22630-22635], circa 1959 (lacquer) (Unidentified pre-production disc) Song Titles: "Cheerful Little Earful" Statement: Alright here we go, take 6 "You've Got What Gets Me" Statement: (inaudible) Ella coughs "Embraceable You" Statement: take 3 "I've Got a Crush On You" Statement: False start, Ella clears throat "But Not For Me" Statement: Alright here we go, Lady Be Good take 9 "Lady Be Good" "The Man I Love" Statement: Ah here we go 2264 take 2, (inaudible) "I'm Biding My Time" (many skips) Statement: Alright here we go, He Loves She Loves , take 6 "He Loves and She Loves" Statement: Alright now, take 5 "I've Got Beginner's Luck"
Box 5 (reference cassettes); Box 68, Item AC0584- OD0086		um], circa 1959 (lacquer) (Unidentified pre-production disc) Song Titles: Statement: take 5, Ella coughs "Embraceable You" Statement: take 3 "I've Got a Crush On You" Statement: False start "But Not For Me" Statement: Alright here we go Lady Be Good take 9 "Lady Be Good"
Box 5 (reference cassettes); Box 68, Item AC0584- OD0087		d: Cheerful Little Earful] (lacquer) (Unidentified pre-production disc) Song Titles: Statement: take 7 "Somebody Loves Me" Statement: Alright Nelson? OK Take 3 "Slap That Base" Statement: That's a good one. Ahh, take 3 "Clap Yo' Hands" Statement: Ahh, Cheerful Earful,

	take 3 "Cheerful Little Earful" Statement: Alright, here we go, take 6 "You've Got What Gets Me" "Cheerful Little Earful"
Box 5 (reference cassettes); Box 68, Item AC0584- OD0088	[Ella Fitzgerald] 1 Sound discs (lacquer) (Reference recording) Notes: Song Titles: "Dites-Moi"; "Somebody Somewhere"; "Almost Like Being In Love";"If I Were a Bell";"Show Me" "No Other Love Have I";"Warm All Over";"Steam Heat" On label typewritten note – please do not use N.G.
Box 69, Item AC0584- OD0089	 {Ella Fitzgerald-Side 1&2] 1 Sound discs (lacquer) (Unidentified pre-production disc) Notes: Song Titles: "Johnny One Note" "I Wish I Were In Love Again" "Small Hotel" "Isn't It Romantic" "Lover" "It Never Entered My Mind" "Thou Swell" "Spring Is Here" "Here In My Arms"
Box 69, Item AC0584- OD0090	 [Ella Fitzgerald - Side 1& 2], circa 1956 August 1 Sound discs (lacquer) (Unidentified pre-production disc) Notes: Song Titles: "Ten Cents a Dance" "Advantage of Me" "Ship Without a Sail" "To Keep My Love Alive" "My Heart Stood Still" "The Lady Is a Tramp" "With a Song" "Manhattan" (with Buddy Bregman)
Box 69, Item AC0584- OD0091	[Verve Records Ella Fitzgerald - Side 1 & 2], circa 1956 August 1 Sound discs (lacquer) (Unidentified pre-production disc) Notes: Song Titles: "Bewitched, Bothered, and Bewildered" "Mountain Greenery" "Wait Till You See Him" "This Can't Be Love" "My Romance" "Blue Moon" "I've Got Five Dollars" "Little Girl Blue" (with Buddy Bregman)
Box 69, Item AC0584- OD0092	[Verve Records Ella Fitzgerald - Side 1 & 2], circa 1956 August 1 Sound discs (lacquer) (Unidentified pre-production disc) Notes: Song Titles: "Give It Back" "Have You Met Miss Jones?" "Where or When" "I Didn't Know What Time It Was" "Dancing on the Ceiling" "I Could Write a Book" "Blue Room" "My Funny Valentine" (with Buddy Bregman)
Box 69, Item AC0584- OD0093	[Ella Fitzgerald - Side 1 & 2] 1 Sound discs (lacquer) (Unidentified pre-production disc)
Box 69, Item AC0584- OD0094	[Ella Fitzgerald], circa 1964 October 10 1 Sound discs (lacquer) (Unidentified pre-production disc) Notes: Song Titles: "I've Got Your Number" "Thanks for the Memory" "Old McDonald" "He Said No" "When Sonny Gets Blue" "Spring Can Really Hang you Up the Most" "Melancholy Serenade" (with Marty Paitch?)

Box 69, Item AC0584- OD0095	[Ella Fitzgerald-Marty Paitch] 1 Sound discs (lacquer) (Reference recording)
Box 69, Item AC0584- OD0096	[Fitzgerald-Paitch] 1 Sound discs (lacquer) (Reference recording) Notes: Song Titles: "Mack the Knife" "Don't Mean a Thing" "Let's Do It" "Going Out Of My Mind"
Box 69, Item AC0584- OD0097	[Fitzgerald-Paitch] 1 Sound discs (lacquer) (Reference recording) Notes: Song Titles: "Jazz Samba" "How Long" "Misty" "More I See You" "Lullaby of Birdland"
Box 69, Item AC0584- OD0098	[Ella - Paitch] (Whisper Not), circa 1966 August 1 Sound discs (lacquer) (Reference recording) Notes: Song Titles: "Sweet Georgia Brown" "Whisper Not" "I Said No" "Thanks for the Memory" "Spring Can Really Hang You Up the Most" "Old McDonald" "Time After Time" "You've Changed" "I've Got Your Number" "Lover Man" "Wives and Lovers" "Matchmaker
Box 69, Item AC0584- OD0099	[Fitzgerald - Paitch] 1 Sound discs (lacquer) (Reference recording)
Box 69, Item AC0584- OD0100	[J.A.T.P./Santa Monica Civic - Side 5 and Side 6], 1972 June 16 1 Sound discs (lacquer) (Reference recording) Notes: Song Titles: Jam – All Stars "You Are My Sunshine" – Oscar Peterson and Ray Brown "Love Was Made" "Begin the Beguine" "Indian Summer" "You've Got a Friend" "What's Going On"
Box 69, Item AC0584- OD0101	 [Ella Fitzgerald and Trio/Santa Monica Civic -Side 7 and Side 8], 1972 June 16 1 Sound discs (lacquer) (Reference recording) Notes: Song Titles: "Night and Day" "Spring Can Really Hang You Up the Most" "Little White Lies" "Magdelena" "Silk Stockings" Medley "Hang In There Baby" "I Can't Stop Loving You" Jam – Ella, Basie, All Stars
Box 69, Item AC0584- OD0102	[J.A.T.P./Santa Monica Civic - Side 3 and Side 4], 1972 June 16 1 Sound discs (lacquer) (Reference recording) Notes: Song Titles: Jam (Blues March) "Makin' Whoopie"

Box 69, Item AC0584-	[Ella Fitzgerald-A Side], 1966 October 19
OD0103	1 Sound discs (lacquer) (Reference recording)
Box 69, Item AC0584-	[Ella Fitzgerald-B Side], 1966 October 19
OD0104	1 Sound discs (lacquer) (Reference recording)
Box 69, Item AC0584-	[Ella Fitzgerald - My Bonnie/ Trying]
OD0105	1 Sound discs (lacquer) (Unidentified pre-produciton disc)
Box 69, Item AC0584- OD0106	[Louis Armstrong & Ella Fitzgerald with Dave Barbour and His Orch.] 1 Sound discs (lacquer) (Unidentified pre-production disc) Notes: Song titles: "Necessary Evil" "Oops"
Box 69, Item AC0584-	[Fitzgerald- Baby/Wished on the Moon]
OD0107	1 Sound discs (lacquer) (Unidentified pre-production disc)
Box 69, Item AC0584-	[Louis Armstrong- Lets Do It]
OD0108	1 Sound discs (lacquer) (Unidentified pre-production disc)
Box 70, Item AC0584- OD0109	[Miss Ella Fitzgerald - Part 1 and Part 2] 1 Sound discs (lacquer) (Unidentified pre-production disc) Notes: Song Titles: "Sittin' and Rockin'" "Azure" "Cottontail" "Sophisticated Lady" "Squeeze Me" "Do Nothing Till You Hear From Me" "In a Sentimental Mood"
Box 70, Item AC0584- OD0110	[Miss Ella Fitzgerald - Part 3 and Part 4] 1 Sound discs (lacquer) (Unidentified pre-production disc) Notes: Song Titles: "Satin Doll" "Prelude To a Kiss" "It Don't Mean a Thing" "I Let a Song Go Out of My Heart" "Rocks In My Bed" "Don't Get Around Much Anymore" "Solitude"
Box 70, Item AC0584- OD0111	[Ella Fitzgerald - So Rare/What's New?] 1 Sound discs (lacquer) (Unidentified pre-production disc) Notes: Song Titles: "So Rare" "What's New" "Intermission Blues" (Take 5)

Box 70, Item AC0584-	[Ella Fitzgerald - Reel One, Side A & Side B]
OD0112	1 Sound discs (lacquer)
Box 70, Item AC0584-	[Ella Fitzgerald - Reel Two, Side A & Side B]
OD0113	1 Sound discs (lacquer) (Reference recording)
Box 70, Item AC0584-	[Ella Fitzgerald - Reel Three, Side A & Side B]
OD0114	1 Sound discs (lacquer) (Reference recording)
Box 70, Item AC0584-	[Ella Fitzgerald - Reel Four]
OD0115	1 Sound discs (lacquer) (Reference recording)
Box 70, Item AC0584-	[Ella Fitzgerald - Reel Five, Side A & Side B]
OD0116	1 Sound discs (lacquer) (Reference recording)
Box 70, Item AC0584-	[Ella Fitzgerald - Reel Six, Side A & Side B]
OD0117	1 Sound discs (lacquer) (Reference recording)
Box 70, Item AC0584- OD0118	[Ella Fitzgerald - Reel Seven, Side A & Side B]
Box 70, Item AC0584-	[Ella Fitzgerald - Reel Eight, Side A & Side B]
OD0119	1 Sound disc (Reference recording)
Box 70, Item AC0584-	[Ella Fitzgerald - Reel Nine]
OD0120	1 Sound discs (lacquer) (Reference recording)
Box 70, Item AC0584- OD0121	[Ella Fitzgerald - Reprise Records - Side 1 and Side 2] 1 Sound discs (lacquer) (Instantanous disc) Notes: Song Titles: "Manteca" "A Man and a Woman" "Have Mercy" "In the Mood" (med) "In the Mood" (bright) "Sunny" "Willow Weep for Me" "Tuxedo Junction" "Black Coffee"
Box 70, Item AC0584- OD0122	[Reprise Records - Side 1 and Side 2] 1 Sound discs (lacquer) (Instantaneous disc, rough dubdown) Notes: Song Titles: "Sunny" "Willow Weep for Me" "Tuxedo Junction" "Black Coffee" "Manteca" "A Man and a Woman" "Mercy" "In the Mood" (med) "In the Mood" (brite)
Box 70, Item AC0584- OD0123	[Ella Fitzgerald - Side I and Side II] 1 Sound discs (lacquer) (Instantaneous disc) Notes: Song Titles: "Sittin' Rockin'" "The Lady Is a Tramp" "Summertime" "Cutie Pants" "St.Louis Blues" "Honeysuckle Rose"

Box 70, Item AC0584-	[Ella Fitzgerald - Side I and Side II]
OD0124	1 Sound discs (lacquer)
Box 70, Item AC0584- OD0125	[Ella Fitzgerald - Warner Brothers] 1 Sound discs (lacquer) (Instantaneous recording) Notes: Song Titles: "Timer" "Hands Off the Man" "Lucky" ? "Once It Was Alright Now" ?
Box 70, Item AC0584- OD0126	[Ella Fitzgerald], 1973 October 251 Sound discs (lacquer) (Reference recording)Notes:Song Titles:"Once I Loved" "Gee Baby, Ain't I Good to You" "I Want to Talk About You" "Don't Be That Way" "You're Blasé" "Lush Life" "You Go to My Head" "A Foggy Day" "Take Love Easy"Probably Take Love Easy with Joe Pass
Box 70, Item AC0584-	[Ella Fitzgerald, Juan Les Pins, 1966 - Side One and Side Two], 1966
OD0127	1 Sound discs (lacquer) (Instantaneous disc)
Box 70, Item AC0584-	[Ella Fitzgerald & Lou Levy - Berlin Concert]
OD0128	1 Sound discs (lacquer) (Instantaneous disc)
Box 71, Item AC0584-	[Verve Test Pressing], 1965 July 29
OD0129	1 Sound discs (vinyl) (Test pressing)
Box 71, Item AC0584-	[Verve Test Pressing], 1965 July 29
OD0130	1 Sound discs (vinyl) (Test pressing)
Box 71, Item AC0584-	[Verve Test Pressing], 1965 July 29
OD0131	1 Sound discs (lacquer)
Box 71, Item AC0584-	[Ella Fitzgerald - Job 78080 - side 1], 1973 August 8
OD0132	1 Sound discs (lacquer) (Reference recording)
Box 71, Item OD0133	[Ella Fitzgerald - Job 78080 - side 2], 1973 August 8

1 Sound discs (lacquer) (R	eference recording)
----------------------------	---------------------

Box 71, Item AC0584- OD0134	[Ella Fitzgerald - Job 78080 - side 3], 1973 August 8 1 Sound discs (lacquer) (Reference recording)
Box 71, Item AC0584- OD0135	[Ella Fitzgerald - Job 78080 - side 3], 1973 August 8 1 Sound discs (lacquer) (Reference recording)
Box 71, Item AC0584- OD0136	[Ella/Mercer - side 1 and side 2], 1966 August 22 1 Sound discs (lacquer) (Reference recording)
Box 71, Item AC0584- OD0137	[Cool Breeze/Like One -Ella Fitzgerald] 1 Sound discs (lacquer) (Instantaneous recording, 45 rpm)
Box 71, Item AC0584- OD0138	[The Secret of Christmas - Ella Fitzgerald] 1 Sound discs (lacquer) (Instantaneous disc, 45 rpm)
Box 71, Item AC0584- OD0139	[Xmas Song/Beat Me Daddy - Ella Fitzgerald] 1 Sound discs (lacquer) (Instantaneous disc, 45 rpm)
Box 71, Item OD0140	[The Blues - Ella] 1 Sound discs (lacquer) (Reference recording)
Box 71, Item AC0584- OD0141	[Ella Fitzgerald -Pablo Records] 1 Sound discs (lacquer) (Unidentified pre-production disc) Notes: Song Titles: "Ain't Misbehaving" 5 "Ain't Misbehaving" 6 "My Kind of Trouble" 1 "My Kind of Trouble" 3 "Don't Worry 'Bout Me" 2 "Teach Me Tonight" 4
Box 71, Item AC0584- OD0142	[Ella Fitzgerald - Pablo Records] 1 Sound discs (lacquer) (Unidentified pre-production disc) Notes: Song Titles: "Sittin' and A'rockin" 5 "Sittin' and A'rockin" 6 "Sentimental Over You" 2 "Sentimental Over You" 3 "Sweet Lorraine" 20 "Don't Talk About Me When I'm Gone" 1
Box 71, Item AC0584- OD0143	[Ella Fitzgerald Live from Fairmont Hotel, San Francisco] 1 Sound discs (lacquer) (Unidentified pre-production disc) Notes: On label: rough mono from 8 trk Song Titles: "Useless Landscape" "Love You Madly" "A House Is Not a Home" "Baby, Don't You Go Away Mad" "Old Devil Moon" "All Right, O.K. You Win" "This Girl's In Love With You" "Sunshine of Your Love" "Hey Jude" "Cabaret" "Give Me the Simple Life"
Box 71, Item AC0584- OD0144	[Ella Fitzgerald Live from Fairmont Hotel, San Francisco] 1 Sound discs (lacquer) (Unidentified pre-production disc) Notes: On label:rough mono from 8 trk

	Song Titles: "Trouble Is a Man" "One Note Samba" "Watch What Happens"
Box 71, Item AC0584- OD-0145	[Ella Fitzgerald - Capitol Project No. 5852] 1 Sound discs (lacquer) (Unidentified pre-production disc)
Box 72, Item AC0585- OD0146	[Ella Fitzgerald] 1 Sound discs (lacquer) (Unidentified pre-production disc) Notes: Song Titles: "Useless Landscape" "Baby Don't Go Away Mad" "Old Devil Moon" "A House Is Not a Home" "Trouble Is a Man" "Love You Madly" "Hey Jude" "Sunshine of Your Love: "This Girl's In Love" "Watch What Happens" "Alright, O.K., You Win" "Give Me the Simple Life"
Box 72, Item AC0584- OD0147	[Ella Fitzgerald] 1 Sound discs (lacquer) (Reference recording) Notes: Song Titles: "I Heard It Through the Grapevine" "Manteca" "Sunny" "Mas Que Nada" "Things Ain't What They Used To Be" "Willow Weep for Me" "Tuxedo Junction" "Black Coffee" "A Man and a Woman" "Don't Dream of Anybody But Me" "Just When We're Falling In Love" "Days of Wine and Roses"

Box 72, Item AC0584-	[Ella Fitzgerald- A Takes, Project No. 5581] (Sides 1&2), 1966 November 30
OD0148	1 Sound discs (lacquer) (Unidentified pre-production disc)
Box 72, Item AC0584-	[Ella Fitzgerald- A Takes, Project No. 5581,] (Side 3), 1966 November 30
OD0149	1 Sound discs (lacquer) (Unidentified pre-production disc)
Box 72, Item ACo584-	[Ella and Andre Previn: Nice Work If You Can Get It] (sides 1&2)
OD0150	1 Sound discs (vinyl) (Test pressing)
Box 72, Item AC0584-	[Ella and Andre Previn: Nice Work If You Can Get It] (sides 1&2)
OD0151	1 Sound discs (vinyl) (Test pressing)
Box 72, Item AC0584-	[Ella - Basie - 2312-107] (Sides 1 and 2), 1979 August 30
OD0152	1 Sound discs (vinyl) (Test pressing)
Box 72, Item AC0584-	[Ella - Basie - "Classy Pair" redo] (Sides 1)
OD0153	1 Sound discs (vinyl) (Test pressing)
Box 72, Item AC0584-	[Ella London I and II]
OD0154	1 Sound discs (vinyl)
Box 72, Item AC0584-	[Ella Fitzgerald/Louis Armstrong]
OD0155	1 Sound discs (vinyl) (Unidentified pre-production disc)
Box 72, Item AC0584-	[Ella Fitzgerald -Side 1, 10/27/66], 1966 October 27
OD0156	1 Sound discs (lacquer) (Reference recording)
Box 72, Item AC0584-	[Ella Fitzgerald -Side Two]
OD0157	1 Sound discs (lacquer) (Reference recording)
Box 72, Item AC0584-	[Ella Fitzgerald -Side Two]
OD0158	1 Sound discs (vinyl) (Reference recording)
Box 72, Item AC0584-	[Ella Fitzgerald - Ellington , Side 2]
OD0158	1 Sound discs (vinyl) (Reference recording)
Box 72, Item AC0584-	[Ella-Duke, Sides One and Two]
OD0160	1 Sound discs (lacquer) (Reference recording)
Box 72, Item AC0584-	[Ella at Duke's Place- Sides 1 and 2]
OD0161	1 Sound discs (lacquer) (Refrence recording)
Box 72, Item AC0584- OD0162	[Ella & Duke - reel 1] 1 Sound discs (lacquer) (Instantaneous disc) Notes: Song Titles: "Flower Is a Lonesome Thing" tk-5 "Something" tk-9 "Azure" tk-8
	"Sunrise" tk-10

Box 72, Item AC0584- OD0163	Ella & Duke - reel 2] I Sound discs (lacquer) (Instantaneous disc) Notes: Song Titles: "What Am I Here For?" tk-3 "Duke's Place" tk-3 "E Place" tk-6 "Brown Skin Girl" tk-6)uke's
Box 72, Item AC0584- OD0164	Ella & Duke - reel 4] I Sound discs (lacquer) (Instantaneous disc) Notes: Song titles: "Passion Flower" tk-15 "Passion Flower" tk-17 "Cotton Tail" tk-	7

Box 72, Item AC0584-	[Portrait for Ella - Duke Ellington]
OD0165	1 Sound disc (Unidentified pre-production disc)
Box 72, Item AC0584-	[Lady Time Ella -sides 1 and 2, 8/8/1978], 1978 Auggust 8
OD0166	1 Sound discs (vinyl)
Box 73, Item AC0584-	[Let No Man Write My Epitaph - I Can't Give You Anything But Love]
OD0167	1 Sound discs (lacquer) (Playback disc)
Box 73, Item AC0584-	[Let No Man Write My Epitaph - I Can't Give You Anything But Love]
OD0168	1 Sound discs (lacquer) (playback disc)
Box 73, Item AC0584-	[Let No Man Write My Epitaph -Sentimental Over You]
OD0169	1 Sound discs (lacquer) (Playback disc)
Box 73, Item	[Let No Man Write My Epitaph -Sentimental Over You]
AC0584-0170	1 Sound discs (lacquer) (Playback disc)
Box 73, Item AC0584-	[Let No Man Write My Epitaph –Who's Sorry Now?]
OD0171	1 Sound discs (lacquer) (Playback disc)
Box 73, Item AC0584-	[Let No Man Write My Epitaph -Angel Eyes]
OD0172	1 Sound discs (lacquer) (Playback disc)
Box 73, Item AC0584-	[Let No Man Write My Epitaph -Reach for Tomorrow]
OD0173	1 Sound discs (lacquer) (Playback disc)
Box 73, Item AC0584-	[MGV-4002 - sides 1 and 2]
OD0174	1 Sound discs (vinyl) (Unidentified pre-production disc)
Box 73, Item AC0584-	[MGV-4002 - sides 3 and 4]
OD0175	1 Sound discs (vinyl) (Unidentified pre-production disc)
Box 73, Item AC0584-	[Frank Sinatra Show], 1959 December 6
OD0176	1 Sound discs (lacquer) (Transcription disc)
Box 73, Item AC0584- OD0177	[Chick Webb], 1939 May 4 1 Sound discs (lacquer) (Unidentified pre-production disc) Notes: Song titles: "Theme" "Poor Little Rich Girl" "New Moon and an Old Serenade" "Breakin' Down" "If I Didn't Care" "Stars and Stripes Forever" "I Never Knew Heaven Could Speak" "My Wild Irish Rose" "Chew, Chew, Chew"
Box 73, Item AC0584- OD0178	[Ella Fitzgerald - Sides 1 and 2], 1972 June 26 1 Sound discs (lacquer) (Reference recording) Notes: Song Titles:

	"I Get a Kick Out of You" "Down In the Depths" "At Long Last Love" "I've Got You Under My Skin" "So Near Yet So Far" "All of You" "Without Love" "My Heart Belongs To Daddy" "Love For Sale" "One of Those Things" "I Concentrate On You" "Anything Goes" "C'est Magnifique"
Box 73, Item AC0584- OD0179	[Oscar and Ella - Gstaad - Sides 1 and 2] 1 Sound discs (lacquer) (Reference recording) Notes: Song Titles:
	"Tenderly" "Mack the Knife" "How High the Moon" "Its Wonderful" "Lady Be Good" Music "Too Close for Comfort" "Slow Boat to China" "Get Out of Town" "So Easy to Love" "You're Diving Me Crazy" "Cheek To Cheek"
Box 73, Item AC0584-	[Oscar - Gstaad]
OD0180	1 Sound discs (lacquer)
Box 74, Item AC0584-	Beale Street Blues – Ella Fitzgerald and Orch.
OD0181	1 Sound discs (lacquer)
Box 74, Item AC0584- OD0182	[Ella Fitzgerald and Dinah Shore], 1960 January 12 1 Sound discs (lacquer) (Reference recording) Notes: Song titles: "Misty" No Name
Box 74, Item AC0584-	[Dinah Shore Side Two], 1963 January 16
OD0183	1 Sound discs (lacquer) (Reference recording)
Box 74, Item AC0584-	[The Best Is Yet To Come]
OD0184	1 Sound discs (lacquer) (Unidentified pre-production disc)
Box 74, Item AC0584-	[One for the Road – Ella Fitzgerald]
OD0185	1 Sound discs (lacquer) (Instantaneous disc)
Box 74, Item AC0584- OD0186	[Ella Fitzgerald – Frank DeVol], 1957 October 15 1 Sound discs (lacquer) (Unidentified pre-production disc) Notes: Song titles: "I Thought About You" "I Never Had a Chance"

Box 74, Item AC0584-	[Teach Me How To Cry/Swinging Shepherd Blues – Ella with Weston]
OD0187	1 Sound discs (lacquer) (Unidentified pre-production disc)
Box 74, Item AC0584-	[Heart and Soul/ Rock It for Me – Ella Fitzgerald]
OD0188	1 Sound discs (lacquer)
Box 74, Item AC0584-	[Bill/Serenade in Blue – Ella Fitzgerald]
OD0189	1 Sound discs (lacquer) (Unidentified pre-production disc)
Box 74, Item AC0584-	[The Gentleman Is A Dope (Take 3) – Ella Fitzgerald]
OD0190	1 Sound discs (lacquer) (Reference recording)
Box 74, Item AC0584-	[Georgia/Mean To Me – Ella Fitzgerald]
OD0191	1 Sound discs (lacquer) (Reference recording)
Box 74, Item AC0584-	[Stardust Bossa Nova/ Desafinado – Ella Fitzgerald]
OD0192	1 Sound discs (lacquer) (Reference recording)
Box 74, Item AC0584-	[Hotta, Hotta, Chocolate/Hear My Heart – Ella Fitzgerald]
OD0193	1 Sound discs (lacquer) (Unidentified pre-production disc, bent)
Box 74, Item AC0584-	[Ol' Man Mose – Ella Fitzgerald (unedited version)], 1963 February 7
OD0194	1 Sound discs (lacquer) (Reference recording)
Box 74, Item AC0584-	[Ol' Man Mose – Ella Fitzgerald (edited version)], 1963 February 7
OD0195	1 Sound discs (lacquer) (Reference recording)
Box 74, Item AC0584-	[Bill Bailey – Ella Fitzgerald]
OD0196	1 Sound discs (lacquer) (Reference recording)
Box 74, Item AC0584-	[Diz Que Vai, Vai, Vai]
OD0197	1 Sound discs (lacquer) (Reference recording)
Box 74, Item AC0584-	[Shadow of Your Smile/ You're Gonna Hear From Me – Ella Fitzgerald]
OD0198	1 Sound discs (lacquer) (Reference recording)
Box 74, Item AC0584-	[Place for Lovers]
OD0199	1 Sound discs (lacquer) (Reference recording)
Box 74, Item AC0584-	[That Ringo Beat –Ella Fitzgerald]
OD0200	1 Sound discs (lacquer) (Refrerence recording)
Box 74, Item AC0584-	[Shadow of Your Smile/You're Gonna Hear From Me – Ella Fitzgerald]
OD0201	1 Sound disc (Instantaneous disc)
Box 74, Item AC0584-	[September Song – Ella Fitzgerald]
OD0202	1 Sound discs (lacquer) (Instantaneous disc)
Box 74, Item AC0584-	[Jazz Samba/ How Long Has This Been Going On? – Ella Fitzgerald]
OD0203	1 Sound discs (lacquer) (Instantageous recording)
Box 74, Item AC0584- OD0204	[Ella Fitzgerald] 1 Sound discs (lacquer) (Reference disc) Notes: on label: Rough dub from session

Song titles: "Melancholy Serenade" "Don't Rain On My Parade" "Sweet Georgia Brown" "Wives and Lovers" Matchmaker"Box 74, Item AC0584[Ella Fitzgerald] 1 Sound disc (Instantaneous disc) Notes: On label: rough dub from session. Song titles: "Whisper Not" "Youve Changed" Take 5 "Time After Time" "Lover Man"Box 74, Item AC0584[She's Just a Quiet Girl/We Three - Miss Ella Fitzgerald] 1 Sound disc (Instantaneous disc)Box 74, Item AC0584[She's Just a Quiet Girl/We Three - Miss Ella Fitzgerald] 1 Sound disc (Instantaneous disc)Box 74, Item AC0584[Grapevine/Mas Que Nada] 1 Sound disc (Instantaneous disc)Box 74, Item AC0584[All the Live Long Day/I'm a Poached Egg] 1 Sound disc (Inidentified pre-production disc) Notes: Music and lyrics by Ella FitzgeraldBox 74, Item AC0584That Ringo Beat" 1 Sound disc (Indentified pre-production disc) Notes: Music and lyrics by Ella FitzgeraldBox 74, Item AC0584That Ringo Beat" 1 Sound disc (Unidentified pre-production disc) Notes: Music and lyrics by Ella FitzgeraldBox 74, Item AC0584"That Ringo Beat" 1 Sound disc (Unidentified pre-production disc) Notes: Music and lyrics by Ella FitzgeraldBox 74, Item AC0584"That Ringo Beat" 1 Sound disc (Unidentified pre-production disc) Notes: Music and lyrics by Ella FitzgeraldBox 74, Item AC0584[StardustThese Boots are Made for Waking - Ella Fitzgerald & Duke Eilington at the Greek Theater] 1 Sound disc (Unidentified pre-production disc) Notes: On label: Rough mono from 4-track.Box 74, Item AC0584[Ella Fitzgerald live at the Fairmont Hotel] 1 Sound disc (Unidentified pre-production disc) Notes: On label: Rough mon	
OD0205Notes:Sound disc (instantaneous disc) Notes:Notes:Song titles: "Whisper Not" "Youve Changed" Take 5 "Time After Time" "Lover Man"Box 74, Item AC0584[She's Just a Quiet Girl/We Three - Miss Ella Fitzgerald]Goue Notes:Goue Notes:Box 74, Item AC0584[Grapevine/Mas Que Nada] 1 Sound disc (Instantaneous disc)Goue Nada]Box 74, Item AC0584[Grapevine/Mas Que Nada] 1 Sound disc (Instantaneous disc)Goue Nada]Box 74, Item AC0584[All the Live Long Day/I'm a Poached Egg] 0 1 Sound disc (Unidentified pre-production disc)Box 74, Item AC0584That Ringo Beat" 1 Sound disc (lacquer) (Unidentified pre-production disc) Notes:Box 74, Item AC0584That Ringo Beat" 1 Sound disc (lacquer) Notes:Box 74, Item AC0584That Ringo Beat" 1 Sound disc (Unidentified pre-production disc)Box 74, Item AC0584"I'm Falling In Love" 1 Sound disc (Unidentified pre-production disc)Box 74, Item AC0584[Stardust/These Boots are Made for Waking - Ella Fitzgerald & Duke Ellington at the OD0213Box 74, Item AC0584[Stardust/These Boots are Made for Waking - Ella Fitzgerald & Duke Ellington at the Faller Pre-production disc) Notes:Box 74, Item AC0584[Ella Fitzgerald live at the Falimont Hotel] 1 Sound disc (Unidentified pre-pro	"Melancholy Serenade" "Don't Rain On My Parade" "Sweet Georgia
OD02061 Sound disc (Instantaneous disc)Box 74, Item AC0584- OD0207[Grapevine/Mas Que Nada] 1 Sound disc (Instantaneous disc)Box 74, Item AC0584- OD0208[All the Live Long Day/I'm a Poached Egg] 1 Sound disc (Unidentified pre-production disc)Box 74, Item AC0584- OD0209[All the Live Long Day/I'm a Poached Egg] 1 Sound disc (Unidentified pre-production disc)Box 74, Item AC0584- OD0209'That Ringo Beat" 1 Sound discs (lacquer) (Unidentified pre-production disc) Notes: Music and lyrics by Ella FitzgeraldBox 74, Item AC0584- OD0210'That Ringo Beat" 1 Sound discs (lacquer) Notes: Music and lyrics by Ella FitzgeraldBox 74, Item AC0584- OD0211'That Ringo Beat" 1 Sound disc (Unidentified pre-production disc)Box 74, Item AC0584- OD0212'That Ringo In Love" 1 Sound disc (Unidentified pre-production disc)Box 74, Item AC0584- OD0213[Stardust/These Boots are Made for Waking - Ella Fitzgerald & Duke Ellington at the Greek Theater] 1 Sound disc (Unidentified pre-production disc)Box 74, Item AC0584- OD0213[Ella Fitzgerald live at the Fairmont Hotel] 1 Sound disc (Unidentified pre-production disc) Notes: On label: Rough mono from 4-track.Box 74, Item AC0584- OD0214[Ella Fitzgerald live at the Fairmont Hotel] 1 Sound disc (Unidentified pre-production disc) Notes: On label: rough mono from 8-track Song titles:	1 Sound disc (Instantaneous disc) Notes: On label: rough dub from session. Song titles: "Whisper Not" "Youve Changed" Take 5 "Time After Time" "Lover
OD02071 Sound disc (Instantaneous disc)Box 74, Item AC0584- OD0208[All the Live Long Day/I'm a Poached Egg] 1 Sound disc (Unidentified pre-production disc)Box 74, Item AC0584- OD0209"That Ringo Beat" 1 Sound disc (lacquer) (Unidentified pre-production disc) Notes: Music and lyrics by Ella FitzgeraldBox 74, Item AC0584- OD0210"That Ringo Beat" 1 Sound discs (lacquer) Notes: Music and lyrics by Ella FitzgeraldBox 74, Item AC0584- OD0210"That Ringo Beat" 1 Sound discs (lacquer) Notes: Music and lyrics by Ella FitzgeraldBox 74, Item AC0584- OD0211"I'm Falling In Love" 1 Sound disc (Unidentified pre-production disc)Box 74, Item AC0584- OD0212"I'm Falling In Love" 1 Sound disc (Unidentified pre-production disc)Box 74, Item AC0584- OD0213[Stardust/These Boots are Made for Waking - Ella Fitzgerald & Duke Ellington at the Greek Theater] 1 Sound disc (Unidentified pre-production disc) Notes: On label: Rough mono from 4-track.Box 74, Item AC0584- OD0214[Ella Fitzgerald live at the Fairmont Hotel] 1 Sound disc (Unidentified pre-production disc) Notes: On label: rough mono from 8-track Song titles:	
OD02081 Sound disc (Unidentified pre-production disc)Box 74, Item AC0584- OD0209'That Ringo Beat" 1 Sound discs (lacquer) (Unidentified pre-production disc) Notes: Music and lyrics by Ella FitzgeraldBox 74, Item AC0584- OD0210'That Ringo Beat" 1 Sound discs (lacquer) Notes: Music and lyrics by Ella FitzgeraldBox 74, Item AC0584- OD0211'That Ringo Beat" 1 Sound discs (lacquer) Notes: Music and lyrics by Ella FitzgeraldBox 74, Item AC0584- OD0211''I'm Falling In Love" 1 Sound disc (Unidentified pre-production disc)Box 74, Item AC0584- OD0212''I'm Falling In Love" 1 Sound disc (Unidentified pre-production disc)Box 74, Item AC0584- OD0213[Stardust/These Boots are Made for Waking - Ella Fitzgerald & Duke Ellington at the Greek Theater] 1 Sound disc (Unidentified pre-production disc) Notes: On label: Rough mono from 4-track.Box 74, Item AC0584- OD0214[Ella Fitzgerald live at the Fairmont Hotel] 1 Sound disc (Unidentified pre-production disc) Notes: On label: rough mono from 8-track Song titles:	
OD02091 Sound discs (lacquer) (Unidentified pre-production disc) Notes: Music and lyrics by Ella FitzgeraldBox 74, Item AC0584- OD0210'That Ringo Beat" 1 Sound discs (lacquer) Notes: Music and lyrics by Ella FitzgeraldBox 74, Item AC0584- OD0211''I'm Falling In Love" 1 Sound disc (Unidentified pre-production disc)Box 74, Item AC0584- OD0212''I'm Falling In Love" 1 Sound disc (Unidentified pre-production disc)Box 74, Item AC0584- OD0212''I'm Falling In Love" 1 Sound disc (Unidentified pre-production disc)Box 74, Item AC0584- OD0213[Stardust/These Boots are Made for Waking - Ella Fitzgerald & Duke Ellington at the Greek Theater] 1 Sound disc (Unidentified pre-production disc)Box 74, Item AC0584- OD0213[Ella Fitzgerald live at the Fairmont Hotel] 1 Sound disc (Unidentified pre-production disc) Notes: On label: Rough mono from 4-track.Box 74, Item AC0584- OD0214[Ella Fitzgerald live at the Fairmont Hotel] 1 Sound disc (Unidentified pre-production disc) Notes: On label: rough mono from 8-track Song titles:	
OD02101 Sound discs (lacquer) Notes:Music and lyrics by Ella FitzgeraldBox 74, Item AC0584- OD0211"I'm Falling In Love" 1 Sound disc (Unidentified pre-production disc)Box 74, Item AC0584- OD0212"I'm Falling In Love" 1 Sound disc (Unidentified pre-production disc)Box 74, Item AC0584- OD0213[Stardust/These Boots are Made for Waking - Ella Fitzgerald & Duke Ellington at the Greek Theater] 1 Sound disc (Unidentified pre-production disc)Box 74, Item AC0584- OD0213[Ella Fitzgerald live at the Fairmont Hotel] 1 Sound disc (Unidentified pre-production disc) Notes:Box 74, Item AC0584- OD0214[Ella Fitzgerald live at the Fairmont Hotel] 1 Sound disc (Unidentified pre-production disc) Notes:Box 74, Item AC0584- OD0214[Ella Fitzgerald live at the Fairmont Hotel] 1 Sound disc (Unidentified pre-production disc) Notes:Box 74, Item AC0584- OD0214[Ella Fitzgerald live at the Fairmont Hotel] 1 Sound disc (Unidentified pre-production disc) Notes:Box 74, Item AC0584- OD0214[Ella Fitzgerald live at the Fairmont Hotel] 1 Sound disc (Unidentified pre-production disc) Notes:Box 74, Item AC0584- OD0214[Ella Fitzgerald live at the Fairmont Hotel] 1 Sound disc (Unidentified pre-production disc) Notes:Box 74, Item AC0584- OD0214[Ella Fitzgerald live at the Fairmont Hotel] 1 Sound disc (Unidentified pre-production disc) Notes:Box 74, Item AC0584- OD0214[Ella Fitzgerald live at the Fairmont Hotel] 1 Sound disc (Unidentified pre-production disc) Notes:Box 74, Item AC0584- OD0214[Ella Fitzgerald live at the Fairmont Hotel] 1 Sound disc (Unidentified pre-produ	1 Sound discs (lacquer) (Unidentfied pre-production disc)
OD02111 Sound disc (Unidentified pre-production disc)Box 74, Item AC0584- OD0212"I'm Falling In Love" 1 Sound disc (Unidentified pre-production disc)Box 74, Item AC0584- OD0213[Stardust/These Boots are Made for Waking - Ella Fitzgerald & Duke Ellington at the Greek Theater] 1 Sound disc (Unidentified pre-production disc) Notes: On label: Rough mono from 4-track.Box 74, Item AC0584- OD0214[Ella Fitzgerald live at the Fairmont Hotel] 1 Sound disc (Unidentified pre-production disc) Notes: On label: rough mono from 8-track Song titles:	1 Sound discs (lacquer)
OD02121 Sound disc (Unidentified pre-production disc)Box 74, Item AC0584- OD0213[Stardust/These Boots are Made for Waking - Ella Fitzgerald & Duke Ellington at the Greek Theater] 1 Sound disc (Unidentified pre-production disc) Notes: On label: Rough mono from 4-track.Box 74, Item AC0584- OD0214[Ella Fitzgerald live at the Fairmont Hotel] 1 Sound disc (Unidentified pre-production disc) Notes: On label: rough mono from 8-track Song titles:	
OD0213 Greek Theater] 1 Sound disc (Unidentified pre-production disc) Notes: On label: Rough mono from 4-track. Box 74, Item AC0584- OD0214 [Ella Fitzgerald live at the Fairmont Hotel] 1 Sound disc (Unidentified pre-production disc) Notes: On label: rough mono from 8-track Song titles:	0
OD0214 1 Sound disc (Unidentified pre-production disc) Notes: On label: rough mono from 8-track Song titles:	Greek Theater] 1 Sound disc (Unidentified pre-production disc)
	1 Sound disc (Unidentified pre-production disc) Notes: On label: rough mono from 8-track Song titles:

Box 74, Item AC0584-	[Sunshine of Your Love/Hey Jude - Ella Fiitzgerald]
OD0215	1 Sound disc (Unidentified pre-production disc)
Box 74, Item AC0584-	[Roxie-Ella Fitzgerald]
OD0216	1 Sound discs (lacquer) (Reference recording)
Box 74, Item AC0584-	[My Own Best Friend - Ella Fitzgerald]
OD0217	1 Sound discs (lacquer) (Reference recording)
Box 74, Item AC0584-	[My Own Best Friend - Ella Fitzgerald]
OD0218	1 Sound discs (lacquer) (Reference recording)
Box 74, Item AC0584- OD0220	A-Tisket A-Tasket /Liza 1 Sound disc (Commercial issue) Notes: Performers: Ella Fitzgerald Chick Webb and His Orchestra
Box 74, Item 0584-	"It's Up To You and Me"
OD0221	1 Sound discs (lacquer) (Master disc; 45 rpm)
Box 74, Item AC0584- OD0222	"Wedding Ring" 1 Sound disc (Reference recording) Notes: On label: Rehearsal tracks-Piano. Performer: Paul Smith
Box 93, Item AC0584-	JATP Carnegie Hall Concert, 1949 September 18
OD0223	5 Sound discs (lacquer) (16 inch transcription discs)
Box 93	Treasury Department "Guest Star" Ella Fitzgerald, 1950 October 8 1 Sound discs (vinyl) (16 inch)
Box 93	Treasury Department "Guest Star" Ella Fitzgerald, 1959 April 6 1 Sound discs (vinyl) (16 inch)
Box 74	[Unidentified discs] 2 Sound discs

Subseries 10.2: Commercial Sound Recordings, 1956-1991

Box 91	A Classy Pair: Ella Fitzgerald Sings Count Basie Plays 1 Sound discs (vinyl)
Box 74, Item AC0584- OD0219	After You/Dream Dancing 1 Sound discs (lacquer) (Unidentified pre-production disc)
Box 74	"All Over Nothing at All"/"Deep in the Heart of the South"

	1 Sound disc (Commercial issue) Notes: Performers: Ella Fitzgerald and Her Savoy Eight
Box 75	All Star Festival 1 Sound discs (vinyl)
Box 91	American Heart Association 1964 Heart Fund 1 Sound discs (vinyl)
Box 91	Armed Forces Radio and Television Service Station Library: Ella at Juan-les-Pins. 1 Sound discs (vinyl)
Box 79	"Beautiful Friendship"/"I'll Always Be In Love With You" 1 Sound discs (vinyl)
Box 91	The Best Is Yet To Come: Ella Fitzgerald 1 Sound discs (vinyl)
Box 75	The Best of Ella Fitzgerald 2 Sound discs (vinyl)
Box 80	Best of Ella: First Lady of Song 1 Sound discs (CD)
Box 75	The Best Years of Ella Fitzgerald 1 Sound discs (vinyl)
	"Brighten the Corner"/"It's Up To Me and You" 1 Sound discs (vinyl)
Box 79	"Can't Buy Me Love"/"Hello Dolly!" 1 Sound discs (vinyl)
Box 80	The Complete Ella in Berlin 1 Sound discs (CD)
Box 4	"Crying in the Chapel" "When the Hands of the Clock Pray at Midnight"
Box 91	Department of the Treasury Presents the GRammy Treasure Chest 1 Sound discs (vinyl)
Box 75	Digital III at Montreux: Ella Fitzgerald, Joe Pass, Count Basie, 1980 1 Sound discs (vinyl)
Box 79	"Duke's Place"/"The Shadow of Your Smile" 1 Sound discs (vinyl)
Box 75	Ella, 1978

	2 Sound discs (vinyl)
Box 75	Ella: Ella Fitzgerald, 1969 4 Sound discs (vinyl)
Box 10 (OD)	"The Chesapeake and Ohio"/"Because of Rain" 1 Sound disc (Commercial issue) Notes: Performers: Ella Fitzgerald with Sy Oliver and His Orchestra
Box 80; Box 75	Clap Hands, Here Comes Charlie 1 Sound discs (CD) 1 Sound discs (vinyl)
Box 76	Ella a Nice, 1971 2 Sound discs
Box 76	Ella abraca Jobim: Ella Fitzgerald Sings the Antonio Carlos Jobim Song Book , 1981 1 Sound discs (vinyl)
Box 76	Ella and Basie!, 1963 July 15 and 16 2 Sound discs (vinyl)
Box 80	Ella & Basie: On the Sunny Side of the Street 1 Sound discs (CD)
Box 76	Ella and Basie: A Perfect Match , 1979 July 12 2 Sound discs (vinyl)
Box 76	Ella and Duke at the Cote D'Azur, 1966 1 Sound discs (vinyl)
Box 92	Ella and the Duke (No.2) 1 Sound discs (vinyl)
Box 76	Ella and Ellis: Ella Fitzgerald and Ellis Larkins, 1983 1 Sound discs (vinyl)
Box 91	Ella and Her Fellas 1 Sound discs (vinyl)
Box 80	Ella Fitzgerald and Louis Armstrong: Ella and Louis Again 1 Sound discs (CD)
Box 80	Ella Fitzgerald and Louis Armstrong: Ella and Louis 1 Sound discs (CD)
	Ella and Louis: Isn'This a Lovely Day/Cheek to Cheek

	1 Sound discs (Minidisc) (45rpm)
Box 80	Ella Fitzgerald and Louis Armstrong: Jazz Masters 24 1 Sound discs (CD)
Box 76	Ella and Oscar, 1976 1 Sound discs (vinyl)
Box 76; Box 81	Ella at Duke's Place 1 Sound discs (vinyl) 1 Sound discs (CD)
Box 92	Ella at Duke's Place 1 Sound discs (vinyl) (45rpm)
Box 80	Ella at the Opera House 1 Sound discs (CD)
Box 91	Ella in Hollywood 1 Sound discs (vinyl)
Box 76	Ella in London , 1974 April 11 1 Sound discs (vinyl)
Box 80	Ella in Rome: The Birthday Concert 1 Sound discs (CD)
Box 76	Ella Loves Cole, 1972 1 Sound discs (vinyl)
Box 80	Ella Returns to Berlin 1 Sound discs (CD)
Box 76	Ella Sings Broadway 1 Sound discs (vinyl)
Box 80	Ella Swings Brightly with Nelson 1 Sound discs (CD)
Box 80	Ella Swings Gently with Nelson 11 Sound discs (CD)
Box 80	Ella Swings Lightly 1 Sound discs (CD)
Box 76;	Ella Wishes You a Swinging Christmas

Series 10: Audiovisual

Box 80	1 Sound discs (CD) 1 Sound discs (vinyl)
Box 76	Ella Fitzgerald and Joe Pass: Easy Living, 1986 1 Sound discs (vinyl)
Box 91	Ella Fitzgerald 1 Sound discs (vinyl)
Box 91	Ella Fitzgerald: All That Jazz 1 Sound discs (vinyl)
Box 91	Ella Fitzgerald: Basin Street Blues 1 Sound discs (vinyl)
Box 92	Ella Fitzgerald" Desafinado 1 Sound discs (vinyl) (45rpm)
Box 80	Ella Fitzgerald: Jazz Masters 1 Sound discs (CD)
Box 80	Ella Fitzgerald: The Jazz Sides 1 Sound discs (CD)
Box 78	Ella Fitzgerald: Memories, 1991 1 Sound discs (vinyl)
Box 77	Ella Fitzgerald: Newport Jazz Festival Live at Carnegie Hall, 1973 July 5 1 Sound discs (vinyl)
Box 77	Ella Fitzgerald the Queen of Jazz 1 Sound discs (vinyl)
Box 91	Ella Fitzgerald: Rhythm Is My Business 1 Sound discs (vinyl)
Box 77	Ella Fitzgerald Sings Christmas, 1978 1 Sound discs (vinyl)
Box 76	Ella Fitzgerald Sings the Cole Porter Song Book 2 Sound discs (vinyl)
Box 77	Ella Fitzgerald Sings the Duke Ellington Song Book 1 Sound discs (vinyl)
Box 77	Ella Fitzgerald Sings the Gershwin Song Book, Vol. I 1 Sound discs (vinyl)
Box 91	Ella Fitzgerald Sings the Gershwin Song Book Vol. 1

1 Sound discs (vinyl)

Box 91	Ella Fitzgerald Sings the George and Ira Gershwin Song Book 1 Sound discs (vinyl)
Box 94	Ella Fitzgerald Sings the George and Ira Gershwin Song Book 5 Sound discs (vinyl) Notes: Limited edition boxed set - set number 53, signed by Norman Granz.
Box 77	Ella Fitzgerald Sings the Harold Arlen Song Book 2 Sound discs
Box 77	Ella Fitzgerald Sings the Ira Gershwin Song Book 2 Sound discs (vinyl)
Box 77	Ella Fitzgerald Sings the Irving Berlin Song Book
Box 77	Ella Fitzgerald Sings the Jerome Kern Songbook 1 Sound discs (vinyl)
Box 77	Ella Fitzgerald Sings the Johnny Mercer Song Book 1 Sound discs (vinyl)
Box 91	Ella Fitzgerald Sings the Rodgers and Hart Song Book 1 Sound discs (vinyl)
Box 77	Ella Fitzgerald Sings Sweet Songs for Swingers 1 Sound discs (vinyl)
Box 80	Ella Fitzgerald: The Songbooks 1 Sound discs (CD)
Box 91	Ella Fitzgerald's Big Sixteen 1 Sound discs (vinyl)
Box 91	Ella Fitzgerald's Brighten the Corner 1 Sound discs (vinyl)
Box 77	Ella Fitzgerald's Christmas 1 Sound discs (vinyl)
Box 91	Ella Fitzgerald's Tribute to Cole Poter 1 Sound discs (vinyl)
Box 91	Ella Fitzgerald's Watch What Happens 1 Sound discs (vinyl)
Box 80	The Essential Ella Fitzgerald: The Great Songs

1 Sound discs (CD)

Box 79	"Dreams Are Made for Children" "Oh, What a Night for Love" 1 Sound discs (vinyl)
Box 91	Dream Dancing: Ella Fitzgerald and Cole Porter 1 Sound discs (vinyl)
Box 80	For the Love of Ella Fitzgerald 2 Sound discs (CD)
Box 77	Get Happy!, 1957 1 Sound discs (vinyl)
Box 92	Get Ready 1 Sound discs (vinyl) (45rpm)
Box 79	"Good Morning Blues"/"Jingle Bells" 1 Sound discs (vinyl)
Box 77	Hello, Dolly! 1 Sound discs (vinyl)
Box 79	"Hello Dolly" 1 Sound discs (vinyl) (45 rpm)
Box 92	Hello Dolly: Ella Fitzgerald 1 Sound discs (vinyl) (45rpm)
Box 78	Hello Love, 1957 1 Sound discs (vinyl)
Box 92	I'll Never Fall In Love Again/Savoy Truffle 1 Sound discs (vinyl) (45rpm)
Box 10 (OD)	"I'm Just a Lucky So and So"/"I Didn't Mean a Word I Said" 1 Sound disc (Commercial issue) Notes: Performers: Ella Fitzgerald and Bill Kyle and His Trio
Box 10 (OD); Box 4	"In My Dreams"/" To Make a Mistake Is Human" 1 Sound disc (Commercial issue)
Box 80	The Intimate Ella 1 Sound discs (CD)
Box 78	Jazz at the Santa Monica Civic, 1972

	1 Sound discs (vinyl)
Box 78	Jazz at the Philharmonic: Lady Be Good! 1957, 1985 1 Sound discs (vinyl)
Box 78	Jazz at the Philharmonic: The Ella Fitzgerald Set, 1983 1 Sound discs (vinyl)
Box 80	Jazz 'Round Midnight 1 Sound discs (CD)
Box 91	Let No Man Wrire My Epitaph 1 Sound discs (vinyl)
Box 80	Like Someone in Love 1 Sound discs (CD)
Box 92	Lonesome Gal/The Beanbag Song 1 Sound discs (vinyl) (45rpm)
Box 91	Mack the Knife: Ella in Berlin 1 Sound discs (vinyl)
Box 78	Miss Ella Fitzgerald and Mr. Gordon Jenkins Inovite You to Listen and Relax 1 Sound discs (vinyl)
Box 78	Misty Blue , 1967 1 Sound discs (vinyl)
	"The Moment of Truth" 1 Sound discs (vinyl)
Box 92	Pal Joey 1 Sound discs (vinyl) (45rpm)
Box 92	Pete Kelly's Blues 1 Sound discs (vinyl) (45rpm)
Box 79	"Mr. Paginini – You're Driving Me Crazy" 1 Sound discs (vinyl)
Box 79	"My Mother's Eyes" 1 Sound discs (vinyl)
Box 79	"My Own Best Friend"/"Roxie" 1 Sound discs (vinyl)
Box 91	National Association of Retarded Children Presents Benefit Performance

	1 Sound discs (vinyl)
Box 91	Nice Work If You Can Get It: Ella Fitzgerald and Andre Previn Do Gershwin 1 Sound discs (vinyl)
Box 80	Oh, Lady Be Good: The Best of the Gershwin Songbook 1 Sound discs (CD)
Box 81	Porgy and Bess: Ella Fitzgerald and Louis Armstrong 1 Sound discs (CD)
Box 78	Rhythm Is My Business 1 Sound discs (vinyl)
Box 79	"Ringo Beat"/"I'm Falling In Love" 1 Sound discs (vinyl)
Box 78	The Rodgers and Hart Songbook, 1956 2 Sound discs (vinyl)
Box 78	Smooth Sailing 1 Sound discs (vinyl)
Box 80	Something To Live For 1 Sound discs (vinyl)
Box 78	Speak Love: Ella Fitzgerald Joe Pass, 1983 1 Sound discs (vinyl)
Box 91	Stars for Defence With Ella Fitzgerald 1 Sound discs (vinyl)
Box 78	Sunshine of Your Love 1 Sound discs (vinyl)
Box 79	"The Sweetest Sounds" 1 Sound discs (vinyl)
Box 78; Box 80	These Are the Blues 1 Sound discs (vinyl) 1 Sound discs (CD)
Box 92	These Boots Are Made for Walking/Get Ready 1 Sound discs (vinyl) (45rpm)
Box Demo box 3	"These Boots Are Made For Walking" "Mr. Paginini –Ich Fuhle Mich Crazy"
Box 78	Treasury of Stars: Music Through the Years for United States Savings Bonds , 1966

	2 Sound discs (vinyl)
Box 78	A Tribute to Duke Ellington: "We Love You Madly" 1 Sound discs (vinyl)
Box 79	"Try a Little Bit"/"Yellow Man" 1 Sound discs (vinyl)
Box 91	The Veteran's Administration Presents Here's to Veterans 2 Sound discs (vinyl)
Box 91	Voices of Vista Starring Ella Fitzgerakd 1 Sound discs (vinyl)
Box 78; Box 80	Whisper Not: Ella Fitzgerald 1 Sound discs (vinyl) 1 Sound discs (CD)
Box 78	[Ella Fitzgerald], 1976 1 Sound discs (vinyl) Language: Russian.

Subseries 10.2.1: Pablo Commercial Sound Recordings: Other Artists

Box 90	Benny Carter 4: Montreux '77 1 Sound discs (vinyl)
Box 90	The Best of the Modern Jazz Quartet 1 Sound discs (vinyl)
Box 90	Conception: Ray Pizzi 1 Sound discs (vinyl)
Box 90	Count Basie Big Band: Montreux '77 1 Sound discs (vinyl)
Box 90	Count Basie Jam 1 Sound discs (vinyl)
Box 90	Count Basie Get Together 1 Sound discs (vinyl)
Box 90	Dizzy Gillespie Jam 1 Sound discs (vinyl)
Box 90	Eddie "Lockjaw" Davis 4: Montreux '77 1 Sound discs (vinyl)
Box 90	For My Pals: Harry Sweets Edison

	1 Sound discs (vinyl)
Box 90	J.A.T.P in London, 1969 1 Sound discs (vinyl)
Box 90	Joe Pass: Montreux '77 1 Sound discs (vinyl)
Box 90	Milt Jackson/Ray Brown Jam 1 Sound discs (vinyl)
Box 90	The Montreaux Jam Sessions 1 Sound discs (vinyl)
Box 90	My Kind of Trouble 1 Sound discs (vinyl)
Box 90	One For My Baby: Joe Pass 1 Sound discs (vinyl)
Box 90	Oscar Peterson and the Bassists 1 Sound discs (vinyl)
Box 90	Oscar Peterson and Dizzy Gillespie 1 Sound discs (vinyl)
Box 90	Oscar Peterson and Jon Faddis 1 Sound discs (vinyl)
Box 90	Oscar Peterson Jam 1 Sound discs (vinyl)
Box 90	The Pablo All-Stars Jam 1 Sound discs (vinyl)
Box 90	Porgy and Bess: Oscar Peterson and Joe Pass 1 Sound discs (vinyl)
Box 90	Ray Bryant: Montreaux '77 1 Sound discs (vinyl)
Box 90	Roy Eldridge 4 1 Sound discs (vinyl)
Box 90	The Silent Partner: Oscar Peterson 1 Sound discs (vinyl)
Box 90	Summer Nights: Joe Pass

	1 Sound discs (vinyl)
Box 90	Sunshine Rock: Louis Bellson and the "Explosion Orchestra" 1 Sound discs (vinyl)
Box 90	The Tatum Solo Masterpieces 1 Sound discs (vinyl)
Box 90	Tommy Flanagan 3 1 Sound discs (vinyl)
Box 90	"Two of the Few" 1 Sound discs (vinyl)
Box 90	"Yessir, That's My Baby" 1 Sound discs (vinyl)

Subseries 10.3: Demonstration Sound Discs: Other Artists and Songwriters, undated *3 Boxes*

Box 85	"A Hoppity Bop Birdie"
Box 85	"A Little In Love" "The Night It Rained Like Mad", 1862
Box 85	"Another Martini, Another Call" "Any Day Now"
Box 85	"When I Don't Write" "Any Day Now"
Box 85	Are You Happy With Him" "Come Out of That Dream World" 1 Sound discs (vinyl)
Box 85	"Baby, Don't Say We're Through" "You're For Me", undated 1 Sound disc
Box 85	"Be Somebody", 1900, 1910-1915 1 Sound disc
Box 85	"Best Friends" Lovin' Spoonful 1 Sound disc
Box 85	"Blue Love" "Night Mist Blue", 1910-1925, 1930s 1 Sound disc
Box 85	"Blue Snowfall", 1950

	1 Sound disc
Box 85	"Blues for Breakfast", 1950 1 Sound disc
Box 85	"Blue Over You" "When I Think of You", 1950 1 Sound disc
Box 85	"The Bossa Nova" Arthur Godfrey, 1950 1 Sound disc
Box 85	"Bottom of the Blues", 1950 1 Sound disc
Box 85	"Bye Bye", 1950 1 Sound disc
Box 85	"Can I Trust You" "The Moon Looks Beautiful", 1950 1 Sound disc
Box 85	"Can This Be Spring" "You Fascinate Me", 1950s 1 Sound disc
Box 85	"Cause I Love You" "What a Way To Go", 1960s 1 Sound disc
Box 85	Church, 1950 1 Sound disc Notes: Hand written on label.
Box 85	"Cinderella Ella", 1950 1 Sound disc
Box 85	"Coconut Grove", 1950 1 Sound disc
Box 85	"Cold, Cold, Cold", 1950 1 Sound disc
Box 85	"Come Summer", 1951 1 Sound disc
Box 85	"A Crazy Afternoon", 1952 1 Sound disc
Box 85	"Dapper Dan" "If We're Really in Love", 1953 1 Sound disc
Box 85	"Divorce American Style", 1953

1 Sou	ad disc
	Have the Right?" "Gee, But I'm Lonesome", 1953 nd disc
	Let Your Mind Overrule Your Heart" "New Girl In Town", 1953 nd disc
	ns Are All I Have of You" "When You're Not Here" nd disc
Box 85 "Fallin 1 Sour	g" nd disc
Box 85 "Feath 1 Sour	ners" nd disc
	erty-Gibbet" "It Must Be True" nd disc
	bye's a Long Time" nd disc
	night Little Leaguer" nd disc
	Greatest Gift" nd disc
Box 85 "Half M 1 Sour	Moon" nd disc
	Me Down Love" - Cleo Lane "Hand Me Down Love" - Bernie Knee nd disc
	strings" nd disc
	ittle Heart Went To Loveland" nd disc
	vay Song" Ray Brown, Jr. nd disc
	Can You Say We're Through" nd disc
Box 85 "I Belie	eve In You"

	1 Sound disc
Box 85	"I Didn't Fall In Love Today "Night Town" "Run, Run, Run" 1 Sound disc
Box 85	"I Fell In Love Too Fast" "Listen to Me" 1 Sound disc
Box 85	"I Get a Kick Out of You" "It Was Just One of Those Things" 1 Sound disc
Box 85	"I Just Found Out About Love" – Johnny Mathis "Love Me As Though There Were No Tomorrow" - Vicki Carr
Box 85	"If This is True" "You Ought to Know By Now" 1 Sound disc
Box 85	"Igloo for Two" "Take a Tip From Mama" 1 Sound disc
Box 85	"In Love for the Very First Time" 1 Sound disc
Box 85	"Intima" 1 Sound disc
Box 85	"I Found Myself a Guy" "It's Me, Remember" Jimmy McHugh 1 Sound disc
Box 85	"Its Me, Remember" "Love Is a Private Affair" Vickie Carr 1 Sound disc
Box 85	"If I Had a Chance" "Mother Nature's Lullaby" 1 Sound disc
Box 85	"I'll Be Coming Back"
Box 85	"I'll Be Here With You" Benny Carter
Box 85	"I'm Satisfied"
Box 85	"It Looks Like Love"
Box 85	"It's a Nice Face"
Box 85	"It's Downhill All the Way to My House"
Box 85	"Its Too Late"

Box 85	"Jazzman"
Box 85	"Just a Little Lovin"
Box 85	"Keep It Simple"
Box 85	Songs from Kiss Me Stupid by George and Ira Gershwin
Box 85	"Life Has Been So Very Good"
Box 85	"Life Is Sweeter Now"
Box 85	"Life Is a Wheel"
Box 85	"Little League"
Box 85	"Live for Life"
Box 85	"Lonely Is"
Box 85	"Look What I Found"
Box 85	"Love Is Like a Newborn Child" on original sleeve: Recorded by Barbara Streisand 1968
Box 85	"Love Is a Night-time Thing"
Box 85	"Love Is a Word for the Blues" Leonard Feather
Box 85	"Love Is Somethin"
Box 85	"Love's Got Me In a Jumble" "The Right Invitation"
Box 85	"Love Theme from The Sandpiper"
Box 86	"Make the Best of Your Life"
Box 86	"Make It Easy On Yourself"
Box 86	"Make Me Rainbows"
Box 86	"Meat and Potatoes" "Red Hot Tomatoes"
Box 86	"Meat and Potatoes"
Box 86	"Monday Morning Blues" "My Lil' Valentine"

Box 86	"Morning Sun"
Box 86	"Most Exciting Season of the Year" – jazz version "Someday Soon"
Box 86	"Most Exciting Season of the Year" - instrumental
Box 86	"My Personal Property"
Box 86	"Now" - female version
Box 86	"Once It Was Alright Now"
Box 86	"Once or Twice"
Box 86	"Playboy"
Box 86	Pleasures and Palaces Demos from Frank Loesser's Score
Box 86	"Por Favor"
Box 86	"Reach Out"
Box 86	"Sensations" – female version
Box 86	"Signing On, Signing Off"
Box 86	"Silly Song"
Box 86	"Sing With Me"
Box 86	"Single O"
Box 86	"Sitting Alone Counting My Tears" Leonard Feather
Box 86	"So What Now"
Box 86	"Softly the Silence" "Why Are You Afraid?"
Box 86	"Something Special"
Box 86	"Sometime When Your Lonely"
Box 86	"The Sounds of the Night" – female version
Box 86	"Sounds of Spring" Leonard Feather and Benny Green
Box 86	"Stop Living In the Past"

Box 86	"Sugar Don't You Know"
Box 86	"Sweet Charity"
Box 86	"A Swing for Joey"
Box 86	"Take a Little Walk"
Box 86	"Take It Slow and Easy"
Box 86	"Tango Easy"
Box 86	"Tenderfoot" "Walk Me By the River" Bing Crosby
Box 86	Tenderloin Demo
Box 86	"That Could Be Love"
Box 86	"That's the Way It Is"
Box 86	"That's Why I Love Him"
Box 86	"That Was Then, Now Is Now" – female version
Box 86	"These Are the Hands" "You Can Always Tell a Texan"
Box 86	"Тоо Нір То Ве Нарру"
Box 86	"Try a Little Bit" – John Sebastian
Box 86	"Try a Little Bit" – music track only
Box 86	"2 Memoirs of a Lady"
Box 86	"Two Other People" "Tum de Dum"
Box 86	"Up" – Leonard Feather
Box 86	"Wailing Waltz"
Box 86	"Walk Softly"
Box 86	"Walkin' Shoes" – Gerry Mulligan
Box 86	"When Love Comes Late"
Box 86	"You'd Never Know the Old Place Now"

Box 86	"Your Not the First Gal"
Box 86	Unidentified discs – no title, no label, no sleeve
Box 79	"Ask Any Woman"
Box 79	"Bad for Each Other"
Box 79	"Big Daddy"
Box 79	"The Birds and the Bees" – Rowan and Martin comedy routine
Box 79	"Cassandra" "Broadway Bossa Nova" Dave Brubeck
Box 79	"Call Me Back"
Box 79	"The Children's Prayer (for Peace)"
Box 79	"Cumba Ballenata" "El Mondo Esta Loco Loco"
Box 79	"Day In, Day Out"
Box 79	"A Day Like This" "Let's Dream"
Box 79	"Didn't We" "MacArthur Park" Richard Harris
Box 79	"Ella" "Dos Palomitas"
Box 79	"The Empty Streets" "Far Off, Close By" Charlie Byrd and Willis Conover – inscribed to Ella
Box 79	"Flooby Dooby Doo" "I Never Opened My Eyes"
Box 79	"Fortune Teller" "How To Remember"
Box 79	"Games That Lovers Play" "Mame" Eddie Fisher
Box 79	"The Good Life" "Spring In Manhattan" Tony Bennett
Box 79	"Good Things In Life"
Box 79	"Good Times" "The Warm Hours" Steve Lawrence
Box 79	"How'd You Like To Fall In Love" "Little Less Talk"
Box 79	"I Never Told You"

Box 79	"I Wanna Be In Love Again"
Box 79	"If I Had a Sweetheart" "I'm Afraid of Tomorrow"
Box 79	"Jazz Samba" Jobim from film Copacabana Palace
Box 79	"Jazzland"
Box 79	"The Loves of July"
Box 79	"Mon Amour Mon Amour" "This Year" Robert Goulet
Box 79	"The Morning After" "Where Is the Wonder" Barbra Streisand
Box 79	"A Mother's Kiss"
Box 79	"My Bells"
Box 79	"My Child's Child"
Box 79	"My Favorite Things" "Who Knows What Love Is"
Box 79	"Natural Affection"
Box 79	"Natural Child"
Box 79	"Passing Through" "Something Happens" Erroll Garner
Box 79	"Slightly Out of Tune"
Box 79	"Please Don't Hate Me" "Sweet Pumpkin"
Box 79	"Por Favor No te Encarines Conmigo" "Te Quiero Para Toda la Vida"
Box 79	"Put Away Your Teardrops" "Yet I Know" Steve Lawrence
Box 79	"Someone, Somehow"
Box 79	"Sweet Pussycat" – female version
Box 79	"Sweet Talk"
Box 79	"Twilight In the City"
Box 79	"Unisphere" "Dave Brubeck"
Box 79	"Unwanted Blues"

Box 79	"Very Early"
Box 79	"Viva!"
Box 79	"Walking With the Moon"
Box 79	"Waltz for Debby"
Box 79	"When You Gonna Learn?" Eydie Gorme
Box 79	"Why Babee Why"
Box 79	"The Winter of My Discontent"
Box 79	"Woman Talk"

Subseries 10.5: Videotapes, 1967-1999

Box 87	 Ella Fitzgerald: 60 Years of Music (2/3/1995) 1 Videocassettes (VHS) Notes: Content: A tribute to Ella includes some photos and clips of a performance with Frank Sinatra. Most of the program comprises performances by various artists including Whitney Huston, Mel Torme, Michael Feinstein, and Stevie Wonder at Universal Amphitheater.
Box 87	The Very Best of the Ed Sullivan Show, 1991 February 17 1 Videocassettes (VHS) Notes: Content: A 2-hour special about Ed Sullivan and the Ed Sullivan Show. Carol Burnett hosts, Ella Fitzgerald comments. There are clips of Ella's performances on the Ed Sullivan Show.
Box 87	20th Annual NAACP Image Awards, 1988 January 12 1 Videocassettes (VHS) Notes: Content: Awards program. Ella won the President's Award and is featured accepting the award with a short speech. She also sings "You Are the Sunshine of My Life."
Box 87	[British News Stories About Ella Fitzgerald Time], 19901 Videocassettes (VHS)Notes:Content: A series of news stories about the launch of a new jazz radio station. Ella Fitzgerald was in London to help publicize the event. She is shown being interviewed for various British new programs.
Box 87	 [Ella's Personal Tape – Ella Fitzgerald Show, Swing Into Spring, Cote d'Azur] 1 Videocassettes (VHS) Notes: Poor quality. Content: Compilation reel of Ella's major television appearances.

Box 87	1 Videocassettes (I	on Commercial – Ella Fitzgerald] BetacamSP) ntent: 60 second television commercial. "Is it live or is it Memorex?"
Box 87	Co an	
Box 87	1 Videocassettes (Notes: Co	onors, 1979 December VHS) intent: Broadcast of the Kennedy Center Honors award ceremony. a Fitzgerald is the last honoree on the program.
Box 87	1 Videocassettes (I	nicken Television Commercial – Ella Fitzgerald], 1983 February 7 U-matic) ntent: Ella Fitzgerald in Kentucky Fried Chicken commercial.
Box 88	Co	
Box 88		
Box 87	1 Videocassettes (an and His Music + Ella + Jobim, 1967 VHS) ntent: Commercial home video of Frank Sinatra television special.
Box 88	1 Videocassettes (Notes: Co	Oscar Peterson: On Stage at Wolf Trap, 1985 November 26 VHS) Intent: Commercial home video of a television broadcast of a live Informance at Wolf Trap.
Box 4	Compilation reel pr Tisket, A-Tasket" fr of Time (1949) "Wr "Don't Be That Way Good" from Ella Fit	sentation for the Juvenile Diabetes Foundation Content: roduced for presentation at a Foundation event. Includes: "A- om Ride 'Em Cowboy (1942) "How High the Moon" from March hat Is This Thing Called Love?" from Jo Stafford Show (1963) y" from Frank Sinatra: A Man and His Music (1968) "Lady Be tzgerald Show (1968) "Street of Dreams" (1968) "Blues for emorex Commercial "Satin Doll" (1966) "Something to Live November 25

	1 Videocassettes (BetacamSP) Notes: Creator: Universal Media Content: Compilation reel produced for presentation at a Foundation event. Includes: "A-Tisket, A-Tasket" from Ride 'Em Cowboy (1942) "How High the Moon" from March of Time (1949) "What Is This Thing Called Love?" from Jo Stafford Show (1963) "Don't Be That Way" from Frank Sinatra: A Man and His Music (1968) "Lady Be Good" from Ella Fitzgerald Show (1968) "Street of Dreams" (1968) "Blues for Greasy" (1950) Memorex Commercial "Satin Doll" (1966) "Something to Live For" (1966)
Box 4	Ella Fitzgerald – Something To Live For (American Masters) 1 Videocassettes (BetacamSP) Notes: No original
Box 89	[Ella Fitzgerald Lobby Presentation], 1998 November 251 Videocassettes (BetacamSP)Notes:Producer: Universal Media Content: Compilation of photographs of Ella with a medley of songs sung by Ella and filmed Ella perfomances.
Box 89	American Music Awards, 1978, 1978 1 Videocassettes (VHS) Notes: Content: Award of Merit presented to Ella. She is introduced by Dinah Shore. Clips of Ella's performances introduced by Cab Calloway, Lou Rawls, and other celebrity entertainers.
Box 89	Lincoln Center All-Star Swing Session 1 Videocassettes (VHS) Notes: Content: Hosted by Doc Severinsen, performances by Ella, Benny Goodman Quartet, Count Basie, Lionel Hampton, Duke Ellington, Dave Brubeck, Joe Williams, and Doc Severinsen.
Box 89	[Lord & Taylor Ella Fitzgerald Presentation], 1980 October 12 1 Videocassettes (VHS) Notes: Content: Biographical tribute documentary about Ella. Includes stills, filmed performances, and recordings.
Box 89	 [Heart of New York Gala], 1992 February 7 1 Videocassettes (VHS) (Duration: 2 minutes) Notes: Content: Filmed on February 7, 1992 in Ella Fitzgeralds' backyard, the two minute segment was shown at the award gala. Fitzgerald congratulates the winner of the Heart Award.
Box 89	[Swing It! –Ella Doc Selects], 1999 November 16 1 Videocassettes (VHS) (Duration: 10 minutes) Notes: Content: Selections from interviews about Fitzgerald with Frankie Manning, Rosemary Cloony, and Dee Dee Bridgewater.
Box 89	Celebrate the Soul of American Music, 1991 June 14

	 1 Videocassettes (VHS) (Duration: 120 minutes) Notes: Content: Televised awards ceremony recognizing the contributions of African American musicians and performers. Fitzgerald, one of the honorees, was not able to attend due to poor health. Mel Torme introduced an overview of her work and spoke about their long friendship. Debbie Allen accepted the award for Ella. Dizzy Gillespie, another honoree, spoke after his music was played by Harry "Sweets" Edison.
Box 89	Dear Ella: Tribute to Ella Fitzgerald, 1998 April 15 1 Videocassettes (VHS) Notes: Performers: U.S. Military Academy Band Content: Concert celebrating Ella Fitzgerald.
Box 89	Today Show "Happy Birthday Ella" 1 Videocassettes (VHS) (Duration: 4 minutes) Notes: Content: Montage of clips of Fitzgerald performing.
Box 89	 KCAL Prime 9 News, 1991 August 9 1 Videocassettes (VHS) Notes: Content: Footage of Fitzgerald performing at the Hollywood Bowl under the closing credits of the newcast.
Box 89	339th Harvard University Commencement, 1990 June 9 1 Videocassettes (VHS)
Box 89, Item AC0584- OV0001	Alice's 4th Birthday Party at Gramma Ella's, 1989 1 Videocassettes (VHS) Notes: Content: Children's birthday party in Ella Fitzgerald's backyard. She plays with the children and is wearing a party hat. Digital reference copy in Smithsonian Institution Digital Asset Management System (DAMS).
Box 89	All Star Festival – Lincoln Center 1 Videocassettes (Betamax)
Box 4; Box 89	[Virginia Arts Festival] 1 Videocassettes (Betamax)

Subseries 10.5: Sound Tapes, 1938-1996

Box 82, Item AC0584- OT0001A	[Ella Fitzgerald at Montreux Jazz Festival], 1969 June 22 1 Sound tape reel (Tape two of two.)	
	Notes:	Performers: Ella Fitzgerald, Tommy Flanagan Trio
		Song Titles:
		"Well, All Right, You Win" "Hey, Jude" "A House Is Not a Home When No One's There"

Item RTC 584; Box 82, Item AC0584- OT0001B	[Ella Fitzgerald at Montreux Jazz Festival], 1969 June 22 1 Sound tape reel Notes: Performers: Ella Fitzgerald Song Titles: "Give Me the Simple Life" "I'm Going to Sit Right Down and Write Myself a Letter" "I Won't Dance" Unidentified tune "That Old Black Magic" "Useless Landscape" Tommy Flanagan piano solo with Ella Fitzgerald in wordless vocal "Love You Madly" "Trouble Is a Man" Unidentified tune Unidentified tune, with refrain: "In the sunshine of your love"
Box 82, Item AC0584- OT0002A	 [Frank Sinatra Show], 1958 May 9 1 Sound tape reel Notes: Broadcast live on ABC from the El Capitan Theater, Hollywood. Sponsored by Bulova. Performers: Ella Fitzgerald, Frank Sinatra Song Titles: "Jeepers, Creepers" "April in Paris" "On the Road to Mandalay" "Angel Eyes" "We'll Be Together Again" "When You're Smiling" "Moonlight in Vermont" "I Think You're Wonderful" Unidentified tune (Fitzgerald and Sinatra about each other) "Put Your Dreams Away for Another Day and I Will Take the Place in Your Heart"Unidentified closing theme, Fitzgerald and Sinatra
Box 82	[Ella Fitzgerald], circa 1972 1 Sound tape reel Notes: Performers: Ella Fitzgerald, Tommy Flanagan Song Titles: "Love Was Made for You and Me" "Begin the Beguine" "I'll Be There" "What's going On" "Night and Day " "Spring Can Really Hang You Up the Most" "Misty" "Hello, Dolly" "I Can't Get Started with You" – Ms. Fitzgerald identifies "Maurice on trumpet, ladies and gentlemen." "Sanford and Son (Theme)" [Ernie on trumpet] "It's All Right with Me" Patter "A Tisket, A Tasket"
Box 82	 [Ella Fitzgerald :Chrysler Commercial], undated 1 Sound tape reel Notes: Description: 1/4" open-reel audio tape. Three takes of Ella Fitzgerald doing a commercial for Chrysler-Plymouth commercial, with orchestral accompaniment.
Box 82	 [Half-Time Ceremonies in Honor of Louis Armstrong -Dallas vs. Miami], 1972 1 Sound tape reel Notes: Description: 1/4" open-reel tape of broadcast Corporate Creator: WCBS-TV, New York (broadcast) Performers: Ella Fitzgerald, Al Hirt, Carol Channing, Lou Cottrell(sp.) Brass Band, United States Air Force Academy Cadet Chorale Song Titles: "Mack the Knife" "Hello Dolly" "When the Saints Go Marching In"

Box 83	[Unidentified Sound Tape Reels] 15 Sound tape reels	
Box 84	[Unidentified Sound Tape Reels] 8 Sound tape reels	
Box 81	[Ella Fitzgerald with Chick Webb] (May 1939), 1939 May 1 Sound cassette Notes: Description: Original audio cassette, probably transferred from a transcription disc, of a radio broadcast from Southland Cafe in Boston Corporate Creator: NBC Performers: Chick Webb Orchestra, Ella Fitzgerald Song Titles: "Chick Webb Theme" "Let's Get Together" "Poor Little Rich Girl" "A New Moon and Old Serenade" "Break 'Em Down" " If I Didn't Care" "Stars and Stripes Forever" "I Never Knew Heaven Could Speak" "My Wild Irish Rose" "Chew, Chew, Chew, Chew Your Bubble Gum" "Chick Webb Theme"	
Box 81	[Ella and Dinah Duet], 1959 March 8 1 Sound cassette	
Box 81	[Ella With Phil MacKellar: Interview CKFM Radio, Toronto], 1970 September 20 1 Sound cassette	
Box 81	[Ella and Alan -Your'e the Top Medley] 1 Sound cassette	
Box 81	[Ella Fitzgerald Nice], 1971 July 20 2 Sound cassettes	
Box 81	[G.E. Children's Chorus: Selected Numbers], 1986 June 1 1 Sound cassette	
Box 81	[Ella], 1983 January 15 1 Sound cassette	
Box 81	[Joe Pass Interview], 1978 1 Sound cassette	
Box 81	[First Ladies Medley] 1 Sound cassette	
Box 81	[Carpenters T.V. Special] 1 Sound cassette	
Box 81	Ella By Daylight: In a Mellow Tone, 1996 September 2	

2 Sound cassettes Notes: Hosted by Janice Siegel

Subseries 10.6: Reference Tape Cassettes (for 1/4" open reel originals)

Box 6 (reference cassettes)	Ella Fitzgerald (OT1, 584.1.B)
Box 6 (reference cassettes)	Ella Fitzgerald (OT1, 584.2)
Box 6 (reference cassettes)	Ella Fitzgerald (OT1, 584.3), undated
Box 6 (reference cassettes)	Ella Fitzgerald (OT1, 584.4), undated
Box 6 (reference cassettes)	Ella Fitzgerald (OT1, 584.5), undated
Box 6 (reference cassettes)	Ella Fitzgerald, Little Jesus Sweetly Weep, undated
Box 6 (reference cassettes)	Ella Fitzgerald, Unidentified song by unidentified vocalist, undated
Box 6 (reference cassettes)	Ella Fitzgerald, These Things, undated
Box 6 (reference cassettes)	Ella Fitzgerald, Tomorrow's Sun is Rising, undated
Box 6 (reference cassettes)	Ella Fitzgerald (OT2, 584.1), undated
Box 6 (reference cassettes)	Ella Fitzgerald (OT2, 584.2), undated
Box 6 (reference cassettes)	Ella Fitzgerald (OT2, 584.3), undated
Box 6 (reference cassettes)	Ella Fitzgerald (OT2, 584.4), undated
Box 6 (reference	Ella Fitzgerald (OT2, 584.5), undated

Box 6 (reference cassettes)	Ella Fitzgerald (OT2, 584.6), undated
Box 6 (reference cassettes)	Ella Fitzgerald (OT2, 584.9), undated
Box 6 (reference cassettes)	Ella Fitzgerald (OT2, 584.11), undated
Box 6 (reference cassettes)	Ella Fitzgerald (OT2, 584.12), undated
Box 6 (reference cassettes)	Ella Fitzgerald, The Day Before April, Joe Masters, undated
Box 6 (reference cassettes)	Ella Fitzgerald, Broadcasts re: death of Mahalia Jackson, undated
Subseries 10.7: Films,	1959-1973
Reel OF 584.1	32nd Academy Awards, excerpt, 1959 1 Film reel (black and white, composite optical soundtrack, print; 16mm, 200 feet) Notes: Appearance by Bob Hope.
	Ella Fitzgerald performs a Gershwin Medley: "Foggy Day" and "Our Love is Here to Stay"
Reel OF 584.2	Ella Fitzgerald European Tour CBS News Spot, 1973 1 Film reel (color, composite optical soundtrack, print; 16mm, 200 feet) Notes: News feature covering Ella Fitzgerald's European tour. Clips of performances and short interviews with Ella Fitzgerald and Norman Granz.
Reel OF 584.3	Ella Fitzgerald Shea Segment - Midday, 1/12, 1971 1 Film reel (color, magnetic stripe soundtrack, print; 16mm, 100 feet)

Return to Table of Contents

Tape 6

Norman Granz tapes, unprocessed, Tape 6